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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t—-HLEE

2013 2012 2011

—E—-= —E——4F —E——4F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FEIT FET

Revenue Wz 47,979 87,328 303,233

Profit for the year AN ) T 396,675 360,995 473,589
Profit attributable to BRAIFEE

owners of the parent JEAG % A 397,242 359,651 467,519

Basic and diluted earnings FRERNEEEF HK8.57 cents HK7.70 cents HK9.90 cents

per share AL AL AL

Total assets BEME 2,348,352 2,086,453 2,551,850

Total liabilities BERE (118,040) (128,254) (396,770)

Non-controlling interests SRR = (5,082) (5,582) (4,173)
Net assets (net of BEFEIR

non-controlling interests) FEFE AR A 25) 2,225,230 1,952,617 2,150,907

Revenue (HK$’ million)

Net assets (net of non-controlling interests)

e — (HKS$" million)
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Overall review

In 2013, the Group recorded turnover of HK$47,979,000 (2012:
HK$87,328,000) and profit attributable to owners of the parent
of HK$397,242,000 (2012: HK$359,651,000). Basic earnings
per share amounted to HK¢8.57 (2012: HK¢7.70).

Knitting and textile business

In 2013, the purchase orders received by #TTERG G4 ET4ER
KAMRAF (“Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu”) reduced obviously as
compared to 2012 due to a downturn in the industry of knitting
and textile business. The turnover was HK$47,979,000 (2012:
HK$87,328,000) and the sales volume was approximately
2,219 tonnes (2012: 3,135 tonnes). The gross profit rate was
11% (2012: 12%). The knitting and textile business segment
recorded loss of HK$1,157,000 (2012: profit of HK$2,743,000)
for the year.

Aero-technology related business

The Group is entitled to share 80% of the net income in
relation to Project EC120 operated by AVIC International
Holding Corporation (“AVIC International”), a substantial
shareholder of the Company. 9 EC120 helicopters were sold in
2013. No turnover was recorded by the Group for both 2013
and 2012 as a breakeven was recorded by AVIC International
from the operations of Project EC120 which was because
AVIC International agreed that its indirect expenses allocated
to Project EC120, if any, shall not exceed its share of income
net of direct costs and expenses from the operations of Project
EC120. As a result, the aero-technology related business
segment did not contribute any profit to the Group for the year
(2012: Nil).
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Others

As disclosed in the announcement and circular of the Company
dated 10 April 2013 and 6 May 2013, respectively, the
Group and all other shareholders of Sinbo Investment Limited
("Sinbo"”) entered into a sale and purchase agreement on 8
April 2013 with Peace Map Holding Limited (formerly known
as Mongolia Investment Group Limited) and its directly wholly-
owned subsidiary, Jichang Investments Limited (“Jichang”),
to dispose of their entire equity interests in Sinbo to Jichang
(the “Disposal”). The Group held 22.66% equity interest in
Sinbo which had been classified as asset held for sale at its net
carrying value of HK$60,000,000 as at 31 December 2012.
On 2 August 2013, the Disposal was completed as disclosed
in the announcement dated 2 August 2013. As a result, a
gain on disposal of associates of HK$358,423,000 (2012:
HK$19,958,000) was recorded by the Group.

During the year, the Group disposed of certain listed
investments and recorded net gain on disposal of available-for-
sale investments of HK$140,209,000 (2012: HK$223,313,000).
In addition, the Group recorded share of profits of the joint
venture and associates in an aggregate of HK$28,838,000
(2012: HK$207,650,000). The decrease was mainly because
the joint venture recorded a profit drop for the year as there
was a decrease in the gain arising from the disposal of its
available-for-sale investments during the year. The Group
also recorded bank interest income of HK$17,642,000 (2012:
HK$14,137,000) for the year. Nevertheless, during the
year, a provision for impairment of loans to an associate of
HK$19,000,000 (2012: Nil) was made as the associate has been
loss-making in recent years.
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PROSPECTS

The Group, as an investment holding company, is committed to

making investments in the aero-technology related business and
other fields, and aims to enhance its value and create long-term
return for its shareholders in terms of returns on investments
and operating profits. Given that China is encouraging the
development of its aviation industry, particularly the reform of
low-altitude airspace management, the aero-technology related
business will have a golden opportunity for development in
future. Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu owns extensive industry
experience and established customer base. Nevertheless, as
the prosperity of the knitting and textile business declines as
a result of the condition of the macro economy, the Group is
cautiously optimistic about the prospect of the business. The
Group will identify the projects with a bright development
prospect, and will continue to review and optimise its business
portfolios.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation
to my fellow directors and all our staff for their support, hard
work and dedication.

By order of the Board

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
Wu Guangquan

Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERENWE DT
FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, capital structure and financial resources

The Group has consistently maintained sufficient working
capital. As at 31 December 2013, the Group had current
assets of HK$1,243,325,000 (2012: HK$1,180,482,000),
including cash and bank balances and time deposits in an
aggregate of HK$1,079,391,000 (2012: HK$1,031,415,000).
The Group's current liabilities as at 31 December 2013 were
HK$117,060,000 (2012: HK$92,972,000).

During the year, the Company repurchased a total of
31,190,000 shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited at prices ranging from HK$0.305
to HK$0.36 per share for an aggregate consideration with
the relevant expenses totalling HK$10,600,000. All of
these repurchased shares were cancelled during the year.
Furthermore, 10,616,000 shares of the Company repurchased
in 2012 were also cancelled during the year.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s equity attributable
to owners of the parent amounted to HK$2,225,230,000
(2012: HK$1,952,617,000), comprising issued capital of
HK$461,959,000 (2012: HK$466,140,000) and reserves of
HK$1,763,271,000 (2012: HK$1,486,477,000). The Group's
outstanding bank borrowings as at 31 December 2013
amounted to HK$40,382,000 (2012: HK$14,625,000). The
Group’s gearing ratio, calculated on the basis of total bank
borrowings as a percentage of equity attributable to owners of
the parent, was 2% (2012: 1%).

The Group’s banking facilities are mainly utilised for general
working capital requirements.

Charges on the Group’s assets

Details of the charges on the Group’s assets are set out in note
33(a) to the financial statements.

5t %55 [0 B
EenEM BXAEBRUBER

REB -—BERBARCEEERL R_F
— =%+ -A=+—H AEEERH
& E1,243,325,0008 T (= & — = F:
1,180,482,000/%7T) + HH BER & RIB1T4H
17 N SE BiTF 304 $£1,079,391,00008 7T (—F—
— 4 :1,031,415,00087C) - REBR —_FT —
=+ A=+—HZRBE{ER117,060,000
BL (ZZT— =4 : 92,972,000/ 7T) °

F R A2 A S RR0.305% T £0.36/8 7T
WERKCEEBARXSMBRARERHR
31,190,000l A AR - BREERBEE
FA & #£10,600,0005%8 7T © FT A 5% L B B AR 5
ERFERETHE I RZTE—_FEB
10,616,000 8 22X R IR0 TR E AN FF AR ESE -

R-ZB—=F+-A=+—0 " A&£EZ&2Q
RIFTA & E(R 25 A2,225,230,0000 T (=&
—— 4 :1,952,617,000/87C) * BB ETHRAE
461,959,000/ 7T (= Z — — £ : 466,140,000
B Ir) Mo fE#1,763,271,0008 T (T — =
% :1,486,477,000%7T) FT4AAK - NEBER =
T—=F+_A=+—HZRKEERTERAE
40,382,000 7T (=& — — 4 : 14,625,000/%
To) c AEB 2 EARBERRARITEEGER
RIFTBEEREEE AL ER2% (25—
TF 1 1%) e

AEEZBTEEEEAREN—REEES
MES o

SEEEEN

ERAREEEERT ZFBHN YRR T
33(a) °



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMZEIXEKRER (F8) BRAA

Annual Report 2013
“E-ZFER

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates

The Group's foreign currency exposures primarily arise from
certain sales or purchases by operating units in currencies
other than the units’ functional currency. In view of the fact
that the Group tries to match its assets and liabilities with the
same currency, the Group's exposure to foreign currency risk is
minimal.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save for the transactions described elsewhere in this annual
report, the Group had no other material acquisitions or
disposals during the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the significant contingent liabilities of the Group are
set out in note 41 to the financial statements.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2013, there were 68 (2012: 105) employees
in the Group. Staff remuneration packages are determined in
consideration of market conditions and the performance of the
individuals concerned, and are subject to review from time to
time. The Group also provides other staff benefits including
medical and life insurance, and grants discretionary incentive
bonuses and share options to eligible staff based on their
performance and contributions to the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENREESEZERE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Guangquan, aged 51, has been an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Company since March 2010. He is
also a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. Wu holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration and
is a senior accountant. He is the president of AVIC International
Holding Corporation (“AVIC International”) and a director of
AVIC International (HK) Group Limited (“AVIC International
(HK) Group”), both of which are substantial shareholders of
the Company. Mr. Wu has extensive experience in finance,
administration and management. He is also an executive
director and the Chairman of AVIC International Holdings
Limited (“AVIC IHL"), a company listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), and was a
director and the chairman of Tianma Microelectronics Co., Ltd.
(“Tianma"), a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
until 16 June 2013.

Mr. Pan Linwu, aged 49, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since February 2008 and appointed Deputy
Chairman of the Company with effect from 28 January 2013.
He holds a Master's degree in Aeronautical Engineering, a
Bachelor’'s degree in Engineering and a Postgraduate Diploma
in Financial Accounting, and is a professional senior accountant.
Mr. Pan served at the Ministry of Aviation Industry and the
audit department of the Ministry of Aero-Space Industry. In
1993, he was transferred to AVIC International and served as
deputy director and director of the audit division. Mr. Pan is
an executive vice president and the chief financial officer of
AVIC International, and, a director of AVIC International (HK)
Group and Tacko International Limited (“Tacko”), which is a
substantial shareholder of the Company. He has many years’
experience in financial management, supervision and audit,
and has substantial experience in the area of finance, capital
operation and risk management. Mr. Pan is also an executive
director of AVIC IHL.
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Mr. You Lei, aged 45, has been an Executive Director of
the Company since 28 January 2013. He holds an Executive
Master’'s degree in Business Administration, a Master’'s degree
in Business Administration and a Bachelor’s degree in Electronic
Engineering, and is a senior engineer. Mr. You is also an
executive vice president of AVIC International and a director
of AVIC International (HK) Group. He has extensive experience
in business administration. Mr. You is an executive director of
AVIC IHL and has been appointed as the vice chairman with
effect from 23 August 2013. He is also a director of Tianma
and has been appointed as the chairman with effect from 18
June 2013.

Mr. Ji Guirong, aged 52, has been an Executive Director,
a Deputy Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company since September 2001. He holds a Master’s degree
in Engineering Management and a Bachelor’'s degree in
Engineering and is a senior engineer. Mr. Ji is responsible for
the Group's overall management and development of corporate
strategies in relation to corporate finance, mergers and
acquisitions, project investments and diversification activities.
He is also an executive vice president of AVIC International, a
director of AVIC International (HK) Group, Tacko, Speed Profit
Enterprises Limited (“Speed Profit”, a substantial shareholder
of the Company) and certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Ji is a non-executive director and the chairman of China
Environmental Investment Holdings Limited (“CEIH"”, an
associate of the Company listed on the Stock Exchange) and
was a director and the vice chairman of Navinfo Co., Ltd., a
company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange until 26 January
2014.

Mr. Zhang Chuanjun, aged 43, joined the Company in
October 2003 as the Chief Financial Officer and has been
an Executive Director of the Company since February 2008.
He holds a Master’'s degree and a Bachelor’'s degree in
Management Accounting and is a senior accountant. Mr.
Zhang is responsible for the Group’s corporate finance,
accounting and treasury functions. He is also a deputy chief
financial officer of AVIC International, the chief financial officer
of AVIC International (HK) Group and, a director of Speed
Profit and certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhang
has over 21 years of experience in accounting and finance.
He is an executive director and a vice president of CEIH, and
an executive director of Peace Map Holding Limited (formerly
known as Mongolia Investment Group Limited), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange.
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EENREESECEE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond, aged 61, has been a Non-
executive Director of the Company since May 1999. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics and a Master of Science
degree in Business Administration. Mr. Ip is also a member of
executive committee and deputy managing director of Cheung
Kong (Holdings) Limited, an executive director and deputy
chairman of Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited,
the senior vice president and chief investment officer of CK
Life Sciences Int'l., (Holdings) Inc., a non-executive director
of ARA Asset Management Limited (an Asian real estate
fund management company listed in Singapore), TOM Group
Limited, Real Nutriceutical Group Limited, Shougang Concord
International Enterprises Company Limited (all being listed
companies), ARA Asset Management (Fortune) Limited as the
manager of Fortune REIT and Hui Xian Asset Management
Limited as the manager of Hui Xian REIT, and a director of ARA
Trust Management (Suntec) Limited as the manager of Suntec
REIT. Fortune REIT is listed in Hong Kong and Singapore, Hui
Xian REIT is listed in Hong Kong whereas Suntec REIT is listed in
Singapore.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David, /r, s8s, aged 70, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
May 1999. He is also a member and the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. Chu received his Master of Business Administration degree
from Harvard University after degrees in Electrical Engineering
and Management at Northeastern University and was awarded
an honorary Doctor of Public Service degree from Northeastern
University. He worked for a number of sizeable international
corporations such as Bank of America, General Electric Co.
and Jardine Matheson & Company Limited. Mr. Chu is an
independent non-executive director of Chuang’s China
Investments Limited, Chuang’s Consortium International Limited
and Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group Limited, all being listed
on the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Li Ka Fai, David, aged 59, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since December 2007. He is
also a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of
Science honours degree in Chemistry and Administration. He
is the deputy managing partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co. CPA
(Practising). Mr. Li is also a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, UK as well as The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators, UK and an associate member of
The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales. He
is an independent non-executive director of China Merchants
Holdings (International) Company Limited, China-Hongkong
Photo Products Holdings Limited, Cosmopolitan International
Holdings Limited, Goldlion Holdings Limited and Shanghai
Industrial Urban Development Group Limited, all being listed on
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Li Zhaoxi, aged 66, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since September 2004. He
is also a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr.
Li holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration. He is a
senior research fellow of and served as a deputy director at
the Enterprise Research Institute of the Development Research
Center under the State Council of the People’s Republic of
China. Mr. Li has carried out research on corporate reforms
and management for over 29 years. He is an independent
director of Liaoning Hongyang Energy Resource Invest Co., Ltd,
a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhang Hao, aged 40, Deputy Chief Financial Officer,
joined the Group in December 2010 and is responsible to assist
the Chief Financial Officer for the Group's corporate finance,
accounting and treasury functions. He holds a Master’s degree
and a Bachelor’s degree in Accounting and is a member of The
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a senior
accountant. He has over 19 years of experience in accounting
and finance. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

EEREEEEBZEBE

TREXRE S9% BE_TEELF T AW
EARREIIFNTES - FRERBFHEIR
REABERZEGRFMEZEEGNE - FEAR
BILBEREERBEELEN - FREBRR/F
SREAMEBRBATERA - TRENS
BRGNS EE RGN - KEFHQ
RETHASMRBASAUERTBRARLS
EFREBRARBLABHSFEIMAES
8- ZRABRLEHARBERAERRAR  FE
RESMEEBERAR  WEEEREEBRA
A 2MREBERAT R EBEFENHHME
SEARARBYIFATES (LA ARZ2H
BB P ET)

FhEEE 6651 B _TTMFAALER
REABYIFRTEE - TRERKHEARRF
EZZEGKE - FREFAIRERELSR
- FELERBTPEEEERERATHOEE
MEMERARBALBHERBME - FHAE
WELXNPEREEPTERTIFR29%F - FRE
BHER LEBRBHFRXZM LT 2 BELABER
BRERNABRARBEILES -

EESE

RIEXE 405 BIMHRE —T-FF L+
“AMAREE  YEERHMBREREAR
SEZEEBE - SR RVERERS - 5RLE

FAESTEELRBLEN  YRTEEMS
AEVAR SR EEE - RELEESH MBS
EHEABI9F LR - RAEERBFHEARFE
THEBRRES -

"



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMZETERREZER (F8) BRAA

Annual Report 2013
“E-ZFER

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
N 'M\Aiﬁﬂ:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain good standards of
corporate governance practices by emphasizing transparency,
accountability and responsibility to its shareholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company applied
the principles of, and complied with all the code provisions
and, where applicable, the recommended best practices of the
(the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

“Corporate Governance Code”
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), except as noted hereunder:

1. all Non-executive Directors are appointed without
specific terms (code provision A.4.1), detail of which are
mentioned under the section headed “NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS” in this report;

2. the Company does not have a nomination committee (code
provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4), details of which are mentioned
under the section headed “BOARD OF DIRECTORS” in this
report; and

3. the Chairman of the board of Directors (the “Board”)
was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held in May 2013 as he was on an overseas
engagement (code provision E.1.2).

The Company will periodically review and improve its corporate
governance practices with reference to the latest development
of corporate governance.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
(the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers”

Company’s code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by its Directors. A reminder is served by the Company to each
Director twice annually of the black out period that the Director
cannot deal in the securities and derivatives (if any) of the
Company.
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Directors are required to notify the Chief Executive Officer and
receive a dated written acknowledgement before dealing in
the securities and derivatives (if any) of the Company. In the
case of the Chief Executive Officer himself, he must notify the
Chairman and receive a dated written acknowledgement before
any dealing.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
as set out in the Model Code throughout the year 2013.

The Company has also established a written guideline no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transaction by
relevant employees (include any employee of the Company or
a director or employee of a subsidiary or holding company of
the Company, who, because of such office or employment, are
likely to be in possession of inside information in relation to the
Company or its securities). No incident of non-compliance was
noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board which has the
responsibility for leadership and control of the Company. The
Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s
affairs.

Currently, the Board comprises five Executive Directors,
including Chairman and two Deputy Chairmen, and four Non-
executive Directors, including three Independent Non-executive
Directors. Mr. You Lei joined the Board as Executive Director
and Mr. Pan Linwu was appointed as a Deputy Chairman on 28
January 2013. In addition, Mr. Jiang Wei resigned as Executive
Director and Deputy Chairman, and Mr. Liu Rongchun resigned
as Executive Director, both effective on 28 January 2013. Save
as above, all other existing Directors served for the whole year
2013. The biographical details of the Directors are set out on
pages 8 to 11 of this annual report. There is no relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship) between Board members.
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At each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years.
The Directors to retire in every year shall be those who have
been longest in office since their last election but as between
persons who became Directors on the same day those to retire
shall (unless they otherwise agree between themselves) be
determined by lot. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-
election. A new Director appointed by the Board (in the case
of filling a casual vacancy or an addition to the existing Board)
after the preceding annual general meeting shall subject to
retirement and shall then be eligible for re-election at the first
general meeting after his appointment.

The Company does not have a nomination committee. The
Board is directly in charge of nomination of directors. In
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, the Board shall
have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board but so that the number of directors as
appointed shall not exceed the maximum number determined
from time to time by the members in general meeting. For
nomination, consideration will be made to the qualifications
and capabilities of the nominated individual.

At present, the Company does not consider it necessary to
have a nomination committee as the Board is responsible for
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and
the appointment of new Directors from time to time to ensure
that it has a balanced composition of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the businesses of the
Company, and the Board is also responsible for assessing the
independence of each Independent Non-executive Director and
reviewing the succession plan for the Directors, in particular the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

In considering the new appointment of Mr. You Lei as Executive
Director in January 2013, the Board assessed him on criteria
including but not limited to integrity, independent mindedness,
experience, skill and ability to commit time and effort to carry
out his duties and responsibilities effectively.
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The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (“the
Policy”) on 23 August 2013 which sets out the approach
to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order
to maintaining a competitive advantage of the Board. The
Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to the talents, skills, regional and industry experience,
The Board will

consider and if appropriate, set measurable objectives to

background, gender and other qualities.

implement the Policy and review such objectives to ensure
their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives. The Board will review the Policy,
from time to time, to ensure its continued effectiveness.

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors
its financial performance and maintains effective oversight over
the management. The Board members are fully committed
to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximize the
shareholders’ value in the long run, and have aligned the
Group’s goals and directions with the prevailing economic and
market conditions.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions under the requirement of the CG Code.
The major role and functions of the Board regarding its
corporate governance include:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees of the
Company and Directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this report.
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The following is a summary of the work of the Board in respect
of corporate governance matters during the year 2013:

1. adopted a board diversity policy;

2. performed corporate governance duties under the CG
Code;

3. reviewed the Company’s corporate governance practices;

4. reviewed the connected transactions and the continuing
connected transactions of the Group (if any);

5. reviewed the compliance with the CG Code; and

6. reviewed of the effectiveness of the internal controls and
risk management systems of the Company through the
Audit Committee.

The senior management of the Company are delegated
with responsibilities in the day-to-day management and
administration of the Company and make operational and
business decisions within the control and delegation framework
of the Company.

The Company has issued formal letters of appointment for
Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal actions against its Directors and officers. The
Company reviews the extent of this insurance each year.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary who is responsible for ensuring that
board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are
followed; and also regularly updates the Board on governance
and regulatory matters. Any Director, in the furtherance of
his or her duties, may take independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstance through the Chairman at the expense
of the Company. The availability of professional advice extends

to the Audit and Remuneration Committees.
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Minutes of Board meetings are taken by the Company Secretary
and, together with any supporting Board papers, are available
to all Board members. During the year 2013, four regular Board

meetings were held by the Company.

The attendance of individual Directors at regular Board
meetings and other Committee meetings as well as general
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meetings during the year 2013 are set out in the table below:

Number of regular meetings or meetings

CRERRE

Exe e BB ARIMELT - EREME
MMESeXt AHESEMAKESH -
R-ZFB—ZFR ARBERTHREFTEE
g -

REEN T =—FRAHFEFTEHEELR
HhZE Q@R ULBERARENLEHN TE -

Number of
general meetings

attended/held attended/held
HE/ ETEHEEAER Y HE/ BTRRAERY
Remuneration Audit
Board Committee ~ Committee  Annual Special
Director = Ezg FMzEEE BN ZES BE 5l
Executive Directors HITEE
Wu Guangquan Ry 4/4 212 - 0/1 0/1
Pan Linwu LN 4/4 - - ”n "N
You Lei miE 3/4 - - 0/1 0/1
(appointed on 28 January 2013) (R-F—=F—H
ZF/\AEZEF)
Ji Guirong FER 4/4 - - 11 11
Zhang Chuanjun KEE 4/4 - - 0/1 0/1
Jiang Wei ZE 0/0 - - 0/0 0/0
(resigned on 28 January 2013) (R=F—=F—H
Z+/HEHF)
Liu Rongchun 2|55 0/0 - - 0/0 0/0
(resigned on 28 January 2013) (R=F—=F—f
Z+/AEHE)
Non-executive Director HHTEE
Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond i 4/4 - - 01 01
Independent Non-executive Directors B I/ TEE
Chu Yu Lin, David RS 44 2/2 212 on on
Li Ka Fai, David TRIE 4/4 2/2 2/2 11 11
Li Zhaoxi FIkER 4/4 - 2/2 01 01

R-ZB—ZFR TFEAFUTESR (BHES
VHERITER) AREATESHENERT
BT -RE#H - BERAFA S R=F
—ZFRBHETRERFHAE -

During the year 2013, a meeting was held by the Chairman
with the Non-executive Directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors) without presence of the Executive
Directors. Save for the annual general meeting, one special

general meeting was held during the year 2013.
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TEERBRE

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL

DEVELOPMENT

According to the records provided by the Directors, the

Directors received the following training during the year 2013:

EERIIREERE

REEFRENESE  EFR-F-=FRE
ST

Type of continuous professional
development programmes
FEEXRETEER
Reading materials Attending briefing

and updates sessions/seminars

Director BEE MEMBREFEN HESNE HHE
Executive Directors HITEE
Wu Guangquan RHE v/
Pan Linwu EME v/
You Lei ==k v
(appointed on 28 January 2013) (R-ZF—=F—H
ZFNAEZ(F)
Ji Guirong ES- LS v v/
Zhang Chuanjun RIEE 4 4
Jiang Wei =& - -
(resigned on 28 January 2013) (R-—ZFE—=F—H
=+ /VHEFE)
Liu Rongchun BIA - -
(resigned on 28 January 2013) (R-ZFE—=F—H
=+ /VHEFHEF)
Non-executive Director FHITEF
Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond EEe 4 v
Independent Non-executive Directors — B HHiTEF
Chu Yu Lin, David Nl v/
Li Ka Fai, David BRIE v v
Li Zhaoxi ZJKER v/
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the role of the
Chairman is separated from that of the Chief Executive Officer.
Currently, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are Mr. Wu Guangquan and Mr. Ji Guirong
respectively.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its role
and for setting its agenda and taking into account any matters
proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
Agendas and accompanying Board papers are circulated where
possible at least three days before the time of a Board meeting.
The Chairman is also responsible for making sure all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings. The
Chief Executive Officer is delegated with the authorities to
manage the business of the Group in all aspects effectively.

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer has been clearly established and set out
in writing.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skill and
experience to the Group. They serve the important function
of providing adequate checks and balances for safeguarding
the interests of shareholders and the Company as a whole.
The Board considers that three out of the four Non-executive
Directors are independent in character and judgment and fulfill
the independence guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

All Non-executive Directors including Independent Non-
executive Directors are appointed without specific terms, but
are subject to retirement by rotation as explained above under
section headed "BOARD OF DIRECTORS”.
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On 1 January 2013, the Board consisted of ten Directors. Three
of the ten Directors were Independent Non-executive Directors,
which was below one-third of the Board (as required under
rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules). The Company published an
announcement on 31 December 2012 explaining details of
this non-compliance with rule 3.10A. Following the change
in Directors announced by the Company on 28 January 2013,
the number of Directors was reduced from ten to nine, of
which three Directors are Independent Non-executive Directors
(representing one-third of the Board) and accordingly, the
Company has complied with rule 3.10A from that date.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one
Executive Director, Mr. Wu Guangquan, and two Independent
Chu Yu Lin, David
David. The Remuneration

Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Ka Fai,

Committee is responsible for making recommendations to

(as chairman) and Mr. Li

the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration. The role, authority
and duties of the Remuneration Committee are clearly set out
in its terms of reference.

The Remuneration Committee met twice during the year 2013
to review and recommend the remuneration of Non-executive
Directors and to review and approve the remuneration
packages of Executive Directors and senior management. The
attendance of each member is set out in the table above under
section headed “BOARD OF DIRECTORS".

The primary goal of the remuneration policy on executive
remuneration packages is to enable the Company to retain
and motivate Executive Directors by linking their compensation
with performance as measured against corporate objectives.
Under the policy, no director or any of his associate is allowed
in deciding his own remuneration. During the year 2013,
the Remuneration Committee has adopted the model “to
determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management”.
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Details of remuneration of members of senior management of
the Company by band for the year ended 31 December 2013
are set out below:

[

Remuneration

EEEREWE

BHE-_ZT—=F+-"A=+—BILEE A2
RERESEZHMEeSHETIOT

Number of
individuals

A

Nil to HK$1,000,000 21,000,000/ 7T

Details of Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16
to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established
in compliance with rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the
purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group’s financial reporting process and internal controls. It
currently comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors
of the Company, namely Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David (as chairman),
Mr. Li Ka Fai, David and Mr. Li Zhaoxi. The Audit Committee
met twice during the year 2013 to review the interim and final
results, the interim and annual reports and internal control
procedures of the Group. The attendance of each member is
set out in the table above under the section headed “BOARD
OF DIRECTORS". The duties of the Audit Committee are clearly
set out in its terms of reference.

Full minutes of meetings are kept and sent to all members of
the Board. Matters raised at the meetings were reported back
to the Board so that due consideration was given as to the
action to be taken.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young are the auditors of the Company. The services
provided by them include audit and non-audit. Fees for
auditing (including interim review) and non-auditing (including
accounting and tax advisory) services for the year ended 31
December 2013 amount to HK$1,909,000 and HK$266,000

respectively.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are responsible for monitoring the preparation of
financial statements of each financial period and ensuring those
financial statements provide a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for the
relevant financial period. In preparing the financial statements,
the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies
and applied them consistently, adopted Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, made a prudent and reasonable
judgment and estimation, and, prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The Company has timely announced and published its financial
results in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The auditors are responsible for forming an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on those financial statements
and to report their opinion solely to the shareholders of the
Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”), and

for no other purpose.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting
responsibilities is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report of
this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's system of
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness through
the Audit Committee. The Group’s system of internal control
plays a key role in the management of risks that is significant
to the fulfillment of its business objectives. Procedures have
been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorized
use or disposition, for maintaining proper accounting records;
and for the reliability of financial information used within the
business or for publication. The procedures provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material errors, losses or
fraud. Procedures have also been designed for compliance of
applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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A review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control system covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions, was conducted at the end of 2013 by
senior management of the Company. The result was reported
to the Audit Committee and thereafter to the Board. No
material deficiency was identified. During the year 2013, the
Board considered that the Company’s internal control system
was adequate and effective and the Company has complied
with the provisions on internal control of the CG Code. The
Board confirms that systems and procedures are in place to
identify, control and report on significant risks involved in
achieving the Company’s strategic objectives. Exposures to
these risks are monitored by the Board with the support of

various committees and senior management.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Leung Yuen Chee, Sara, the Company Secretary, is an
employee of the Company and responsible directly to the
Board. She has complied with all the qualification, experience

and training requirement under the Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The updated Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of
the Company had been posted on the Company’s website at
www.avic.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s designated website
at www.hkexnews.hk. During the year 2013, there were no
change in the Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of the
Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT
Convening of a special general meeting by shareholders

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company and the Companies
Act, the Board shall, on the requisition of shareholders holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of such of the paid-up capital of the Company as at
the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene a
special general meeting of the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company (the "Registered Office"”),
which is presently situated at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street,
several documents in like form each signed by one or more

Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda, and may consist of
requisitionists.

If the Board does not within twenty-one days from the date
of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting, the requisitionist, or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the
said date.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, either any number of
shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date
of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates; or not less than one hundred shareholders,
can request the Company in writing to (a) give to shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next annual general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to
shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
sent to them any statement of not more than one thousand
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed

resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

24

R R AE R
BRERBARREBRIAE

RIBEARBARERARE  REAAIRARF
BRRREREZEHERATIR+DZ—2
BRREXZFEER  EFSABAEHRERKRRE
FrRIAE

2FEVRVIAEHEAN  WHABHSFAR
ENRERARB M ER ([T SEE] -
IR I A& Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda) © MEF =0 HE
FHREER ZXHEK  MEBHXHEEa—%
FIAE2FAESE -

HWEEGAUBNE2FARREFSERR T
—BHABERAREH  MZ2FA (KEFRK
EREFBABRREFBULEZERMAL) AT
TAREZ HERETAEBRZEMERET
SRERE2FEE AEF =R EMERET -

m

N

o

RBRRAELREZRZER

REBARNE  HARRBETFINZEFE
REERAENER LREZMARR 2R
ER_AHZ— AR —BEERR AR

ARARXEBER : ()ABEZRT —EK
RAGREZRRELBE - AEFEMATEE

RZEZ LEABRLARZERE LR R
BRE RORAREZXTARRRGRS

BREH A EE - TFRAE - AEARZ
SR LREZAARMLEENHRIE 2 FE -

X2,



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMETXEBEBREZER (FE8) BRAF

Annual Report 2013
“E-ZFER

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be
deposited at the Registered Office with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses, not less
than six weeks before the meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution; and not less than one week
before the meeting in the case of any other requisition.
Provided that if, an annual general meeting is called for a date
six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall
be deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes
thereof.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

Regarding the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director, please refer to the procedures made available under
the section Corporate Governance of the Company’s website at
www.avic.com.hk.

Procedures for directing shareholder's enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose
contact details are as follow:

Unit B, 15th Floor, United Centre
95 Queensway, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 2915 0867

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
general meetings of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to fair disclosure, comprehensive
and transparent reporting. Effective communication with
shareholders has always been one of the Company’s priorities.
Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
shareholders in a timely manner through various formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports,

announcements and circulars.
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The Company has established a shareholders’ communication
policy which is subject to review on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness.

General meetings of the Company provide good opportunities
for direct communications between the Board and its
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board, all other
Directors and senior management endeavor to attend any
general meeting of the Company and answer queries from
shareholders. Separate resolution is proposed for each issue by
the chairman of the meeting at each general meeting. Notice
of general meeting is served together with the circular to the
shareholders at least twenty clear business days or twenty-
one days, whichever is the longer, before an annual general
meeting and at least ten clear business days or twenty-one
days, whichever is the longer, before a meeting called for
passing of a special resolution, and, at least ten clear business
days or fourteen days, whichever is the longer, before a
meeting other than an annual general meeting or a meeting for
the passing of a special resolution.

Detail procedures for conducting a poll are to be explained
by the chairman of the meeting at the commencement of
the general meeting. Any questions raised from shareholders
regarding voting by way of a poll are also be answered by the
chairman of the meeting.

The 2013 annual general meeting of the Company was held
on 22 May 2013. At the meeting, separate resolution was
proposed by the chairman of the meeting in respect of each
separate issue, including re-election of retiring directors, and
voted by way of poll. The Company announced the results
of the poll in the manner prescribed under the Listing Rules.
The directors including a member of the audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company attended the 2013
annual general meeting and have effective communication
with shareholders. Besides, the Company held a special general
meeting on 22 May 2013 to consider and approve a major
transaction. The directors including an independent non-
executive director of the Company attended the special general
meeting held on 22 May 2013 to answer questions relating to
the major transaction.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended
31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 42 to 197 of
this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2013.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and
restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 198 of
this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Company and the Group during the year are set out in note
13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 37(b) to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2013, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$151,924,847. In addition, the Company’s share premium
account, in the amount of HK$164,476,213, may be distributed
in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, the Company purchased certain of its shares
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and these shares were subsequently cancelled by
the Company. The summary details of those transactions are as

(A
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R BREMEI70) Rir A S E S K
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follows:
Price per share

Number of BRER Total
shares Highest Lowest price paid
repurchased BS BIE X FHEE
Month fBmE R 5 HK$ HK$ HK$
A& Z#H BT BT BT
April 2013 —E—=4FmMmA 6,096,000 0.320 0.305 1,902,320
May 2013 —E—=%AA 1,920,000 0.355 0.330 665,420
June 2013 —E—=%A 8,346,000 0.355 0.310 2,799,290
July 2013 —E—=%F+AH 14,828,000 0.360 0.335 5,199,910
31,190,000 10,566,940

Total expenses on shares BORN2EER
repurchased 32,564
10,599,504
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All 31,190,000 repurchased shares were cancelled during the
year and the issued share capital of the Company is reduced
by the par value of HK$3,119,000. In addition, the premium
together with the relevant expenses paid for the repurchase of
the shares in an aggregate of HK$7,480,504 has been charged
to the share premium account.

The purchase of the Company’s shares during the year was
effected by the Directors, pursuant to the mandate from
shareholders received at the last annual general meeting, with
a view to benefiting shareholders as a whole by enhancing the
net asset value per share and earnings per share of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of the Group’s purchases attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers are as follows:
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2013 2012
—E-=F g
% %
Percentage of purchases: MRBEAE DL
From the largest supplier RE A ERE 21 29
From the five largest suppliers RERAEER 62 50

The percentages of the Group’s sales attributable to the
Group’s major customers are as follows:

AEEFEEPAEASEEZHEHER LN
I

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——4F
% %

Percentage of sales: HHEHEBAD T
To the largest customer KEZARP 18 29
To the five largest customers RERARER 73 72

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers and customers.
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DIRECTORS

The board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) during
the year and up to the date of this report comprises:

Executive Directors:

Wu Guangquan

Pan Linwu

You Lei (appointed on 28 January 2013)

Ji Guirong

Zhang Chuanjun

Jiang Wei (resigned on 28 January 2013)

Liu Rongchun (resigned on 28 January 2013)

Non-executive Director:

Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Chu Yu Lin, David
Li Ka Fai, David
Li Zhaoxi

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, Messrs. Zhang
Chuanjun, Chu Yu Lin, David and Pan Linwu will retire by
rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors of his independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The
Company as at the date of this report still considered all the
Independent Non-executive Directors as independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 8 to 11
of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual

general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of employees (including Directors and
senior management) is determined with reference to their
qualification, expertise and experience in the industry,
competence, duties and responsibilities within the Group,
the performance and profitability of the Group as well as
the market benchmark and the prevailing market conditions.
Employees shall also be eligible to receive a discretionary year-
end incentive bonus, which shall be determined by the Group
at its absolute discretion taking into account, inter alia, the
Group's operating performance, market conditions in which
the Group operates and the individual’s performance, payable
at such time as the Group may consider appropriate and
discretionary share options.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of
the Directors in the share capital and underlying shares of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the "Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules, were as follows:
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Long positions in share options of associated
corporation of the Company:

RAEATREBEEZBREZHA

Percentage of
the associated
corporation’s
issued share

capital as at
31 December
2013
Number Capacity R-Z-=F
Name of Relationship of share and nature +ZA=+—H
associated with the  options held  of interest EHEBEE
Name of Director Notes corporation Company Frs =270 BRITRA
BEpE i HHEEEE HAQARZBRE BREHE EaEtE ZEAK
Ji Guirong (a) China Environmental Associate 52,350,000 Beneficial 1.19
FEE Investment Holdings /NS owner
Limited (“CEIH") ERBAA
HEIRRIZE
R AR R
([RERE])
Zhang Chuanjun (b) CEIH Associate 40,000,000 Beneficial 0.91
REE HEIRE /NS owner
EREBA
Notes: st -

(a)

32

)

(i)

On 23 August 2007, Mr. Ji was granted options to subscribe for
an aggregate of 14,900,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each
in CEIH at an exercise price of HK$0.35 per share. With effect
from 23 February 2012, the number and the exercise price of
the share options granted were adjusted from 14,900,000 to
22,350,000 and HK$0.35 per share to HK$0.233 per share
respectively.

On 31 August 2010, Mr. Ji was granted options to subscribe for
an aggregate of 20,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each
in CEIH at an exercise price of HK$0.341 per share. With effect
from 23 February 2012, the number and the exercise price of
the share options granted were adjusted from 20,000,000 to
30,000,000 and HK$0.341 per share to HK$0.227 per share
respectively.

(a)

)

RZZT+FENAZ+=H FELEERES
#t 7] 2 #14,900,0000% & % @ 1E0.20% 7T
ZHERBEBR2EBRE TEEAE
80358 T - RZE—=—F_A=-+=H
B BREZERESRE RTEBE DA H
14,900,0000% 3 2 % 22,350,000/ JA & & %
0.35B THEEEM0.233E T °

RZZE—ZTFNA=+—8 ZTELEERSE
#t 7] 52 #20,000,0008% & % @ 1E0.20% 7T
ZHERBEBR2EBRE TEEAE
0341 T R_E——_F-_A=-+=H
B BREZERESRE RTEBE DA H
20,000,000 78 & Z30,000,0008% LA & & %
0.341BTLHREBEFAR0.2278TT °
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The exercise periods of the options are as follows: BERREITEEANT ¢
Number of share options Exercise period
BRERE T8
7,450,000 1/10/2007 to 31/1/2015
R+ A-AE-T-HE—A=+—8
7,450,000 1/1/2008 to 31/1/2015
—EEN\F—A—AEZZE—RF—A=+—8H
7,450,000 1/7/2008 to 31/1/2015
—TT /\FLA-BE-T-AF—A=1+—H
30,000,000 31/8/2010 to 30/8/2020

T NR=EA+—HEZZT-TFN\A=T+H

52,350,000
No options have been exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year. FR - WEBRECITE  REHREAR - RZF
All the above options remained outstanding as at 31 December 2013. —=F+ZA=+—8H Ll ABRE®NRT

i o

(i)  On 3 January 2006, Mr. Zhang was granted options to subscribe (b)) () RZTZXRF-A=H  REEEEA KA

for an aggregate of 10,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.20 ##%10,000,000% & I% [ {80.20/% 7T 2 F E
each in CEIH at an exercise price of HK$0.20 per share. RRE MR BIRE - TEERFR0.20%
o
(i) On 31 August 2010, Mr. Zhang was granted options to subscribe (i) RZZE—ZTHFENA=+—H RIEEER
for an aggregate of 20,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.20 4 7T % #§20,000,0000% &F A% M {80.207%5
each in CEIH at an exercise price of HK$0.341 per share. With TZHBERREBRERE  TEER
effect from 23 February 2012, the number and the exercise price FRO3MEBTL - R-_TE——F_A=-+=
of the share options granted were adjusted from 20,000,000 Hit  REZEREHRE RITEEDHIA
to 30,000,000 and HK$0.341 per share to HK$0.227 per share 20,000,0000% # £ %30,000,000% A & & I%
respectively. 0.341BTHEEER0.227H8 T °
The exercise periods of the options are as follows: BERRREITEEAINT ¢
Number of share options Exercise period
BREHAE T
5,000,000 1/7/2006 to 31/1/2015
—EERFEA—AEZE-—RF—A=+—8H
5,000,000 1/1/2007 to 31/1/2015
—ETt+E - —HEZZT—hF—A=1—H
30,000,000 31/8/2010 to 30/8/2020

—EEFENR=E+—HEZZT-TFN\A=TH

40,000,000
No options have been exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year. FER - WEBREDITE  WEHEIAR - 2T
All the above options remained outstanding as at 31 December 2013. —=F+ZA=+—8 LA ERERKRT

i o

33



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMETXEEBRER (F8) ERAA
Annual Report 2013

“ET-=FFR

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

Certain Directors have non-beneficial personal equity interests
in certain subsidiaries held for the benefit of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
Directors of the Company had registered an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES”
above and in the section headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME”
below, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company
granted to any Director or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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Bz EERNPEELERREESF R
HIE G PIE352K7A T Lk 2 R SUR R » iR
EIRESTRIZBA G AN QA R B PR 2 R sk
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=

EERBRO[ES 2ER

BEXEEZBMD LA 2R AR ]
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FREMER  BEAENEFAFREFSELZ
LB ARMI8HR FRR LA EBEARAK
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AMBEARMESBEMLE  BHEEMNES
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME
On 13 May 2003, the Company adopted a share option scheme

for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. The share option scheme was valid and effective
for a period of 10 years from the date of its adoption. Further
details of the share option scheme are disclosed in note 36 to
the financial statements.

The share option scheme expired on 12 May 2013. Since the
adoption of the share option scheme, no options have been
granted thereunder. No options have been outstanding and
granted under the share option scheme as at 31 December
2013 (2012: Nil).

As at the date of this report, it is proposed by the Directors that
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, an
ordinary resolution will be proposed to approve and adopt the
new share option scheme in accordance with the Listing Rules
(the “"New Share Option Scheme”). A summary of the terms of
the New Share Option Scheme is set out in the circular of the
Company dated 8 April 2014.

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMEIXERER (F8) ARAF

Annual Report 2013
“E-ZFER

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE
BT E

ARRR_ZEZ=FRAT=BRH—EERK
i e EESBEERAANEEEBE 2K
EHEBMZABER2EE - ZBRESERA
AHMENtFHERER - A ExBERETS
ZRHIGEN I MR M 36

SRR T =HRA+- SR A%
B BB A0 DA R BB o 2
T-Z4+-A=+-0 BERZERE
5B R AT G R AR AR (=B — =4
) °

RAREBH  EFHRARRZEERRE
FAELEZRRE-BAEBRERARE LT
F5 B HE A K B A 3 B AR AT B (13 8 B =t
gl]) - BB Z G BEH N AAFA
HA—FT-NFEMANBZBHA -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER TERRREMCATAROREBRAR
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND 2=

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, the following interests of 5% or R_-ZT—=F+_A=+—H ARQXAREEF
more of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded % K& HAE 5] E 3361517 B 2 #E x5 & o M ATRC 8%
in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company HIZARRRFI5%K A FEBEHITIRAER T ¢
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions:

HE:

Percentage of

the Company's

issued share

capital as at

31 December

2013

Number of R-E-=F

Capacity and ordinary +=A=+-H

Name of shareholders nature of interest shares held ERQFERT

RRER SOREREME  ARETER#E REzBDE

Speed Profit Enterprises Limited ("Speed Profit”) Beneficial owner 508,616,000 11.01
HENERERAR (T8157]) ERBAA

Tacko International Limited (“Tacko") Beneficial owner 1,386,943,000 30.02
ERBAA

Through a controlled 508,616,000 11.01
corporation
BRZIEEE

AVIC International (HK) Group Limited (“AVIC International (HK) Group”) Through a controlled 1,895,559,000 41.03
FEE (B8) £EBERAR ([FRER (F5) £8]) corporation
BBXEEE

AVIC International Holding Corporation (“AVIC International”) Through a controlled 1,895,559,000 41.03
PR ZE R TR ERER AR ([RHER]) corporation
BRI EEE

Aviation Industry Corporation of China ("AVIC") Through a controlled 1,895,559,000 41.03
FEMETEEENA ([FMIZE]) corporation
BRZIEEE
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Note:

Speed Profit is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tacko, which in turn is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC International (HK) Group. AVIC
International (HK) Group is a wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC International,
which in turn is a non wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC. Accordingly, Tacko
is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Speed Profit; and each
of AVIC International (HK) Group, AVIC International and AVIC is deemed
to be interested in the aggregate shares directly held by Speed Profit and
Tacko.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, no person
had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions, which fall within the definition
stipulated in Hong Kong Accounting Standard 24 “Related
Party Disclosures”, undertaken by the Group during the year
are set out in note 42 to the financial statements.

None of the related party transactions mentioned above falls
within the definition of connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, the following Director of the Company had
interests in the following businesses conducted through the
company named below which are considered to compete or be
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules:

Name of Director Name of company

Nature of interest

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMETXEBEBREZER (FE8) BRAF
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EEEHRE
Hrat -

15 F ATackoz 2 E M B A 7+ MTackos # it B B
(B%) EEZ2EMBERA - FMER (F%) S@AT
MERZ2EMBAR - MPMBERAFMIEZIESE
BHIB AT o Ft > TackoW iR AEHHINSFIHE 2K
M2z MAMBEER (B8) £8 - FMEREPMRT
WG BN EER RTacko B E A 2 BN BB HA
W

%LY%&%%’t_g =F+ZHA=+—

CEEATRAEARRRDIEERDPEE
ﬂ%&ﬁ*ﬁ'&)ﬁ 5 R HIE KB 336158 T AR ER
ZREZRIOAE ©

RS RS
REEBRFERNETEBEE B S ED FE245
(BB A HEE) TRERAIZEE RS » #R
VMR 5142 -

BiE LB RSB LT ARAEV4AR IR

EENBEMER Lo ES

F0y - THAAREFERTRARBE T
BN MRSEHBE EDRAERR
AR EE LA B A H R
EHT

Nature of
competing business

EEpE NRER Lok £ BEER
Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond ~ Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited Deputy managing director - Property development and
2z RIE%X (58) BRAQA ElEEF s Investment

- Investment in securities
(collectively defined as
"Excluded Businesses")

- MERRKKRE

- BHERE

(e [HBREK D
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The Board is of the view that the Group is capable of carrying
on its business independently of the Excluded Businesses. When
making decisions on the businesses of the Excluded Businesses
of the Group, Mr. Ip, in the performance of his duties as
Director, has acted and will continue to act in the best interest
of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company and the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2013 have been audited
by Ernst & Young who shall retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

Wu Guangquan
Chairman

Hong Kong
18 March 2014
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Central, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AVIC INTERNATIONAL
HOLDING (HK) LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
42 to 197, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2013, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

BYZHMBRES

Ernst & Young BXE TS Tel B +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower EBTEREEIS Fax {#H: +852 2868 4432
1 Tim Mei Avenue s RE221E ey.com

ZAVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDING
(HK) LIMITED " B fin 28 T 2 B PR3 AR
(B8) BERATZERRE
(RERZESFME T2 ERAE])

M B 5 A | ZAVIC International Holding
(HK) LimitedP BIfiZe TR BBRZER (F8) B
RAR([EAF]) REMBAR (SBIEE
E]) SREREEFI19TENREVHRE -
M ERRBEE T —=F+-_A=+—8H
BARARVBRRE  REZEZBLEFED
RABREEX GETEKEER HAERE
R GREReRERURETESTBRMEAM
P FE AR o

EENGAMBBRRARENEE

FEERERB TR AAGEANESH
B ERIME B D A GO ERE B
RERHEDAERNEANBEE - URM
HESRALBNABED - LR EL TS
%5 20 T E £ R RSE L BB R T 8 B A
S -
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e
EY =&

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
18 March 2014

BYZHMBRES
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS &8 E# &

Year ended 31 December 2013 HZ—ZT—=F+_A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—E-= —E——4F
Notes HK$ HK$
i3 BT =
REVENUE W = 5 47,978,864 87,328,163
Cost of sales #HE R (42,759,878) (77,224,314)
Gross profit EF 5,218,986 10,103,849
Other income and gain HAth U A K F 5 27,471,152 25,247,730
Administrative expenses THEEEHR (46,190,303) (51,615,956)
Other operating income/(expenses), net  E & &g A ~
(Fx%) %% 6 (25,010,073) 649,880
Finance costs bl 7 (2,936,761) (3,050,736)
Net loss on deemed disposal of WRAELEBRENTZ
an associate FEE 19 (7,808,330) -
Gain on disposal of associates HERE N T) 2 FHE 358,423,419 19,958,414
Share of profits and losses of: Db R R EE
Joint venture A% 20 60,838,893 229,743,979
Associates k= /NG (32,001,370) (22,094,004)
Fair value loss on equity investment BRATER ABR®Z
at fair value through profit or loss R E 2 N EEEE (2,620,081) -
Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHHEMNIRE 2
investments 7 A 22(a) 140,209,026 223,313,135
Net loss on derecognition of an BIERERAIH T ER
available-for-sale investment WEZFEE 23(d) (2,031,607) -
Fair value gain/(loss) on derivative TESMmTAEY AFE
financial instruments, net ME(EER) F58 23 4,124,612 (12,671,668)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZFE 38 - 3,028,233
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBE A1 2 A 6 477,687,563 422,612,856
Income tax expense FRiS TR X2 10 (81,012,316) (61,617,712)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AREHF 396,675,247 360,995,144
Attributable to: THIATHEA
Owners of the parent BARIFES 11 397,242,208 359,651,230
Non-controlling interests JEPERL RS (566,961) 1,343,914
396,675,247 360,995,144
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE BRAAEEERFTEA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF EhERAEF
THE PARENT 12
— Basic and diluted - AR EE HK8.57 cents HK7.70 cents

8.577& Al

7.707% 11l
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Year ended 31 December 2013 HZ—ZT—=F+_-_A=1+—HILtFE

2013 2012
—E—= —T—F
Notes HKS$ HKS$
k3 BT BT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AE R 396,675,247 360,995,144
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hith2msE
Other comprehensive income to be REBEHEGESEHN
reclassified to profit or loss in DEEEZAEM
subsequent periods: 2EWEE
Available-for-sale investments: AHEEERNRE
Changes in fair value NEEEH 22 49,571,292 (121,540,836)
Reclassification adjustment for gains SFAGAERRLZ
included in the consolidated statement Tz EFHEAE  22(),
of profit or loss — Gain on disposal — W& ZF)E 23(d) (178,085,155)  (247,950,880)
Income tax effect Frisiic &2 34 34,178,933 93,155,136
(94,334,930) (276,336,580)
Share of other comprehensive income NIEEEREZ
of a joint venture Em2mElas (36,396,187)  (296,679,305)
Share of other comprehensive income SR (aYi kN g
of associates Hith 2 EE 5,103,684 7,276,653
Exchange differences on translation BEFINETSELEZ
of foreign operations E W ZRE 14,045,154 15,629,767
NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME REZHBEEEHIE
TO BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR ZEBZHMEE
LOSS IN SUBSEQUENT PERIODS AND R FEREEHM
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 2EWE (NRBIER)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (111,582,279) (550,109,465)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AERHINHBE
FOR THE YEAR 285,092,968 (189,114,321)
Attributable to: TH)A LR
Owners of the parent S RAMES 11 285,593,172 (190,523,716)
Non-controlling interests AR (500,204) 1,409,395
285,092,968 (189,114,321)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION %4 Bt Ak R &

31 December 2013 —Z—=F+_-A=+—H

2013 2012
—E—= —E-—F
Notes HKS$ HK$
i3 BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BB 13 43,606,420 46,087,240
Prepaid land lease payments AR L ER 14 3,065,639 3,105,075
Goodwill EES 15 - 4,193,707
Intangible asset mAE 16 760,654 950,817
Investment in a joint venture S NAIZIEE 18 339,149,917 314,707,211
Interests in associates /N =2 79 302,363,625 302,951,535
Loans to related companies MEE R FRHENER 26 20,127,389 -
Deposit paid for acquisition of a property WEWZEML N2 iL® 27 - 40,000,000
Financial asset under Project EC120 EC1205BB v IS5 &= 20 = -
Available-for-sale investments AHEEENRE 22 204,523,519 193,975,451
Derivative financial instruments PTESRTA 23 191,429,868 -
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 1,105,027,031 905,971,036
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories 7g 24 3,025,756 2,776,536
Trade and bills receivables EWE FETNRER 25 14,862,874 13,815,192
Loans to an associate B E A RIREAME R 19 12,101,911 12,250,000
Loan to a related company mEE N R ER 26 - 18,750,000
Prepayments, deposits and TEFRIE ~ Re REA
other receivables UL BR K 27 90,930,682 32,461,335
Equity investment at fair value through BAFEFAERZZ
profit or loss AR A& & 28 8,381,000 -
Derivative financial instruments TTEEmT A 23 34,632,277 9,014,631
Pledged time deposits BB EBER 29 382,166 6,625,000
Cash and cash equivalents HeReEE 29 1,079,008,484 1,024,789,556
1,243,325,150 1,120,482,250
Asset classified as held for sale NEABERLENEE 27 - 60,000,000
Total current assets RBEERE 1,243,325,150  1,180,482,250
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEE
Due to a non-controlling shareholder ER—RMEBAR.Z
of a subsidiary FEE RS AR 30 160,833 320,317
Trade and bills payables ENE SRR EE 31 6,571,758 43,823,954
Tax payable FEELIR 58,849,659 16,535,960
Other payables and accruals HpEN B L ETER 32 11,095,205 17,666,439
Interest-bearing bank borrowings HERITER 33 40,382,165 14,625,000
Total current liabilities mEBEERE 117,059,620 92,971,670
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFRE 1,126,265,530 1,087,510,580
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION &4 Bt &k R &
31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-A=+—H

2013 2012
—E-=F —F——F
Notes HKS$ HKS$
k=3 BT Vv
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEABBRBEME 2,231,292,561  1,993,481,616
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEME
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIEAE 34 980,889 35,282,673
Net assets AEFE 2,230,311,672  1,958,198,943
EQUITY ER
Equity attributable to owners of BRAREERLER
the parent
Issued capital BT 35 461,959,100 466,139,700
Reserves i 37(a)  1,763,270,812  1,486,477,279
2,225,229,912  1,952,616,979
Non-controlling interests IFERER 5,081,760 5,581,964
Total equity EmRE 2,230,311,672  1,958,198,943
Ji Guirong Zhang Chuanjun
FER REE
Director Director
o EZE

45



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMETXBERER (F8) BRAH

Annual Report 2013
“E-ZFER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY ZRE B EIR

Year ended 31 December 2013 HZ—ZT—=F+_A=+—HILFE

Share

Issued premium

capital account

BE{IRA RiniEER

Note HK$ HK$

Vi3 BT BT

At 1 January 2012 RZE——%—-fF—H 468,085,100 176,238,216

Profit for the year RERF - -

Other comprehensive income for the year: REEMPEYE -

Changes in fair value of available-for-sale MRNENRE ATEED

investments, net of tax (MEHER) - -

Share of other comprehensive income of a joint venture AEEERAZEMREYE - -

Share of other comprehensive income of associates PEBERRZ B 2 AN A - -

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations BERNEBEE ERER - -

Total comprehensive income for the year ME2EYEES - -

Transfer to reserve fund ERZEES - -

Repurchase of shares BERMH 35 (1,945,400) (2,712,434)

Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAA - -

At 31 December 2012 W-E-—%+-A=1+-H 466,139,700 173,525,782
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY ZRE R B IR
Year ended 31 December 2013 HE—_Z—=F+_FA=+—RHI-EE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAREEEGES
Available-
for-sale
Treasury Share investment Exchange

shares option revaluation Reserve fluctuation Retained Non-controlling Total
reserve reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity

A HERE
ERRHER BIRERA B fEe  EXEDEE BEah At FRE R EsiaE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
T AT T AT T AT T AT T

(note 37(a))
(Hrit37(8)

- 5,100,000 715,077,701 - 23,356,007 763,050,066 2,150,907,090 4,172,569 2,155,079,659
- - - - - 359,651,230 359,651,230 1,343,914 360,995,144
- - (276,336,580) - - - (276,336,580) - (276,336,580)
- - (296,679,305) - - - (296,679,305) - (296,679,305)
- 92,877 - - 7,183,776 - 7,276,653 - 7,276,653
- - - - 15,564,286 - 15,564,286 65,481 15,629,767
- 92,877 (573,015,885) - 22,748,062 359,651,230 (190,523,716) 1,409,395 (189,114,321)
- - - 5,278,662 - (5,278,662) - - -
(2,630,665) - - - - - (7,288,499) - (7,288,499)
- - - - (477,896) - (477,89) - (477,896)
(2,630,665) 5,192,877 142,061,816 5,278,662 45,626,173 1,117,422,634  1,952,616,979 5,581,964  1,958,198,943

47



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMZETERREZER (F8) BRAA

Annual Report 2013
“E-ZFER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &8RS TR
Year ended 31 December 2013 &HZ -_ZE—=F+_-_A=+—HItFE

Share
Issued premium
capital account
BRATRE RBBER
Note HKS HK$
it B V-3
At 1 January 2013 W-E-=%-f-H 466,139,700 173,525,782
Profit for the year RERF - -
Other comprehensive income for the year: MEEMPENS :
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale ARHENRE D TEED
investments, net of tax (MrkEk) = =
Share of other comprehensive income of a joint venture AMEEERAZEMREYE - -
Share of other comprehensive income of associates AEEERFZEMREYE = =
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations BERNEREEVERER = =
Total comprehensive income for the year AERENRLE = =
Transfer to reserve fund ERZEES - -
Cancellation of shares repurchased in 2012 HERZS-—EBERA 35 (1,061,600) (1,569,065)
Repurchase of shares BERMA 35 (3,119,000) (7,480,504)
Deemed disposal of an associate BRALERENT = =
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=%+-A=1-H 461,959,100 164,476,213*
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$1,763,270,812 (2012: HK$1,486,477,279) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

* ZERBRBRASMBHRAERPNEREFE,763,270,8128 T (ZE—ZF -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &8RS TR

Attributable to owners of the parent

Year ended 31 December 2013 HZ—ZT—=F+_-_A=1+—HILtFE

BARREEEERS
Available-
for-sale
Treasury Share investment Exchange

shares option revaluation Reserve fluctuation Retained Non-controlling Total
reserve reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity

ItHERE
ERRHRE BRERE EftRfE fEe  EXRDRG BREA At FERER BREE
HKS HKS$ HKS HKS$ HKS HKS$ HKS HKS$ HKS
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT

(note 37(a))
(W:£37(2))

(2,630,665) 5,192,877 142,061,816 5,278,662 45,626,173  1,117,422,634  1,952,616,979 5,581,964  1,958,198,943
- - - - - 397,242,208 397,242,208 (566,961) 396,675,247
- - (94,334,930) - - - (94,334,930) - (94,334,930)
- - (36,396,187) - - - (36,396,187) - (36,396,187)
- - - - 5,103,684 - 5,103,684 - 5,103,684
- - - - 13,978,397 - 13,978,397 66,757 14,045,154
- - (130,731,117) - 19,082,081 397,242,208 285,593,172 (500,204) 285,092,968
- - - 2,338,684 - (2,338,684) - - -
2,630,665 - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - (10,599,504) - (10,599,504)
- - - - (2,380,735) - (2,380,735) - (2,380,735)
- 5192877 11330699 7,617,346*  62,327,519* 1512,326,158* 2,225229912 5,081,760  2,230,311,672
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS &8 BE&RE R

Year ended 31 December 2013 HZ—ZT—=F+_A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——4F
Notes HK$ HK$
k3 Er BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES E& ZB v HERE
Profit before tax R 5 A1 i 477,687,563 422,612,856
Adjustments for: FHE -
Finance costs MR 7 2,936,761 3,050,736
Share of profits and losses of a DhEERE ML
joint venture and associates NAZ K et (28,837,523) (207,649,975)
Bank interest income RITHBUA 5 (17,641,894) (14,137,489)
Interest income on a convertible bond N TR A i
issued by an associate IR EH 2 FEHA 5 (1,035,517) (849,692)
Interest income on loans to associates A E N R IREMNER
Z MBHA 5 (1,600,364) (2,277,351)
Interest income on other receivables HipU Rz F B A 5 (908,830) (1,126,383)
Interest income on loans to MR D RIREAER
related companies Z A BYA 5 (1,132,076) (1,160,803)
Dividend income from an AEHEN ETREZ
available-for-sale listed investment SR ON 5 (867,853) (4,376,674)
Net loss on deemed disposal of WIS B EBE NG 2
an associate FE1E 19 7,808,330 -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEWE  BMEMZE
property, plant and equipment HE k8 (FE) 6 (52,000) 676,981
Depreciation e 6 4,497,133 5,566,770
Amortisation of customer relationship EERR 6 190,163 190,163
Recognition of prepaid land MERFEN T EER
lease payments 6 74,415 72,938
Provision for impairment of trade and EWE DERERREEZ
bills receivables k(B A 6 3,770 919,620
Recovery of other receivables Ho b e W AR B2 W =l 6 (13,404) (1,569,500)
Impairment of goodwill EEZRE 6 4,193,707 -
Impairment of loans to an associate LA NS k7232
B2 RE 6 19,000,000 -
Impairment of an investment in BERNRZIREZRE
an associate 6 1,826,000 -
Gain on disposal of associates HERB S QR 2 FE (358,423,419) (19,958,414)
Fair value loss on equity investment BAFERFAEBRZ
at fair value through profit or loss AR E 2 AN HEEE 2,620,081 -
Net gain on disposal of HETHREEMNREZ
available-for-sale investments JFAE 22(a) (140,209,026) (223,313,135)
Net loss on derecognition of an RIERER A HEER
available-for-sale investment WE 7 FER 23(d) 2,031,607 -
Fair value loss/(gain) on derivative eI Az N FE
financial instruments, net &sia(FE) F8 23 (4,124,612) 12,671,668
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 2 FE 38 - (3,028,233)
(31,976,988) (33,685,917)
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Year ended 31 December 2013 HZ—ZT—=F+_-_A=1+—HILtFE

2013 2012
—E—=fF T
Notes HK$ HK$
&t Er BT
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL Em) (196,165) 1,877,428
Increase in trade and bills receivables FEUE 5 IR R =8N (787,467) (3,495,294)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERTERFR ~ e R EAM
deposits and other receivables FEWBR TR > (38 40) (48,121,897) 88,470,379
Increase/(decrease) in trade and ENESERINEE
bills payables #wm, Crd) (37,243,637) 18,608,680
Decrease in other payables and accruals EMEMERNETER
NERAR (7,209,646) (130,481,837)
Cash used in operations e (125,535,800) (58,706,561)
Interest paid EFE (2,871,980) (3,050,736)
Overseas tax paid BEAEINRIA (39,003,275) (67,885,349)
Net cash flows used in operating activities = 3&E;E8)FFH 2
WenaF 5 (167,411,055) (129,642,646)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES #REZFBH2HERE
Dividend from a joint venture REGERNAIZRE - 128,518,519
Dividends from an available-for-sale ke EEEN ET
listed investment KEZKRE 878,908 9,910,830
Purchases of items of property, BAYZE - BEH
plant and equipment HEEE 13 (1,711,582) (2,002,076)
Purchases of additional equity PN ANSIEEEI
investment in associates R A& = (175,023,000)
Advance of loans to associates M & QR HE R (57,324,841) -
Repayment of loans from an associate HENTEEER 382,166 41,456,188
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME WEM
property, plant and equipment HBIEE S REIA 52,000 -
Net proceeds from disposal of HEMJHEENIRE
available-for-sale investments P18 /F50A 148,725,493 240,970,449
Receipt of a deferred consideration WEGEER(E - 184,000,000
Cash consideration received for disposal HENEAEEFHERN
of an asset classified as held for sale BEMBHRSNRE 56,650,000 13,170,732
Purchase of an equity investment BARAFEFABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss A% A& (11,001,081) -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKTE A E 38 - (35,643,470)
Bank interest received BRI TR 17,006,724 14,137,489
Interest received on a convertible bond BUL AR B E R T EITZ
issued by an associate AIRRR(E 25 2 2 1,035,517 517,759
Interest received on loans to associates B Uk & N R E R 631,851 4,572,453
Interest received on other receivables U5 L A S BR SRR B, - 1,126,383
Deposit paid for acquisition of a property WEMERS N2 iEe - (40,000,000)
Refunds of a deposit paid for acquisition EZBUBEM T2
of a property e 33,121,019 -
Decrease/(increase) in pledged time BEATESER
deposits A (38 n) 6,369,427 (6,250,000)
Decrease in a time deposit with original ~ EUSRFREIHI B &7
maturity of more than three months =@ A ZEBFHRLD
when acquired - 164,634,146
Net cash flows from investing activities R &EEEE Y
RE M558 194,815,601 544,096,402
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Year ended 31 December 2013 HZ—ZT—=F+_A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—F
Notes HK$ HK$
i3 BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REFBZ2HERE
New bank loans IRITER 25,477,707 14,625,000
Repayment of bank loans ERIRTER = (37,073,171)
Advance from/(to) the non-controlling — XM B A Az FEIEf
shareholder of a subsidiary MR IR B
(M—KWBRFZ
FEFE AR AR SR IR # 5D (165,605) 225,422
Repurchases of shares BB LR 5 35 (10,599,504) (7,288,499)
Net cash flows from/(used) BEESEL S (FER)
in financing activities ZIREFH 14,712,598 (29,511,248)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRRESEEEMNFRE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 42,117,144 384,942,508
Cash and cash equivalents at FHZzReMREEE
beginning of year 1,024,789,556 631,308,018
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, [ERE &) 2558
net 12,101,784 8,539,030
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZBEERBESEE
AT END OF YEAR 1,079,008,484 1,024,789,556
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND HERBESZELAER
CASH EQUIVALENTS 2
Cash and bank balances Be MIB1THETE 29 177,701,049 514,407,337
Non-pledged time deposits with original ~ EUSEFRE|HEHHTE
maturity of less than three months =@ A Z EIK A
when acquired EHER 29 901,307,435 510,382,219

1,079,008,484  1,024,789,556
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31 December 2013 —ZE—=F+_-HA=+—H

2013 2012
—E—= —E-—F
Notes HKS$ HK$
&t Er BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment L/ ES I 13 26,592,632 27,025,794
Interests in subsidiaries NGRS 17 744,700,780 407,082,146
Available-for-sale investment A HERIRE 22 2,680,300 2,680,300
Total non-current assets EMBEERE 773,973,712 436,788,240
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TETRIE ~ e REA
receivables FEUBE TR 27 9,992,165 13,204,499
Due from a subsidiary AN NG 17 6,474,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents B4 LkESEE 29 10,306,510 385,734,911
Total current assets MEVEEMRE 26,772,675 398,939,410
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Tax payable FERT TR IR 13,629,411 6,744,528
Other payables and accruals Hip et Ea L ESTE 32 8,756,816 6,396,472
Total current liabilities MEAERE 22,386,227 13,141,000
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 4,386,448 385,798,410
Net assets BEFE 778,360,160 822,586,650
EQUITY s
Issued capital BT 35 461,959,100 466,139,700
Reserves i 37(b) 316,401,060 356,446,950
Total equity A 778,360,160 822,586,650
Ji Guirong Zhang Chuanjun
B3¢ REE
Director Director
EE EZE
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2.1

54

CORPORATE INFORMATION

AVIC International Holding (HK
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The

) Limited is a limited

registered office of the Company is located at Canon's
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following
activities:

(i) the knitting and textile business; and
(i) the aero-technology related business, including

the share of profit from the development,
manufacture and distribution of helicopters.

In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Aviation Industry
Corporation of China, which is incorporated in the
People's Republic of China (the "PRC").

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™),
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the

accounting principles generally accepted

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for certain equity investments and derivative financial
instruments which have been measured at fair value. An
asset classified as held for sale was stated at the lower
of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell as
further explained in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars except when otherwise indicated.

2.1

ARER

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
B ZE TR BIRER (F8) BRAQ
E—Faﬁ%E%iEIﬁﬁizﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
ARARZ7EMPER ACanon's Court,
22 Victoria Street,Hamilton, HM 12,
Bermuda °

FR - ARBEETEREATES

iy  HEBROBES: &

(i) MERMABERS - BEIER
B  BUERKHMEL
Z A o

EZR/ARARBERARATE

MZEITESEERQR > ZARNFEAR
HAME ([hE ) MK -

mREE

AMpBREDRERBEHMAE ([F
AEREAE]) B BBEMBRE
ZQ ([FEMBREEL]) (P EE
PHEBYHREEA - FE G A

(I&FEGEL]) M2 EELE
KA zgtRAREE RGN 2 K5
B3R WIRELRAE RS - 1R TR

AERERTTEERIT AR AR TFE

SHE) DAAREREENEE IR
HARTE (B A F IR AR 2 B
£25) S RERRIHREN
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group") for the year
ended 31 December 2013. The financial statements of
the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted
for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's
share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.

2.1

31 December 2013 —ZE—=F+_-"HA=+—H

mBEE (F)

REERE
REMBHRREBEARAMEMEB LA
(M [ AEE]) BE—T—=F+_H
ST BLEFEZHBHRER - HEBAR
KRB S HREZ B RR I FEAER
REA—BZEBERE - HBARE
BB AR EBUSESIRE REF ALR
BMBHRERA B ABEZXES
BRIEERIE -

B @ BB R E LB AR -
BEa kAR SEARE )R
BRASEERARMEE RIFERE
@ BAEEKERRMZRZHEZ
MESEEARRBEERAE KA
Wit - BEREREREONEARFEH
HiH -

i =B RIER R T X E AR5 K
RAOL=TARGIEEZREP —ARZ A

2 RIARNEESEGEEDREHIR
RERA -MEBARCHARELE
B BARKEIEH RS ZERISH
N

WAEBARENB AR ZZERE g
RIEBRONZMBRARZEE (BREB
B) RAE  ()VERFERERZRE
B Rt Az RETAEERE I
BROZWREZAFE : (VERER
BIREZAVE Rt ABRSE TR
Rt MES 2 BeRsEAL - TR EA
PHRETERBZARERERD - T
BRMASREERX L EHRBEERAGMR
EBRZHEREE  BFEREHFHNEE
BadBFEd -
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2.2

56

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised

HKFRSs for the first time for the current year's financial

statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11

and HKFRS
12 Amendments

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards
- Government Loans

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures
- Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements

Joint Arrangements
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12
- Transition Guidance

Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Statements
— Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income
Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

22 BRBRREHEZESH

AEBCRAFENP BRI D E XK
AT HTE] RAEHERT BB MRS 2R -

BEMBREER BAMBREENF R
FR (BIIR)  BIAXELFRAEE
HHHEER - BITEN

&

BANBREER FEUBRSENETR

E75% (BFIA)  BIALHIA:
RE - ABUFEER
HEEE

BRUMBREED LGAUBHE

E10%

BEMBRERD RELZH

115

BEENBREERD RERAMEREZ #x
£128%

EENBREER BEUEREEE105
F10% - AR FNRRE1F2BIR

gyl — BE7E5/
FNFRES
B TSR ER|

£125% (BETA)
BERMBREED LAFEHE
E13%
AR ENE 1R BELHENE IR BIR

({BET ) HBHEZ 25 — Kt
2ENHERZ)
BB e el ES#E T
£19%
(Z%——%)
BB e el BB RE
E27%
(Z%——%)
BB e el REERTREERAL
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2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

HKAS 36 Amendments  Amendments to HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets — Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
(early adopted)

Stripping Costs in the Production

Phase of a Surface Mine

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs issued in June 2012

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

Other than as further explained below regarding the
impact of HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKFRS 13,
HKAS 19 (2011), amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS
11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 1 and HKAS 36, and certain
amendments included in Annual Improvements 2009-
2011 Cycle, the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs
has had no significant financial effect on these financial
statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised

58

HKFRSs are as follows:

(a)

HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
that addresses the accounting for consolidated
financial statements and addresses the issues in
HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose
Entities. It establishes a single control model used
for determining which entities are consolidated.
To meet the definition of control in HKFRS 10, an
investor must have (a) power over an investee, (b)
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability
to use its power over the investee to affect the
amount of the investor's returns. The changes
introduced by HKFRS 10 require management of
the Group to exercise significant judgement to
determine which entities are controlled.

As a result of the application of HKFRS 10, the
Group has changed the accounting policy with
respect to determining which investees are
controlled by the Group.

The application of HKFRS 10 does not change any
of the consolidation conclusions of the Group in
respect of its involvement with investees as at 1
January 2013.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised

HKFRSs are as follows: (continued)

(b)

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint
Ventures and HK(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled
Entities — Non-Monetary Contributions by
Venturers. It describes the accounting for joint
arrangements with joint control. It addresses
only two forms of joint arrangements, i.e., joint
operations and joint ventures, and removes
the option to account for joint ventures using
proportionate consolidation. The classification
of joint arrangements under HKFRS 11 depends
on the parties' rights and obligations arising
from the arrangements. A joint operation is a
joint arrangement whereby the joint operators
have rights to the assets and obligations for the
liabilities of the arrangement and is accounted
for on a line-by-line basis to the extent of the
joint operators' rights and obligations in the joint
operation. A joint venture is a joint arrangement
whereby the joint venturers have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement and is required
to be accounted for using the equity method in
accordance with HKAS 28 (2011).

The adoption of HKFRS 11 has had no significant
financial effect on these financial statements.

HKFRS 12 sets out the disclosure requirements for
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
structured entities previously included in HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements,
HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HKAS
28 Investments in Associates. It also introduces a
number of new disclosure requirements for these
entities. Details of the disclosures for subsidiaries,
a joint venture and associates are included in
notes 17, 18 and 19 to the financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised
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HKFRSs are as follows: (continued)

(d)

The HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12
Amendments clarify the transition guidance in
HKFRS 10 and provide further relief from full
retrospective application of these standards,
limiting the requirement to provide adjusted
comparative information to only the preceding
comparative period. The amendments clarify that
retrospective adjustments are only required if
the consolidation conclusion as to which entities
are controlled by the Group is different between
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 27 or HK(SIC)-Int 12 at the
beginning of the annual period in which HKFRS
10 is applied for the first time.

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of
fair value and a single source of fair value
measurement and disclosure requirements for use
across HKFRSs. The standard does not change
the circumstances in which the Group is required
to use fair value, but rather provides guidance
on how fair value should be applied where
its use is already required or permitted under
other HKFRSs. HKFRS 13 is applied prospectively
and the adoption has had no material impact
on the Group's fair value measurements. As a
result of the guidance in HKFRS 13, the policies
for measuring fair value have been amended.
Additional disclosures required by HKFRS 13
for the fair value measurements of financial
instruments are included in note 44 to the
financial statements.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised

HKFRSs are as follows: (continued)

()

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of
items presented in other comprehensive income
("oci").
recycled) to profit or loss at a future point in time

Items that could be reclassified (or

(for example, exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations, net movement on cash
flow hedges and net loss or gain on available-
for-sale financial assets) are presented separately
from items which will never be reclassified (for
example, the revaluation of land and buildings).
The amendments have affected the presentation
only and have had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group. In
addition, the Group has chosen to use the new
title "statement of profit or loss" as introduced
by the amendments in these financial statements.

HKAS 19 (2011)
amendments that range from fundamental

includes a number of

changes to simple clarifications and re-wording.
The revised standard introduces significant
changes in the accounting for defined benefit
pension plans including removing the choice
to defer the recognition of actuarial gains and
losses. Other changes include modifications to
the timing of recognition for termination benefits,
the classification of short-term employee benefits
and disclosures of defined benefit plans. As the
Group does not have any defined benefit plan or
employee termination plan and the Group does
not have any significant employee benefits that
are expected to be settled for more than twelve
months after the reporting period, the adoption
of the revised standard has had no effect on the
financial position or performance of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised

62

HKFRSs are as follows: (continued)

(h)

The HKAS 36 Amendments remove the
unintended disclosure requirement made by
HKFRS 13 on the recoverable amount of a
cash-generating unit which is not impaired. In
addition, the amendments require the disclosure
of the recoverable amounts for the assets or cash-
generating units for which an impairment loss has
been recognised or reversed during the reporting
period, and expand the disclosure requirements
regarding the fair value measurement for these
assets or units if their recoverable amounts are
based on fair value less costs of disposal. The
amendments are effective retrospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 with
earlier application permitted, provided HKFRS 13
is also applied. The Group has early adopted the
amendments in these financial statements. The
amendments have had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle issued
in June 2012 sets out amendments to a number
of standards. There are separate transitional
provisions for each standard. While the adoption
of some of the amendments may result in
changes in accounting policies, none of these
amendments have had a significant financial impact
on the Group. Details of the key amendments most
applicable to the Group are as follows:
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised
HKFRSs are as follows: (continued)

(i) (continued)

o HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements: Clarifies the difference
between voluntary additional comparative
information and the minimum required
comparative information. Generally, the
minimum required comparative period
is the previous period. An entity must
include comparative information in the
related notes to the financial statements
when it voluntarily provides comparative
information beyond the previous period.
The additional comparative information
does not need to contain a complete set
of financial statements.

In addition, the amendment clarifies that
the opening statement of financial position
as at the beginning of the preceding
period must be presented when an entity
changes its accounting policies; makes
retrospective restatements or makes
reclassifications, and that change has
a material effect on the statement of
financial position. However, the related
notes to the opening statement of
financial position as at the beginning of
the preceding period are not required to
be presented.

° HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Clarifies that income taxes
arising from distributions to equity holders
are accounted for in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes. The amendment
removes existing income tax requirements
from HKAS 32 and requires entities to
apply the requirements in HKAS 12 to any
income tax arising from distributions to
equity holders.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and
HKAS 39 Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendments

HKFRS 14

HKAS 19 Amendments

HKAS 32 Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

64

Financial Instruments*

Hedge Accounting and amendments
to HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and
HKAS 39*

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011)
- Investment Entities’

Requlatory Deferral Accounts®

Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits — Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation
- Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation
of Hedge Accounting'

Levies'

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs issued in December
20132

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs issued in December
20132
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available

for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of
phase 1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Instead of
classifying financial assets into four categories, an entity
shall classify financial assets as subsequently measured at
either amortised cost or fair value, on the basis of both
the entity's business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial assets. This aims to improve and simplify
the approach for the classification and measurement
of financial assets compared with the requirements of
HKAS 39.
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2.3

66

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to
HKFRS 9 to address financial liabilities (the "Additions")
and incorporated in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition
principles of financial instruments of HKAS 39. Most
of the Additions were carried forward unchanged from
HKAS 39, while changes were made to the measurement
of financial liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss using the fair value option ("FVO"). For
these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair
value of a liability that is attributable to changes in
credit risk must be presented in OCIl. The remainder of
the change in fair value is presented in profit or loss,
unless presentation of the fair value change in respect of
the liability's credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts which
have been designated under the FVO are scoped out of
the Additions.

In December 2013, the HKICPA added to HKFRS 9
the requirements related to hedge accounting and
made some related changes to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
which include the corresponding disclosures about risk
management activity for applying hedge accounting.
The amendments to HKFRS 9 relax the requirements
for assessing hedge effectiveness which result in more
risk management strategies being eligible for hedge
accounting. The amendments also allow greater
flexibility on the hedged items and relax the rules on
using purchased options and non-derivative financial
instruments as hedging instruments. In addition, the
amendments to HKFRS 9 allow an entity to apply only
the improved accounting for own credit risk-related
fair value gains and losses arising on FVO liabilities as
introduced in 2010 without applying the other HKFRS 9
requirements at the same time.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its
entirety. Before this entire replacement, the guidance in
HKAS 39 on impairment of financial assets continues to
apply. The previous mandatory effective date of HKFRS
9 was removed by the HKICPA in December 2013 and
a mandatory effective date will be determined after the
entire replacement of HKAS 39 is completed. However,
the standard is available for application now. The Group
will quantify the effect in conjunction with other phases,
when the final standard including all phases is issued.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 include a definition of an
investment entity and provide an exception to the
consolidation requirement for entities that meet the
definition of an investment entity. Investment entities
are required to account for subsidiaries at fair value
through profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 9 rather
than consolidate them. Consequential amendments
were made to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011). The
amendments to HKFRS 12 also set out the disclosure
requirements for investment entities. The Group expects
that these amendments will not have any impact on the
Group as the Company is not an investment entity as
defined in HKFRS 10.

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right to set off" for
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. The
amendments also clarify the application of the offsetting
criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement systems (such as
central clearing house systems) which apply gross
settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group upon
adoption on 1 January 2014.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(0) the Group's voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company's investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Investments in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture
(continued)

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and a joint
venture are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group's share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into
line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and the joint
venture is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates or joint venture are eliminated to the extent
of the Group's investments in the associates or joint
venture, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of associates or the joint
venture is included as part of the Group's investments in
associates or the joint venture.

2.4

31 December 2013 —ZE—=F+_-"HA=+—H

EXRSTHERBE (&)

Yoy

&§
T

RAREGERFAZRE (#F)

BRAEIB—BALERY B HA
KRG ZEHTOEREE
RERBZEEFE - HREHIETIZ
BHME TAFERREZ LY HER
HEESRRUBAEAZIEEZET
—BRESTFE -

% 1>

>

REERBERRRAELERRZIKET)
RIEBEGESHERAEEDHZEEF
1B R {0 (B B 1R 12 I i AR B B A AR
= o EBLAIRETRfE 2 MRS R R AF
HAAE - AR - NREBEDHBE
REANEERARMBRZEGEREME
W DRIENEEBRER REAE
2 EUER - tLHD - HWEERRHA
ERRNESEEEREMES - AR
SEEGRA BB RERDIHEER
HE) (MER) NEERARE AT
BERAEZRPMES 2 RERHE
REEEAEERBERRKAERT
ZRERE  EREREREANEE
BELBEBEBRAEI - WiEHEQ
AIRAERAELEZEHE  NEBER
KENBERRHAALRRZIREZHE

,(/'\ °

69



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMZETERREZER (F8) BRAA
Annual Report 2013

“ET-=FFR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B %R R M sT

31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-A=+—H

2.4

70

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture
(continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value of
the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of associates and the joint venture are
included in the Company's statement of profit or loss
to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Company's investments in associates and the joint
venture are treated as non-current assets and are stated
at cost less any impairment losses.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability that is a financial instrument and within
the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of HKAS
39, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate
HKFRS. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group's previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments
and equity investments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1T - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly
Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, financial assets, goodwill and a non-
current asset held for sale), the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person's family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

or

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

2.4

31 December 2013 —ZE—=F+—-A=+—H

BEREHBERME (&7)

s (&)
5

(b  HIAEE BEATHEME
-

(i)
iy —HEER>-—HBER
(= —RMEBZERF]
(RIEPNCIEACES = PNCID)

ZBHEARRABAT

(i)  ZEE

vy, —HEER

v) REEBRA
Z

(viy HEBRQ@EERIALE
Hs AR RZES K

(@QIEEZATHZER
BERFENSIBZER
(HRERZERA) 2
ZEREXE o

(vii)

77



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

PEMZEIXERZER (F8) ARAH
Annual Report 2013
“E-ZFER

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt 78 3R 3% i 5

31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-A=+—H

2.4

78

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
items of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Over the lease terms
10% — 20%
20% - 33%
20% - 25%

Land and buildings

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through
a sales transaction rather than through continuing use.
For this to be the case, the asset must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for the sale of such
assets and its sale must be highly probable.

Non-current assets (other than financial assets) classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.
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2.4

80

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The finance costs of such leases are charged to the
statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. When the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments
are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a
finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, and available-for-sale financial
investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial
assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include the financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by HKAS 39.
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2.4

82

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes
do not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with
the policies set out for "Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS
39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted
for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if
their economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not held for trading or designated as
at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in other income and gain
in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in other operating expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
investments and debt securities and a financial asset
under Project EC120 as set out in notes 22 and
20, respectively, to the financial statements. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those
which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended
to be held for an indefinite period of time and which
may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in market conditions.
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2.4

84

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement
of profit or loss in other operating expenses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale
financial investments are reported as interest income
and dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policies set out for "Revenue
recognition" below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

J the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
"pass-through" arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a

collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest

rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is
no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral

has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other
operating expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group
of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. "Significant" is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and "prolonged" against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through
the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair
value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for
sale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria
as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However,
the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative
loss measured as the difference between the amortised
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Future interest income
continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying
amount of the asset and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest
income is recorded as part of other income. Impairment
losses on debt instruments are reversed through the
statement of profit or loss if the subsequent increase in
fair value of the instruments can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or
as loans and borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and
bills payables, other payables and accruals,
bearing bank borrowings, and an amount due to a non-

interest-

controlling shareholder of a subsidiary.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest

rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury
shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity
through the setting up of a treasury shares reserve. No
gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Group's own equity instruments. Any difference between
the carrying amount and the consideration is recognised
in equity. Upon the cancellation of the treasury shares,
the relevant portion of the balances in the treasury
shares reserve will be transferred to the issued capital
and the share premium account.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that
the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions would be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it was recognised as income on a systemic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, were expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

(b) from the development, manufacture and
distribution of helicopters, when the Group's
right to receive its share of profit from Project
EC120 has been established (note 20);

(c) from the rendering of services, when the services
are rendered;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders' right to
receive payment has been established.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled in employee benefit expense.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of
the award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total fair value of
the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The dilutive effect of outstanding options, if any, is
reflected as additional share dilution in the computation
of earnings per share.

The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured initially
at fair value at the grant date taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the instruments were
granted. The fair value is expensed over the period until
the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding
liability. The liability is measured at the end of each
reporting period up to and including the settlement
date, with changes in fair value recognised in the
Group's statement of profit or loss.

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF
Scheme") under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees' basic salaries
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF scheme.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)
Pension scheme (continued)

Prior to the MPF Scheme being effective, the Group
operated a defined contribution provident fund for
those employees who were eligible and had elected
to participate in the fund. This fund operated in a
way similar to the MPF Scheme, except that when
an employee left the fund prior to his/her interest
in the Group's employer contributions vesting fully,
the ongoing contributions payable by the Group
were reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited
contributions. Upon the implementation of the MPF
December 2000, the
provident fund was frozen and no further contributions

Scheme with effect from 1

by the Group or the eligible employees were made after
that date. When eligible employees leave the Group,
they receive their entitlements pursuant to the existing
rules of this fund.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company's functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transaction.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of
the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
joint venture and associates are currencies other than
the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

2.4
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2.4

102

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of the overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

2.4
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)
Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the
event previously causing the impairment no longer
exists, the Group has to exercise judgement in the
area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred that may affect the
asset value or such event affecting the asset value has
not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management
to determine the level of impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.

Classification of equity investments among
investments in subsidiaries, investments in associates
and an investment in a joint venture

In determining whether an equity investment is classified
as investments in subsidiaries, investments in associates
and an investment in a joint venture, the Group
considers a number of factors including (1) whether the
Group has the power to exercise control; (2) whether the
Group can exercise significant influence; and (3) whether
the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control
is required for the relevant activities of the investee
company.

3.
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3.

104

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows. As at
31 December 2013, the goodwill was fully impaired. As
at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of goodwill
on the acquisition of a subsidiary was HK$4,193,707.
Further details are included in note 15 to the financial
statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies. As at 31 December 2013, the
amount of unrecognised tax losses was approximately
HK$15,456,000 (2012: HK$15,456,000). Further details
are included in note 34 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. They are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on
available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm's length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. Further details are included in
note 19 to the financial statements.

Useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of
items of property, plant and equipment, the Group and
the Company have to consider various factors, such as
expected usage of the asset, expected physical wear and
tear, the care and maintenance of the asset, and legal or
similar limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of
the useful life of the asset is based on the experience of
the Group and the Company with similar assets that are
used in a similar way. Additional depreciation is made
if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual values
of items of property, plant and equipment are different
from previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at the end of each financial year based
on changes in circumstances. The carrying amounts of
the Group's and the Company's property, plant and
equipment at 31 December 2013 were HK$43,606,420
(2012: HK$46,087,240) and HK$26,592,632 (2012:
HK$27,025,794), respectively. Further details are
included in note 13 to the financial statements.
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3.

106

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables and
deposits and other receivables

The Group and the Company maintain an allowance
for estimated losses arising from the inability of the
customers or borrowers to make the required payments.
The Group and the Company make the estimates
based on the ageing of trade and bills receivables and
deposits and other receivable balances, customers'
creditworthiness, and historical write-off experience. If
the financial condition of the customers or borrowers
was to deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss
might be higher than expected, the Group and the
Company would be required to revise the basis of
making the allowance and the future results would be
affected. The carrying amounts of the Group's trade
and bills receivables and deposits and other receivables
as at 31 December 2013 were HK$14,862,874
(2012: HK$13,815,192) and HK$69,117,764 (2012:
HK$66,996,973), respectively. The carrying amount
of the Company's deposits and other receivables was
HK$6,883,373 (2012: HK$10,115,855). The Company
did not have any trade and bills receivables. Further
details are included in notes 25 and 27 to the financial
statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has two reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the knitting and textile business segment engages
in the production and distribution of knitting and
textile products, knitted fabrics and clothing; and

(b) the aero-technology related business segment
engages in the share of profit from the
development, manufacture and distribution of
helicopters.

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure
of adjusted profit for the year. The adjusted profit for
the year is measured consistently with the Group's profit
for the year except that head office's other income and
gain, net loss on deemed disposal of an associate, gain
on disposal of associates, share of profits and losses
of the joint venture and associates, fair value loss on
equity investment at fair value through profit or loss,
net gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments,
net loss on derecognition of an available-for-sale
investment, fair value gain/(loss) on derivative financial
instruments, net, gain on disposal of subsidiaries as
well as head office and corporate expenses (including
impairment of goodwill, impairment of loans to an
associate and impairment of an investment in an
associate) and unallocated income tax are excluded from
such measurement. Certain comparative amounts have
been reclassified to conform with the current year’s
presentation.

4.
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4.

108

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. ReEsBER (&
(continued)
Knitting and Aero-technology
textile business related business Total
HERGEER MEREEER &t
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
E-ZEZ-"HFE-Zf T —"F-E-ZE T —F
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx  TETL FEr  FET  FET  TET
Segment revenue: 2EE
Sales to external customers NEBEFHE 47,979 87,328 - - 47979 87328
Segment results DIEE (1,157) 2,743 - - (1157) 2,743
Reconciliation: SHEIE -
Unallocated other income and gain K2 fid £ b4 A & F 27,273 24,990
Corporate and other unallocated CEREMRIIRY
expenses (67,459) (47,113)
Net loss on deemed disposal of HEALERL AT
an associate ZFEE (7,808) -
Gain on disposal of associates HEHE DR FIE 358,423 19,958
Share of profits and losses of: AMEEFIREE
Joint venture EYoUNG| 60,839 229,744
Associates id=l/NG] (32,001)  (22,094)
Fair value loss on equity investment 1A TEE ABH Y
at fair value through profit or loss ~ BAREZ AT
EEE (2,620) -
Net gain on disposal of HETREENRE
available-for-sale investments ZF 140,209 223,313
Net loss on derecognition of RIEBRAREER
an available-for-sale investment REZEFER (2,032) -
Fair value gain/(loss) on derivative TESRTIAENTE
financial instruments, net M/ (EB8) 58 4,125 (12,672
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM BN R 2 FE = 3,028
Unallocated income tax expense KOFFEREY (81,117) (60,902)
Profit for the year RERM 396,675 360,995
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFIEHR (F)
(continued)
Knitting and Aero-technology
textile business related business Total
HARGHER MERMARER ait

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
“E-CZE T CB-ZE_T-_F-B-ZF_T-_F
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FEx FErT  FET  TET  FET  TET

Other segment information: HipmEx :

Bank interest income H|ITHEHA 106 15 = - 106 15
Unallocated bank interest income APEETHMEKA 17,536 14,122
17,642 14,137
Depreciation and amortisation e L (2,588)  (3,648) - - (2,588)  (3,648)

Unallocated depreciation and ROBHTE R
amortisation (2,099)  (2,109)
(4,687) (5,757)
Finance costs BEY (2,937)  (3,051) = - (2937 (3,051
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(continued)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFIER ()
Geographical information hEER
(a)  Revenue from external customers (a) K EIEBEF Wz
2013 2012
—E-=F —T—F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Mainland China B Ay 47,979 87,328
The revenue information above is based on the PR FER I EEBEE ZFT
location of the customers. T ZE|5 o
(b)  Non-current assets (b) FRBEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong BH 277,366 286,401
Mainland China RS A B, 373,255 425,595
650,621 711,996
The non-current asset information above is based LR BEEER NIREEY
on the locations of the assets and excludes FERE S WABIESHT A -
financial instruments.
Information about major customers FTEEEIER

Revenue of approximately HK$8,600,000,
HK$8,290,000, HK$8,090,000 and HK$5,390,000 were
derived from sales by the knitting and textile business
segment to four single customers, respectively. In the
prior year, revenue of approximately HK$25,384,000
had been derived from sales by the knitting and textile
business segment to a single customer.
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W3 - H AU A R R

YWas (TRAVAREE 2 Z55) TR A
EHBEHBER CERFE -

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAIN 5.

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents
the net invoiced value of knitting and textile products
sold.

YWt~ EtARMBOHIT -

An analysis of revenue, other income and gain is as

follows:
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Revenue g
Sale of knitting and textile products HEITR M EE T 47,978,864 87,328,163
Other income Habg A
Bank interest income FATHBHA 17,641,894 14,137,489
Interest income on a convertible bond  FE#& AR BT 2 AT
issued by an associate f&EH 2 FI B WA 1,035,517 849,692
Interest income on loans to associates  [AH#E& A TR ER 2
FEA 1,600,364 2,277,351
Interest income on other receivables Hth lE UK BR T2 R B U A 908,830 1,126,383
Interest income on loans to M A RRENER
related companies FE A 1,132,076 1,160,803
Dividend income from an available- AHEEN ETREZ
for-sale listed investment &% B4 A 867,853 4,376,674
Agency service income IR ARG HA 2,229,448 780,000
Government grant BT B & 1,910,828 -
Others H A, 92,342 539,338
27,419,152 25,247,730
Gain F5E
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEY% - MEMHEE
plant and equipment HE 2 HHE 52,000 -
27,471,152 25,247,730
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. FRBIADEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBEBZBRBISFMENER (GTA)
(crediting):
2013 2012
—E—= —E—F
Notes HKS HK$
i3 BT BT
Cost of knitting and textile SHESTE R BESD
products sold 2R 42,759,878 77,224,314
Depreciation e 13 4,497,133 5,566,770
Amortisation of customer BEPRAR
relationship 16 190,163 190,163
Minimum lease payments under T RAEFAEE LY
operating leases on land and 2 &K E
buildings 1,998,281 1,142,423
Recognition of prepaid land lease RIEMTMBER
payments 14 74,415 72,938
Employee benefit expense EERMNEA
(excluding directors' (TBiEE=Me
remuneration (note 8)): (H1z8)) -
Wages and salaries TERE® 15,912,867 12,943,609
Pension scheme contributions* RIRE T &I 204,377 297,946
16,117,244 13,241,555
Other operating expenses/ Hiasems
(income), net: (W A) JF58
Impairment of goodwill EEZRE 15 4,193,707 -
Impairment of loans to M HE & A R E R
an associate ZRE 19 19,000,000
Impairment of an investment BENRIZIRE ZRE
in an associate 19 1,826,000 -
Provision for impairment of FEWE SRR R EE
trade and bills receivables BB B 25 3,770 919,620
Recovery of other receivables H b fEURBR L2 W el (13,404) (1,569,500)
25,010,073 (649,880)
Auditors' remuneration Z SN & 1,909,000 1,580,000
Foreign exchange differences, net  HME X =58 558 434,893 (14,661)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEWE - EMRE
property, plant and equipment BEZEE (FHE) (52,000) 676,981

* At 31 December 2013, the Group had no forfeited *
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the

RZZE—=F+-A=+—0  K£H
A7 A A ] B 9% Y 51 0] A VIR A R 2R
FEZEARSHEER (Z2—=F:
&) o

pension scheme in future years (2012: Nil).
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FINANCE COSTS 7. BBEAX
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MBRZATET
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E-—F
HKS$ HKS$
BT BT
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable ZBRAEFRN2EEE 2
within five years IRITERZFE 2,936,761 3,050,736
DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8. EEME

Directors' remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant

to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Listing

Rules") and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance, is as follows:

RIEBZBBHARSGERARFES LT
FMA(TEMAA]) RBEBRBENE
161G BEZARFEEMEUWT ¢

Group
rEH
2013 2012
—EB—=F —F—=
HK$ HKS$
BT BT
Fees Hwe 842,613 876,000
Other emoluments: H e -
Salaries, allowances and benefits e EMEEY
in kind Ik 4,319,627 4,284,560
Performance related bonuses TERIBABEA 939,990 626,660
Pension scheme contributions RIRE B 274,477 274,477
5,534,094 5,185,697
6,376,707 6,061,697
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8.

14

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(a)

Independent Non-executive Directors

The fees paid to Independent Non-executive

8.

EEME (&)

(a)

BYFHTES

RERAXN FEIFFATESFZ

Directors during the year were as follows: wemT
2013 2012
—E-=F —F——fF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Chu Yu Lin, David ) 240,000 240,000
Li Ka Fai, David TRIE 240,000 240,000
Li Zhaoxi FIKER 60,000 60,000
540,000 540,000

There were no other emoluments payable to the

Independent Non-executive Directors during the

year (2012: Nil).

RE R EE BN T8 3F
HTEZENHE (T ——F:

&) -
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8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEM<E (&)

(b) Executive Directors and a Non-executive (b) HITEER—EBHFHTES
Director
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
54 2R IERE BikE
e BENRE HEREA HELEE e
2013 HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HK$
—E-=% BT B BT BT B
Executive Directors: WAEE:
Wu Guangquan Ry 36,000 - - - 36,000
Pan Linwu B 36,000 - - - 36,000
You Lei HiE 33,387 - - - 33,387
Ji Guirong FEH 36,000 3,559,667 750,000 219,000 4,564,667
Zhang Chuanjun REE 36,000 759,960 189,990 55,477 1,041,427
Jiang Wei % 2,613 - - - 2,613
Liu Rongchun eSS 2,613 - - - 2,613
182,613 4,319,627 939,990 274,477 5,716,707

Non-executive Director: FNTES
Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond HEEma 120,000 - - - 120,000

302,613 4,319,627 939,990 274,477 5,836,707
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEM<E (&)

(b) Executive Directors and a Non-executive (b) HTEER—BIHTES
Director (continued) (%)
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration

e 2ER THERR il
we Eils RETEA HEL At

2012 HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$

—E-CF BT BT BT BT BT

Executive Directors: HITEE:
Wu Guangquan R 36,000 - - - 36,000
Ji Guirong TRE 36,000 3,524,600 500,000 219,000 4,279,600
Pan Linwu AT NEY 36,000 - - - 36,000
Zhang Chuanjun REE 36,000 759,960 126,660 55,477 978,097
Liu Rongchun &% 36,000 - - - 36,000
Jiang Wei % 36,000 - - - 36,000

216,000 4,284,560 626,660 274,477 5,401,697

Non-executive Director: FNTEF
Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond B 120,000 - - - 120,000

336,000 4,284,560 626,660 274,477 5,521,697

There was no arrangement under which a director FRAWEEMETHREEETHE
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the SEBNEEAMS -
year.
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hEREHES

4SS REAERME (22—
ML) WITEE BEMS 2
BN EXHES HB =R (T —
F:ZR)AERSHIEEEES VM

paid employees who are not a director of the Company BT

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.
The five highest paid employees included two (2012:

Tft

two) executive directors, details of whose remuneration

are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration
for the year of the remaining three (2012: three) highest

are as follows:

Group

AEEH
2013 2012
—EB-=F —E——4F
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Basic salaries, allowances and EXFS - 2K

benefits in kind EMi= 2,359,000 2,181,920
Pension scheme contributions RIKEsHEIHR T 83,210 101,318
Performance related bonuses TERIBIEREIEL 2,650,000 2,600,000
5,092,210 4,883,238

The number of non-director highest paid employees

whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

follows:

MeETIBE R IFEFEEH
B :

Number of employees

EEHA
2013 2012
—E-—=F —E——F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/8 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 TE
1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 L E
3,000,000/ 7T = 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 E
3,500,000/ 7T 1 -
3 3
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10. INCOME TAX 10.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made

Frigs
HRAEBMAFANLETRFRREEZ
FERRBE R A - AR AR B S R 15 B
HBZE—ZF: E)  HtbiEER
RaEfl s MERASIEANEBELERTR
R/ BEBEERZHERAE -

as the Group did not generate any assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year (2012: Nil). Taxes
on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in
which the Group operates.
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Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —T—CF
HKS$ HK$
B BT
Current — Elsewhere: BIE — EAthi @ -
Charge for the year REREZ 74,250,284 65,822,550
Underprovision/(overprovision) BEEEZVERE
in prior years (ZiR#E) 6,884,883 (4,081,987)
Deferred (note 34) IBXE (H15E34) (122,851) (122,851)
Total tax charge for the year REFIER L 4858 81,012,316 61,617,712
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10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit

Frig®t (&)
BADRAREEEMBERRMEEER
b 2 % T B L PR R B AT

before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in

which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries MIEXHEAFEHIES B2 BE RN
are domiciled to the tax charge for the year is as follows: N
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E-—F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Profit before tax R FR BT A 477,687,563 422,612,856
Tax at the statutory tax rates WEAFERRAEZTHIE 69,271,954 108,239,309
Adjustment of current tax in respect of B EAfE BN HAH I8
previous periods Z A 6,884,883 (4,081,987)
Profits and losses attributable to DEEERE RS
a joint venture and associates NEZm A K EiE (7,519,822) (52,617,051)
Income not subject to tax BB A (2,753,289) (5,676,084)
Expenses not deductible for tax NMENHRZAX 15,128,590 15,753,525
Tax charge at the Group's effective WMAEEERHE17.0%
rate of 17.0% (2012: 14.6%) ZE-ZF 1 14.6%)
Z BIAR X 81,012,316 61,617,712

The share of tax attributable to a joint venture
and associates amounting to HK$24,632,604
(2012: HK$68,929,716) and HK$5,373,180 (2012:
HK$7,267,914), respectively, is included in "Share of
profits and losses of a joint venture and associates" in

DEAERRALRBE AR ZHEED
Al /24,632,604 T (= F — = F:
68,929,716/ 7t) 5,373,180/ 7T (=
T——4F:7267,91487T) CDERRBEL
EERRZI[DHEE AR REE QR

M R EE] A e

the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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11.

12.

120

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE PARENT

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
parent for the year ended 31 December 2013 includes
a loss of HK$33,626,986 (2012: HK$15,588,507) which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company (note 37(b)).

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of
the parent of HK$397,242,208 (2012: HK$359,651,230)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
4,633,915,385 (2012: 4,668,670,176) in issue during
the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings
per share amount presented for the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012 in respect of a dilution as the
Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during those years.

11.

12.

BRBREEEEET

HE-_Z—="F+-A=+—81
FEZERRAIMBEREGEE B
b BERARARTBREMEZ
/&5 $833,626,986/8 L (Z & — = F :
15,588,507 L) (M1a237(b)) °

RAEERERAARLERE
A

BREAAEFTIRET R RTE E BN
AN 4F 5 397,242,208 T (—E— —
£ :359,651,230870) RFANDEITE
A% 2 NHEF 19 804,633,915,3850% (=
T— 14 : 4,668,670,1765%) 51 & o

AEERREE-_T—=—FR_ZT—=F
TZA=T-HIESEIEARNBER
e B2 BRTEAR B mE
ZEFTEEMIEREABNSEIED
BRAEE L% -
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥%¥ -  BEMNRE
Group
£33
Furniture,
Land and Plant and fixtures and Motor
buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles Total
B KB
THREF BERES kR AE CE
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
B BT B B B
31 December 2013 —E-Zf+-A=1+-H

At 31 December 2012 and RZZE——4F

1 January 2013: +ZA=+—-8kK
—Z-=f-f-H:

Cost BN 34,782,114 11,623,957 3,285,926 9,875,163 59,567,160

Accumulated depreciation Z2RENE (4,549,015) (2,073,370) (2,706,706)  (4,150,829) (13,479,920)

Net carrying amount REFE 30,233,099 9,550,587 579,220 5,724,334 46,087,240
At 1 January 2013, R-E-—=5—-F—-8"

net of accumulated B 2EINE

depreciation 30,233,099 9,550,587 579,220 5,724,334 46,087,240
Additions NE - 615,583 142,826 953,173 1,711,582
Depreciation provided FRITERE

during the year (1,049,074) (758,930) (372,051) (2,317,078)  (4,497,133)
Exchange realignment PEE i, 3558 59,260 166,783 5,715 72,973 304,731
At 31 December 2013, RZT—=

net of accumulated +-A=+—8"

depreciation Nk 2EFE 29,243,285 9,574,023 355,710 4,433,402 43,606,420
At 31 December 2013: RZE—=%F

+ZA=+t—-8:

Cost A 34,881,223 12,563,213 3,442,707 10,653,451 61,540,594

Accumulated depreciation ~ 2EFE (5,637,938) (2,989,190) (3,086,997) (6,220,049) (17,934,174)

Net carrying amount REEHE 29243285 9574023 355710 4,433,402 43,606,420
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% BEMXE (&)
(continued)

Group (continued)

rEE (&)

Furniture,
Land and Plant and  fixtures and Motor
buildings machinery  equipment vehicles Total
il RE
THREF  BERES P& A& At
HKS HK$ HK$ HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
31 December 2012 —E-—#+-A=+-H
At 1 January 2012: WZE——%—F—H:
Cost %S 34,314,146 10,876,425 3,155,766 9,002,899 57,349,236
Accumulated depreciation ZBEME (3,471,428) - (2,328,076) (1,588,436)  (7,387,940)
Net carrying amount REFE 30,842,718 10,876,425 827,690 7,414,463 49,961,296
At 1 January 2012, RZZT——%—H—H"
net of accumulated nkZBME
depreciation 30,842,718 10,876,425 827,690 7,414,463 49,961,296
Additions NE 350,000 774,731 179,970 697,375 2,002,076
Disposals HE - (590,678) (18,785) (67,518) (676,981)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWRBAR (fiF38)
(note 38) - - (50,595) - (50,595)
Depreciation provided FNHERE
during the year (1,029,394)  (1,738,375) (364,910)  (2,434,091)  (5,566,770)
Exchange realignment iR R 69,775 228,484 5,850 114,105 418,214
At 31 December 2012, NZE——%F
net of accumulated +-A=+—-8"
depreciation NkEBEFE 30,233,099 9,550,587 579,220 5,724,334 46,087,240
At 31 December 2012: RZE——F
+ZA=+-8:
Cost %S 34,782,114 11,623,957 3,285,926 9,875,163 59,567,160
Accumulated depreciation ZRENE (4,549,015)  (2,073,370)  (2,706,706)  (4,150,829) (13,479,920)
Net carrying amount RHEHE 30,233,099 9,550,587 579,220 5,724,334 46,087,240
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% BMEMRE (&)
(continued)
Company
FN/NE|
Furniture,
Land and  fixtures and Motor
building equipment vehicles Total
B £EB
T REF ET ] AE C1l
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B BT
31 December 2013 —E-ZE+ZRA=1+-H
At 31 December 2012 and RZE——F+-A=1+—-HK
1 January 2013: “E-Z4§-A-H8:
Cost B 30,350,000 2,843,423 965,047 34,158,470
Accumulated depreciation Z2RENE (4,228,572) (2,572,557) (331,547) (7,132,676)
Net carrying amount REFE 26,121,428 270,866 633,500 27,025,794
At 1 January 2013, net of R=ZZ—=%—F—H"
accumulated depreciation NhRENE 26,121,428 270,866 633,500 27,025,794
Additions NE - 29,366 953,173 982,539
Depreciation provided FRMERE
during the year (757,142) (261,891) (396,668) (1,415,701)
At 31 December 2013, netof RZZE—=F#+-A=+—-H"
accumulated depreciation MBEREHE 25,364,286 38,341 1,190,005 26,592,632
At 31 December 2013: RZE—=F+-A=+—8:
Cost B 30,350,000 2,872,789 1,586,673 34,809,462
Accumulated depreciation 2BEWE (4,985,714) (2,834,448) (396,668) (8,216,830)
Net carrying amount REFE 25,364,286 38,341 1,190,005 26,592,632
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13.

124

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ BEMZE (&)
(continued)
Company (continued)
KRAT (&)
Furniture,
Land and fixtures and Motor
building equipment vehicles Total
&L EB
T RiEF HfE AE A&t
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$
BT BT BT VBT
31 December 2012 —E--f#+-H=+-H
At 1 January 2012: RZZE——%F—H—H:
Cost A 30,350,000 2,837,295 331,547 33,518,842
Accumulated depreciation ZFEIME (3,471,429) (2,300,479) (331,547) (6,103,455)
Net carrying amount REFE 26,878,571 536,816 - 27,415,387
At 1 January 2012, net of RZZ-——%—-HA—1"
accumulated depreciation Nk 28EheE 26,878,571 536,816 - 27,415,387
Additions NE - 6,128 633,500 639,628
Depreciation provided FRMERE
during the year (757,143) (272,078) - (1,029,221)
At 31 December 2012, netof ~RZZE——F+=-A=+—H"
accumulated depreciation Nk 2RAE 26,121,428 270,866 633,500 27,025,794
At 31 December 2012: RZE-——F+-A=+—8:
Cost (%N 30,350,000 2,843,423 965,047 34,158,470
Accumulated depreciation Z2RENE (4,228,572) (2,572,557) (331,547) (7,132,676)
Net carrying amount REFE 26,121,428 270,866 633,500 27,025,794
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - BEMRE (&)
(continued)
An analysis of the lease terms of the Group's and the REBRAQNF 2 T REFHEED N
Company's land and buildings is as follows: LUl
Group Company
TEE b N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —ZT—= —B-=F —ZET——F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At cost, located in: BRAKA - RIRS
Hong Kong, held under BE - BB EED
a medium term lease A 30,350,000 30,350,000 30,350,000 30,350,000
Mainland China, held R A - IR R ER
under a long term lease MHFAE 4,531,223 4,432,114 = -
34,881,223 34,782,114 30,350,000 30,350,000

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's land and
buildings located in Mainland China with an aggregate
net book value of approximately HK$3,879,000 (2012:
HK$4,111,671) were pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 33(a)(i)).

R-E—=%F+-"A=+—H8 EEF
{E#2%E#93,879,0008 L (T ——4F :
4111,67187T) 2 AR E BRI H B R
ZHHRIEFEBEF - (EAREE—
BARTTIEE 2R (B15E33(a)()) °
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14. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 14. BERNL#HHEER
Group
AEH
2013 2012
—EB-=F —E——4F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEHEE 3,178,592 3,205,171
Exchange realignment VE W% 35,877 46,359
Recognised during the year (note 6) FNRER (Kit6) (74,415) (72,938)
Carrying amount at 31 December RT+ZA=+—HZE@EE 3,140,054 3,178,592
Current portion included in MENED - BIEETEMNKIE
prepayments, deposits and e R EAEUKERRA
other receivables (74,415) (73,517)
Non-current portion JEm BN 3,065,639 3,105,075
The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and is MR E 4 b A A B A 3P i R HAFR
held under a long term lease. HIFEE -
As at 31 December 2013, the Group's leasehold land R-ZE—=F+-_A=+—HB"  Em\
located in Mainland China with a net book value of FE 493,140,054 T (& — — F
approximately HK$3,140,054 (2012: HK$3,178,592) 3,178,592/8 7T) 2 AL B 7 B A
were pledged to secure general banking facilities ZHELTHEEER  EALAEE—K
granted to the Group (note 33(a)(ii)). IRITIEEZ TR (B5E33(a)(ii)
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GOODWILL me
Group
AEE
HKS$
B
Cost and net carrying amount at W_ZE——F—H—H -
1 January 2012, 31 December 2012 and —E——-—F+=ZA=1+—8K
1 January 2013 TR = - HA-BIZRAREKREFE 4,193,707
Impairment during the year (note 6) FNRE (K7E6) (4,193,707)
At 31 December 2013 RN_E—=F+_HA=+—H -
At 31 December 2013: N_E—=F+-_A=+—H:
Cost DN 4,193,707
Accumulated impairment ZERE (4,193,707)
Net carrying amount BRMEFE -
Impairment testing of goodwill EmE 2R EIE

Goodwill arising through business combination has been
allocated to the cash-generating unit of the knitting and
textile business.

Full impairment was made for the goodwill due to the
slowdown of the knitting and textile business in the
PRC which resulted in a loss in the knitting and textile
business segment during the year.

The recoverable amount of the knitting and textile
business cash-generating unit, including carrying
amounts of net assets of the knitting and textile
business, has been determined based on a value in
use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by senior management
covering a fifteen-year period. The discount rate applied
to cash flow projections is 10% (2012: 11%) and cash
flows beyond the first five-year period are extrapolated
using a zero growth rate.

TCEAHMELZBHEBE I REHER
MEEH < REELET -

P AR B RO AR K 4 AR TS IR B B
METRE R B 0 8RS R - Hit
B BERAEENERE -

HE B EScReEABE T 2T
EIEHE (BEHBRNEER  EEF
B2EHE) DEREFHREBNE %
FREERRESRERAHE  MmiELk
FEARBEEEEESERMN T AT
M BEEmE TERZIWEXA
10% (ZZ——F : 11%) - s A FH
KR &M EL TG R R HEHE o
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15.

128

GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Assumptions used in the cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of the goodwill are as
follows:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the
average gross margins achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent
with external information sources.

15.

mE (&)

EmEZRENR (&

1T B R B 2 3R A TR £
AZBRNT :

HREEMF - BEENXZBETIRE
BEFERN —FMERNFYEN KRG
B WERETEMMEEE ML

FHE — FRE 2 FREDRBATRER
BB RIARIE T A -

FAsRR 2 BEEINEPBUR R — 2 -



16.

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMEIXERER (F8) ARAF
Annual Report 2013

—E-=FFH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B %8R R M zT

INTANGIBLE ASSET

31 December 2013 —ZE—=F+—-A=+—H

16. EFEEE

Group
rEE
Customer
relationship
EFB®&
HKS$
BT
31 December 2013 —E—-=F+=ZHA=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2013, net of accumulated MRZE—=F—H—HZKEK -
amortisation Bk RAEEE 950,817
Amortisation provided during the year (note 6) FEREEBE (HiT6) (190,163)
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=%+-A=+—H 760,654
At 31 December 2013: R-E—=%F+_-_A=+—8":
Cost RS 1,140,980
Accumulated amortisation RIEHH (380,326)
Net carrying amount AREFE 760,654
31 December 2012 —E——-HF+=ZHA=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2012, net of accumulated RZZE——F—A—BZA
amortisation Bk RIEEE S 1,140,980
Amortisation provided during the year (note 6) FNEIERE (Wite) (190,163)
At 31 December 2012 N-E——F+=-B=1+—8H 950,817
At 31 December 2012: R-E——F+-A=+—H:
Cost PN 1,140,980
Accumulated amortisation ZAREH (190,163)
Net carrying amount BREFE 950,817
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. B TR
Company
FiN/NG|
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—4F
HKS$ HK$
B BT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LR LKA 7,991 7,991
Due from subsidiaries FEUS BB N B FA 790,864,204 452,245,570
790,872,195 452,253,561
Impairment of amounts due from g = NCIE
subsidiaries ZRE (46,171,415) (45,171,415)

744,700,780

407,082,146

An impairment loss was recognised for amounts due L U B B A B R TE O RE SR R (B 5 48
WERZENB AR REREEERE K

loss-making for some time. BERE o

from subsidiaries because these subsidiaries have been

The balances with the subsidiaries are unsecured, BB AT Y Ak a5 b I
interest-free and are not expected to be repaid within ENEHEAN —ERNEE - E27

o BREMBARFEAREARNERQ
AR EERER -

one year. In the opinion of the directors, the amounts
due from the subsidiaries are considered as quasi-equity
loans to the subsidiaries.

The amount due from a subsidiary included in the
Company’s current assets of HK$6,474,000 (2012: Nil) is
unsecured, interest-free and is repayable on demand.

BEEARAIREBEENZ ERMEAR
A FXIB6,474,00008 T (Z T — — F ¢
) DR - 28 RARERKEEE -
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at the end of

the reporting period are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

Nominal value
of issued and fully
paid-up ordinary/

Percentage of

B D m S (A2
EEMERARGERRZFENT :

registration registered  equity attributable
Name and business share capital ~ to the Company Principal activities
BRITR
SR BrREZERE LNl
B AR E KR dAMRAZEE ~ RAEZEIL TEER
Direct Indirect
=84 EF:3
CATIC Helicopter Development PRC/Mainland China HK$42,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(Shenzhen) Limited FE PR 42,000,0005& 7T RE TR
("CATIC Helicopter SZ™ )**
R E RN RS (RY) AR
AR ([HREEFEARIN]) =
HIRBE4HBRRERAR  PRC/Mainland China HK$6,400,000 - 51 Production and
("Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu”)*** B /REIR 6,400,000/ 7T distribution of
(IRBEF]) +* knitting and textile
products, knitted
fabrics and clothing
HARSEL - HEE
HRRENEE RS
i
Billirich Investment Ltd.# British Virgin Islands/ US$1,000 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 1,000% 7T REZRR
RERUEE /B
CATIC General Aviation Holdings  British Virgin Islands/ Uss$2 100 - Investment holding
Limited? Hong Kong 2ETT REER
ERRUEE/BE
Wahman Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong (E REA®E
ERRUHE /&E
Smartcon Investment Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
("Smartcon")* Hong Kong E REZRR
RERUEE /B
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TEMBRARNBEHRRZFBAOT
(%)

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at the end of
the reporting period are as follows: (continued)

132

Nominal value
of issued and fully
paid-up ordinary/

Place of
incorporation/

Percentage of

registration registered  equity attributable
Name and business share capital  to the Company Principal activities
ERTR
gRMRI,/ BrREZERE LNl
B AR E K dAMRACHE ~ REAEZEIL TEXH
Direct Indirect
HE BF:3
Starnet Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong (ES REER
EREUHE /BE
Welly Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong (E REER
HERELES/BE
Sumber Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong E REZR
RKERUEE /B
Kingspot Investment Limited British Virgin Islands/ HK$1 100 - Investment holding
("Kingspot")* Hong Kong 18T BEER
EREUHE /BE
Sino-Aviation Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
("Sino-Aviation Investments")* Hong Kong (E REZR
HERELES/BE
Yipon Investment Limited? British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong (E REZR
REERUEE /BB
CATIC Helicopter (HK) Limited* British Virgin Islands/ Us$2 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 2ET REER
EREUHE /BE
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17. WERARER (&
* CATIC Helicopter SZ is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned * AR E A EORNR R BUE BT R
enterprise under PRC law. INERE -
b Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu is registered as a co-operative o WFLIRGEFBREFBEEMGZRARE
joint venture under PRC law. 1ok
# None of the statutory financial statements of these # FiL A L B BB & B 6905 TE B 7 Rk 19 3F
subsidiaries was audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or HRKBEBALKER S —KESE
another member firm of the Ernst & Young global network. % e
The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Company FRINHNESRETEZERFTEERE
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally LEUAEEEEFEEER D 2AR
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial AT B AR - EERAMEYEH M B
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of REEREBH K -
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.
In the prior year, the Group disposed of Ontex RBEFE  AEEHET —RE2EW
Enterprises Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary, its JE A A]Ontex Enterprises Limited + Eff
subsidiaries and certain other subsidiaries. Further BARIARETEMMB AT - ZF W
details of these disposals are included in note 38 to the EEIENFIEHNI BHRKHE38 -
financial statements.
INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 18. RERRZRE
Group
rEH
2013 2012
—Eg-= T
HK$ HK$
B BT
Share of net assets DEEERE 331,405,310 306,962,604
Goodwill on acquisition WIS PTE 2 2 7,744,607 7,744,607
339,149,917 314,707,211

The investment in a joint venture represents the Group's
right to enjoy certain economic benefits derived from
a 69.4% (2012: 69.4%) equity interest in CATIC Siwei
Co., Ltd. ("CATIC Siwei") held by third parties. CATIC
Siwei is registered as a co-operative joint venture under
PRC law and is holding an investment in China which
operates in aero-technology business. The Group is not
a shareholder of CATIC Siwei.

BERNAIZRERASBEER=ZEEE
VEZHEBZNEMRTERERA
A ([ ER]) 69.4% (=T ——4F
69.4%) Az 2B THERNZ - I
HEBBEBEREAZMAEELE
WHBE-—LEMERMEBZIRE - K
EBEIIEPN 4R AR o
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18.

134

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE
(continued)

In the opinion of the directors, notwithstanding that the
Group has the right to enjoy certain economic benefits
from the 69.4% equity interest in CATIC Siwei, none of
the shareholders of CATIC Siwei has unilateral control
over the economic activity of CATIC Siwei pursuant to
the provisions in the articles and association of CATIC
Siwei. Since the Group does not have any power to
control the financial and operating activities of CATIC
Siwei, the directors consider it is appropriate to account
for this right as an investment in a joint venture using
the equity method of accounting as at 31 December
2013 and 2012.

The above entity was not audited by Ernst & Young,
Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst &
Young global network.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of CATIC Siwei adjusted for any differences
in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements.

18.

BERTAZRE (&)

EEZRE BAXNEEHEB NEER
69.4% X AN #E 55 Y R PR A4S B W s i - 1B
RIEMEERNARERRTE  BED
HIERRREUEER I ICE SRS
B EESIE o BN ANE E RS
BER B REEEY  EFRAE
HIEZE R AR EHEARE  WRZ
T-—ZFEN_FE-—F+-fF=+—H
ATARERBZIRE -

TRIEMgERZWBEEMRE (B
SRR AR 2 ) = R Y R
EUBHBERAREEETHR) -

2013 2012

—E—= —E—-—F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Cash and cash equivalents HWeE kRS EE 283,733 166,748
Other current assets HmshEE 87,049 120,116
Current assets mENEE 370,782 286,864
Non-current assets IEREEE 203,159 227,744
Current liabilities mEBE (87,897) (28,043)
Non-current liabilities ErREas (8,515) (44,256)
Net assets BEFE 477,529 442,309
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INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 18. RERRZRE (&)
(continued)
2013 2012
—E—-= —_F—=
HK$ HK$
B BT
Reconciliation to the Group's investment — ZREERA Z A A
in the joint venture: ZIREBHER
Proportion of the Group's ownership REBHEAREZ LA 69.4% 69.4%
Group's share of net assets of REEDHEERT
the joint venture ZEBEEE 331,405 306,962
Goodwill on acquisition WHEFTEE A 2 P2 7,745 7,745
Carrying amount of the investment wEZREE 339,150 314,707
Revenue U %5 5,024 7,741
Interest income FEUTA 3,961 15,788
Gain on disposal of investment HEKRE Z s 163,554 389,246
Depreciation and amortisation e R (10,294) (6,509)
Interest expenses B (178) -
Tax 18 (35.494) (99,322)
Profit for the year R i F 80,598 328,100
Other comprehensive income Hith 2= (52,444) (427,492)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ RNFEZEU LR 28,154 (99,392)
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. BiE QTR
Group
KEE
2013 2012
—E—=F T
HKS HK$
B o
Share of net assets DIHEEFE 224,895,766 254,575,980
Goodwill on acquisition, after W P EE & 2 P
share of losses (D 1hEE®%R) 40,969,018 48,375,555
265,864,784 302,951,535
Less: Provision for impairment B R E R (1,826,000) -
264,038,784 302,951,535
Loans to associates mEtE N RIRHEZER
— non-current —IERH 57,324,841 -
Less: Impairment of loans to W AN RIS 2 ER
an associate ZRIE (19,000,000) -
38,324,841 -
302,363,625 302,951,535
Loans to an associate MBS N EIREZER
— current — & 12,101,911 12,250,000
Market value of listed shares LWk 2 mE 222,824,520 199,097,835
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The loans to associates, after impairment of
HK$19,000,000, included in the Group’s non-current
assets amounting to HK$38,324,841 (2012: Nil) are
unsecured, bear interest at 4.5% to 6.15% per annum
and are not repayable within one year. The non-current
loans to associates have convertible options which allow
the Group to convert the loans into ordinary shares of
the associates at an established conversion rate (i.e.
RMB1 per share). In the opinion of the directors, the fair
values of the convertible options do not have significant
financial effect and were therefore not recognised in
these financial statements. The loans to an associate
included in the Group’s current assets amounting to
HK$12,101,911 (2012: HK$12,250,000) are unsecured,
bear interest at 6% (2012: 6%) per annum and are
repayable within one year.

An impairment loss was recognised for loans to an
associate because the associate has been loss-making in
recent years.

The movements in the provision for impairment of the
loans to associates are as follows:

19.

31 December 2013 —ZE—=F+_-HA=+—H

BENREE (F)

BREEAEEIRBDEERNZABE R
AR 2 B3R (KR {E 19,000,000 7T
#%)38,324 841 L (ZE—ZF : &)
ThEE - REF RL5EE6.15E
BRBEAR—FANERE - M2 QAR
HZERBERTEURRE  AKE
AEMEERE (ERITARE) &
BEFERABMEARZERAK -EER
B ABRBEZ A AFETESE RV B
2 RAWLECEAMBHRERER - BI1F
EAEBERDEEN 2 M SR FRHE
ZEFR1019MB L (ZE— =4
12,250,000/ 7 ) JHEHER - RFF*6
B(ZE—ZF :6F)stERAER—F
WIEE -

FhIA B & R R R A B R RERR (B
B RN ZBERRNEE—EE

18-

B A RIR G R R ER LD
mT :

Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—= —ZF—=
HKS$ HK$
B BT
At 1 January m—A—H - -
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) ERRBEEE (#it6) 19,000,000 -
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 19,000,000 -
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19.

138

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the principal associate are as follows:

Particulars of

Place of
incorporation/
registration

19.

BENRES (&)

TEBERBZFHBOT

Percentage
of ownership
interest
attributable

Name issued shares held and business to the Group  Principal activities
FEBERT RIS rEEELES
=g 7 =18 B3 EEZEAL TEER
China Environmental Ordinary shares of Hong Kong 23.53 Operation of petroleum,
Investment Holdings HK$0.2 each a5 (2012: 28.23) compressed natural
Limited (“CEIH") FRX0.2TZ —E——F: gas and liquefied
FEIRRIEERD AR TimAR 28.23) petroleum gas
AR ([HERE]) refuelling stations, LED
street lighting, finance
leasing and trading of
gas related products
KA BERAR
KB A RRINEL
LEDHE&E - MEHE K
BEERFIEBAESR
I REEREHE Registered capital of PRC/Mainland 45 Research and
BRAA] RMB1 each China development
(MHEREEZFR]) * BRITARER HE of engineering
EERIIE= N ki technology
and electronics
communication
technology
TREMREFBERM
r B 9T K R #
EMEBMERBR AT Registered capital of PRC/Mainland 35  Provision of business
([ERMzE]) * RMB1 each China aviation services
BRITARER HE S HE and management of
EER RPN NP1 private jets
R ZE RS R FLA
R E I
EBETM AR Registered capital of PRC/Mainland 45 Development of circuit

BRHBERAE* RMB1 each China
BRITARE® hE
AR ki)
* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another

member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

boards, display
devices, and micro-
connected electronic
materials

BRIEIR - BN R AE
HEETMRARE

* WIARKEBLRKBERZE—KE

Bz o
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The above table lists the associates of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

During the year, the Group's equity interest in CEIH has
been diluted subsequent to the issuance of new ordinary
shares by CEIH to other shareholders. A net loss on
deemed disposal of an associate of HK$7,808,330 was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year.

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share
of losses of an associate, ZE#fiZE, because the share
of losses of the associate exceeded the Group's interest
in the associate and the Group has no obligation to
take up further losses. The amounts of the Group's
unrecognised share of losses of this associate for the
current year and cumulatively were HK$4,168,295

(2012: Nil) and HK$4,168,295 (2012: Nil), respectively.

it R # {& ZF has been taken as an
individual asset for impairment testing.

Investment in

During the year, impairment of HK$1,826,000 (2012:
Nil) (note 6) was recognised for the investment in 1t %
{Z2% to arrive at the recoverable value of the investment
of HK$7,186,000 which has been determined based on
a value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by senior
management covering a five-year period. The discount
rate applied to cash flow projections is 10% (2012:

11%).

19.

31 December 2013 —ZE—=F+_-HA=+—H

BENREE (F)

EFRINHEERREBREAFEXRA
FERAEBEEFETERO2AE
BEtE A  EER DM E b
RAERF RN TR -

FR AEERFTRHIRKEORER S
BEIRIGEAEMBRRETH T BREW
BE WHRANEHRE AR ZFER
7,808,330 B L ERAFEMNGZEBRE
R o

AEFCKIIER(E—HBERRE

4 fin 2= W%E’%Emﬁﬂﬁgﬁéﬁ
RIZEEEBAREBRNZEE QAN
Hm MASEECDEETRELE —F

B - AEEAEROELHZBE D
AAFEBBESERRTCES A
41682958 L (ZE —Z_F: &) &k
4,168, 295870 (ZT—ZF : &) »

RIEREEF 2R ED WG IFEE
B2 ERIEE °

TTRE

FAN BERIEREERZREERR
181,826,000/ 7T (= & — — 4 : #)
(K1 aE6) + LAS %R & 2 ] Y [0l 81 58
7,186,000/ 7T © AJ UL Bl SR EE Ty i% H A A

BEE  ZEAEEERRSRETEN
BE MRLEARRBCESESE

EHMAFHMEBEEMmME - FTEARZ
WHERE10% (ZE—ZF :11%) °
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19.

140

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Assumptions used in the cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of the investment are as
follows:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the
average gross margins achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent
with external information sources.

CEIH and £ Bt #n 22, which are considered material
associates of the Group, are accounted for using the
equity method.

19.

W& DTS ()
HEATIRE R B2 30 B TR £
AZBRNT :

BEEMF - BEENXZBETIRE
BEFERN —FMERNFHEN KRG
B WHRETARMEEE ML

I E — FTRA 2 TR E R BIATIE R
A B B B8 7T 2 A L

FAs RAR 2 BE RS EPBUR R — 2 -

WERAEB 2 EABLERARTHRR
K 2 EZE Ty AR R A AR -
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19. BEQTER (&)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial TRINEFBRREREBMZE 2 MBE
information of CEIH and £ M % adjusted for any HEEZ (ERermBRR 2 ERNEEREDR
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to AR ERAR S BT IS AR N 2 AREE T
the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial HER) -
statements:
CEIH: FERIE -
2013 2012
—Eg—-= —ET—F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Current assets MEEE 1,661,109 542,327
Non-current assets IEMBEE 1,161,569 976,044
Current liabilities mEAaE (1,390,227) (258,880)
Non-current financial liabilities, ERBEUBEE  TEEEN
excluding trade and other payables B SRR E b 5RIE &
and provisions B (200,816) (220,723)
Other non-current liabilities HmIERBEAE (157,595) (86,329)
Net assets BEFE 1,074,040 952,439
Net assets, excluding goodwill BESE TRERHE 923,522 800,232
Reconciliation to the Group's interest REERB S N AR
in the associate: B
Proportion of the Group's ownership NEEFEH R L 23.53% 28.23%
Group’s share of net assets of the REBEDRBERRIZEE
associate, excluding goodwiill FE - NEERE 217,305 225,905
Goodwill on acquisition WHEFTE A 2 P2 33,469 33,469
Carrying amount of the investment & ZEEHE 250,774 259,374
Revenue Wz 1,268,581 1,178,180
Loss for the year REEE (8.767) (25,111)
Other comprehensive income Hih 2E W 22,272 26,134
Total comprehensive income for AFEEEW BT
the year 13,505 1,023
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19.

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial

BENRES (&)

TRIEPEREEEBMZE 2B E
M2 (CRHestBRZEMERED

7o

information of CEIH and £ 5t #fi % adjusted for any

142

differences in accounting policies and reconciled to

the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial

statements: (continued)

WEDEEAVEREN EEERST

HR) : (&)

2013 2012
—EB-=F —E—_fF
HK$ HK$
B BT
Current assets MENEE 39,917 36,094
Non-current assets ETENEE 302,527 77,717
Current liabilities mEBE (79,148) (11,212)
Other non-current liabilities EmIERESAE (296,368) (63,573)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE /(AaE) #E (33,072) 39,026
Reconciliation to the Group's interest REBREE AR
in the associate: AR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBBEAEZ LA 35% 35%
Group's share of net assets/(liabilities) REBDRBERT 2
of the associate BE/(81&) FE - 13,659
Goodwill on acquisition, after share of WHEFEE 22 (H1h
losses BiE%) - 7,407
Carrying amount of the investment K& 7 ERHEE —* 21,066
Revenue g 27,694 419
Loss for the year REEE (71,706) (39,524)
Other comprehensive income Hith 2 (392) (289)
Total comprehensive income for REZEKRBEE
the year (72,098) (39,813)
* The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of * REBERIEBRADGEEBMENE

losses in this associate because the share of losses of 2

&M1Z° has exceeded the Group's interest therein and the

Group has no obligation to take up further losses.

B AREESHBREEBAREER
Ho#s MASBEEESEAEE—

FEE o
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19. BEARER (&)
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRINTAEBEERIEEREERF 2
information of the Group's associates that are not BRI ER -

individually material:

2013 2012
—E-=F —EF—=
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Share of the associates’ profits/(losses) 5 A EE B 44 1\ F)
and the total comprehensive ZaFl (&) &k
income for the year 2EW AR (7.421) 28
Aggregate carrying amount of the REBREE QT 2IRE
Group’s investments in the associates ZEEMEERRE 13,265 22,512

20. FINANCIAL ASSET UNDER PROJECT EC120 20. EC120iEH 2B EE

The balance represents the carrying value of the Group's é%ﬁ%?‘éﬂi’i@ﬁ_g%é_iﬁéﬂi’&az
interest in 80% of the interest of AVIC International T EERRA A H B ZE BT B R R R
Holding Corporation ("AVIC International"), a substantial Raa ([FRABIER]) BTEE ZEC12018
shareholder of the Company, in the net income in B R 2 FURA 2 80% 1 o5 2 2 5 BR T
relation to Project EC120 which was acquired from B -ECI200BER —IHER—NNZF+
AVIC International in 2002. Project EC120 is a jointly- A B A B9 B B398 32 38 = J7Eurocopter
controlled operation established in October 1992 by S.A. K Singapore Aerospace Ltd.f{3 2
AVIC International in co-operation with Eurocopter S.A. HEAEHIER - ZEAREREEES
and Singapore Aerospace Ltd., both independent third T’EEﬁi—}l‘ C BUE R B A EEECT1 208 5R 2
parties, to develop, manufacture and globally distribute SREETH -

the multi-purpose EC120 helicopters.

AVIC International's net income derived from Project AR EECI200BR 2 F WA - R
EC120 is limited to AVIC International's share of income, R B EECI120E B #HFEL 2
net of all expenses, to be derived from its interest in JEMRATIEBE 2WA CRRATERS) & (i)
Project EC120 in relation to (i) the sale and production HEREEEARTEH - RPMERKR
of parts and spares of helicopters and profits accrued to BRIREEEAM  BEF (k=
AVIC International from the sale of helicopters globally; MR B BR FE AT 2 FEEAAN ¢ ()L A
(i) the recovery of non-recurring costs accrued to AVIC BUBR S E B A 2 M BB R SR 2 U
International; (iii) commission income accrued to AVIC A R(iv)F MBI FEC120IE B &8 2
International from the sale of helicopters by AVIC FEETEIRUA -

International; and (iv) administrative income accrued to
AVIC International from the operations of Project EC120.
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20. FINANCIAL ASSET UNDER PROJECT EC120 20. EC120 BB 2B EE (&)

(continued)
As the investment represents a contractual right to ARZEREREABRS —REFERE
receive cash in the future from another enterprise, BEZABNERN  BHZKECDES
the investment has been classified as a non-current FnBAHEENNBEE - WEEK
available-for-sale financial asset and stated at cost less R AR E BB BR © 2R E AR A
any impairment losses. This investment is stated at cost WEBEINE B REEAFER
less impairment because the range of reasonable fair FTeEERA  MESRAEEY S
value estimates is so significant that the directors are EHAYE-
of the opinion that its fair value could not be measured
reliably.
As at 31 December 2013, the directors had made a full RZE—=F+=-_A=+—H EFHE
provision for impairment of the value of the financial MZIEMBEE 2 EBEELZ2ERER
asset. 1 o
The cost less accumulated impairment losses of the PBEEZRANRRBERESE DT
financial asset is analysed as follows: LUNNE
Group
rEE
HK$
BT
Cost: B
At 31 December 2012, 1 January 2013 and W-_E——F¥+=-_A=+—H -
31 December 2013 —ET—=F—-H—HK
—T-=Ft-A=t+—H 39,759,462
Accumulated impairment: RIERE :
At 31 December 2012, 1 January 2013 and RZE——F+=_A=+—H -
31 December 2013 “T-=F—A—-HBK
—E—=%+-HA=+—8H (39,759,462)
Carrying amount: BREE :
At 31 December 2012 and R-ZE——F+-_A=+—8BxK
31 December 2013 —E—=9F+-A=+—H -
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ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE PERFERLENEE
Group
REE
2013 2012
—EB-=F —E——4F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Interest in an associate RNV - 60,000,000

As at 31 December 2012, the Group held a 22.66%
equity interest in Sinbo Investment Limited ("Sinbo")
and its subsidiaries (collectively as "Sinbo Group"),
through Kingspot, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. Sinbo Group is principally engaged in
providing consulting services to Peace Map Co., Ltd
("Peace Map"), an associate of the joint venture of
the Group. In the opinion of the directors, the interest
in Sinbo Group was available for immediate sale in its
then condition as at 31 December 2012 subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for its sale which
was probable. Accordingly, as at 31 December 2012, the
22.66% equity interest in Sinbo Group was classified as
an asset held for sale at its then net carrying value of
HK$60,000,000.

W_ZE——"F+-_HA=+—8 ~&£EH
B RN A H 2 B M B R AlKingspotiF
EHBEREARRAR([HE]) REH
BAF (B ESE]) 2266%M
BAEZ - FEEEZTENETRNAER
AENBMWEE QR TR T B EE
BiiBRAR ([RKTE]) 248k
BoEERR RNE—_F+-A=
+—B HEREENRRERLEZSE
7 2 — MRAE F G SR AT LA IR AR 6t BN B
& BEReEREE2HMERS - Bt -
R-ZEBE——F+_B=+—8 " R¥
BEEEM266%RAEDIZERFE
60,000,000/ THERFEFHENE
= o
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21.

146

ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(continued)

On 8 April 2013, Kingspot and all other shareholders of
Sinbo (the “Vendors”) entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”)
with Peace Map Holding Limited (“PMH") (formerly
known as Mongolia Investment Group Limited) and its
wholly-owned subsidiary, Jichang Investments Limited
("Jichang”), to dispose of their entire equity interests
in Sinbo to Jichang (the “Disposal”), as disclosed in
the announcement and circular of the Company dated
10 April 2013 and 6 May 2013, respectively. Pursuant
to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, Kingspot was to
receive an aggregate consideration of HK$339,900,000
(subject to adjustment) which shall be satisfied as to (i)
HK$135,960,000 in cash; (ii) convertible bonds issued
by PMH ("PMHCB") with an aggregate principal amount
of HK$185,812,000; and (iii) PMHCB with a principal
amount of HK$18,128,000 (subject to adjustment) to
be issued by PMH upon the receipt by Jichang of the
auditor’s certificate of the audited consolidated net
profit after taxation of Sinbo Group for the year ended
31 December 2013 (“PAT") (“PMH Deferred CB").

On 2 August 2013, the Disposal was completed.
Pursuant to the terms of the Sale and Purchase
Agreement, Jichang and PMH elected to issue
additional convertible bonds to replace part of the cash
consideration such that the aggregate consideration of
HK$339,900,000 (subject to adjustment) receivable by
Kingspot for the Disposal was to be satisfied as to (i)
HK$56,650,000 in cash; (i) PMHCB with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$265,122,000 (hote 22(b)); and
(iii) PMHCB with a principal amount of HK$18,128,000
(subject to adjustment) (note 23(b)) to be issued on PMH
Deferred CB.

21.

PERBEFHENEE (B)

RZZE—=FMH/N\B ' Kingspot & T
EMRMBEEMBRR([EH]) BXTE
ERBEBR AR ([XTEERKR] (AT
SHRESEEBRAR) REEEEE
Ff & A &llichang Investments Limited
([Jichang)) STV EE & ([BE F#H
#&1)  BAAlichang & ERFE K
R AER (THESE]D (@HOXR
ANAAEMARA—ZE—=EMA+H
FZE—=FRANEBNAERBK
Fr# e &) - IR1KE 8 & %%  Kingspot
#% U E & #£ A 8339,900,0007% 7T (7]
THRE) BEERESERATHEIAL
i+ (i) 135,960,000/ 7T # LA IR & 75 =
TR MARTEERBETASBLER
185,812,000 ST AT # AR & 5 ([ KT
BliEAR AT ES 1) ¢ KR ichangik
IR ZEMBELNERTESEREC
E—=F+ZA=+—HLEFEMNLE
ZEREBRTEARN ([BREEEN]) £
WEER  RTEEREETZAEA
18,128,000 7T (A FHE) X TE
fRAT R ES ([ X T B EREE A R
&%) e

R-ZZE—=ZF\A-B  HEFTHEX
B o 1R IR B & i 60 R 3K 0 Jichang &
AT BIEREEREITREIINTRRESAK
BHMIBSMNRE - At - Kingspotit 1
EFHEE WM A H£ K E339,900,000%
(AT FHAE) BRUATAHRIZA ()
56,650,000 L AIR & 5 S A ¢ (i) A
& # %8 5265,122,000/8 ;LRI K T B 4%
BRI E & (A7 5722(b)) 5 KBt &
TEZEREERRRESMETZ RS
£18,128,000/8 7T (Al FH%) WA TE
ERR AT R ES (HTat23(b)) »
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ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(continued)

PMHCB is convertible to ordinary shares of PMH at
HK$0.25 per share (subject to adjustment upon the
change in the capital structure of PMH) and will mature
in five years from the date of issuance. PMH and
the Vendors agreed that where the PAT is less than
HK$80,000,000 (the “Profit Guarantee"), the aggregate
principal amount of PMHCB to be issued to the Vendors
on PMH Deferred CB will be reduced by the shortfall
between the PAT and the Profit Guarantee up to a
maximum of HK$80,000,000. Thus, the principal amount
of PMHCB to be issued to Kingspot on PMH Deferred
CB is subject to a deduction equivalent to Kingspot's
pro rata share of any shortfall between the PAT and the
Profit Guarantee up to a maximum of HK$18,128,000.

A gain on disposal of Sinbo Group of HK$358,423,419
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the year as follows:

21.

31 December 2013 —ZE—=F+_-"HA=+—H

PERBEFHENEE (B)

R TEIZERTRRES RS R.25E
T (HEERTEIERERNEE ZEE)
TURAE) BRARTEERZ2E®
B BRRBITEERFT AFANTE -
ATEZREEFRE  MEHEZF
24> 780,000,000 7T ([& #) 4R &) -
FER T B REIE A R AR (E 25 T A5 2 1T
FEFNXTEERAIBRRBRES 2 AS
2R 5 H0 R BR B 18 R AR R OE FIR F
By Z= %8 - M S #880,000,000/% JT ©
Eit - stR TEERELE TR ESM
#5547 FKingspoth) X T Bl 2 J& A] # i%
BEHZASEA THIR - AR S 5A
£ HKingspotiz t il 216 2 B F 18 i FI
TRHEMNREBEZEMERE  ETEA
18,128,000/ 7T °

HE T S B 2 F)H358,423,419%8 7T
ERBUATHERAF 2GS BRRE

E
At

HK$
BT
Consideration received: BUARE -
Cash " 56,650,000
PMHCB, at fair value RKTEERAIREES - EAYE
— the bonds component (note 22(b)) — &H &, (HiF22(0)) 160,455,041
— the embedded derivatives (note 23(a)) —BARPTET AR (B2723(a)) 177,858,043
PMH Deferred CB, KT BEZERIELE TR ES
at fair value (note 23(b)) BRE (HaE23(b)) 23,460,335
418,423,419
Carrying value of interest in Sinbo Group MEREER CREE 60,000,000
Gain on disposal & 2 ) E 358,423,419
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22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 22. AMEHENRE
Group Company
TEE FiN/NC|
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —F—= —E—= —_F—=
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Listed investment AR E R
in Mainland China, ®E AT E
at fair value (note (a)) (M5ta)) - 144,518,380 = -
Unlisted investments, JEELETIRE -
at fair value: BRFE
PMH Bonds (note (b)) KTEEZERES
(K17#(®b)) 152,065,478 - = -
CEIH Bond (note (c)) RS ES
(et () 47,342,072 44,386,771 = -
Club debentures &S 5,115,969 5,070,300 2,680,300 2,680,300
204,523,519 193,975,451 2,680,300 2,680,300
Notes: Bzt -
(a) During the year, a fair value gain of HK$40,496,212 (2012: (a) TR ZBEEEZAFEFH40,496,2127%

(ZZ——%F : RF(EF18124,669,666/5
) TRAFE 2 b2 E IS HER o

a fair value loss of HK$124,669,666) in respect of this
investment was recognised in other comprehensive income

gl

for the year.

During the year, the investment was disposed of and FR BEREHELHE B2TERN
aggregate fair value gain of HK$177,211,944 (2012: 177,211,944 t (= T — — F:
HK$247,950,880) were released from the available-for- 247,950,880/ 70) B AT H S E EA
sale investment revaluation reserve. A net gain on disposal HER - HEZUHREEREZFHE (B
of such available for-sale investment of HK$140,209,026 B HEEER) 140,209,026/870 (=T ——
(2012: HK$223,313,135) was recognised in the F 1 223,313,135%870) ERAFEZREE
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year, after IR ©

netting off the relevant expenses.

The total deferred tax credit, net, amounting to 48 T 15 7% [0] % 5834,178,933B 7 (=& —
HK$34,178,933 (2012: HK$93,155,136) (note 34) was Z4F : 93,155,136/ 7T) (A1i#34) Bt A
credited to other comprehensive income for the year. N2 B2 EES -
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

As detailed in note 21 to the financial statements, PMH
issued PMHCB with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$265,122,000 (note 21) to the Group on 2 August
2013. PMHCB are hybrid instruments that include non-
derivative host contracts and embedded derivatives. The
non-derivative host contracts, representing the bonds
component (“PMH Bonds”), have been designated as
available-for-sale investments. The embedded derivatives,
representing the conversion options which allow the
Group to convert PMHCB into ordinary shares of PMH at
an established conversion rate (i.e., HK$0.25 per share),
have been designated as derivative financial instruments
(“PMH Derivatives”). The PMHCB are non-interest-bearing,
convertible into 1,060,488,000 ordinary shares of PMH at
HK$0.25 per share (subject to adjustment upon the change
in the capital structure of PMH) and will mature in five
years from the date of the issuance.

As a result of the PMHCB with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$22,531,160 being derecognised on 25
November 2013 pursuant to the borrowing agreement
set out in note 23(d) to the financial statements, as at
31 December 2013, PMHCB with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$242,590,840 remained which are convertible
into 970,363,360 ordinary shares of PMH at HK$0.25 per
share (subject to adjustment upon the change in the capital
structure of PMH).

As at 2 August 2013, the fair value of PMH Bonds was
stated at HK$160,455,041 (note 21). As at 25 November
2013, PMH Bonds revalued at HK$14,509,342 (note 23(d))
were derecognised pursuant to the borrowing agreement
above, and a fair value gain of HK$873,211 (note 23(d))
was resulted. As at 31 December 2013, PMH Bonds
remained were stated at the fair value of HK$152,065,478.
A fair value gain of HK$5,246,568 was resulted. As a
result, a fair value gain of HK$6,119,779 in aggregate
in respect of the PMH Bonds was recognised as other
comprehensive income for the year. All the fair values
above were determined based on valuations performed by
an independent professionally qualified valuer.

31 December 2013 —ZE—=F+_-"HA=+—H

AHHENRE (&)

(b)

Hrit c (&)

B RFR M 21Tl - KT EER
N-T—=F )\ A - BAANEEETA
£ #%85265,122,00008 7T (A7E21) &
ATEZERAIRKES - K TEZERA
BRREFRBEEIHNTEIAFANRET
ARPTETAMEATA - FHTETA
FEHARKESFISD ([RTEZERKRE
5]) BEHEBEERAHEENRE - #
ARMTETAERERATAEEIZREE
(B (BEFRR0.258 ) KT BER
ARREFERAR TEERZ EBR
IR R BEREEATESRIA
(TRTEEBRITETA] - ZATEE
R AT R B AT EHE - AR EAR0.25
BT (HEERTEEREARNERE &
BT LAFE) $31251,060,488,000% K
TEERE AR TEaETAEHR
FHIE -

IR R B IS IR &R M 23(d) 2 B E 1
W AN £ 4% 522,531,160/ T H) K
TEERIRBREFEN T —=4F
T—AZTRAKIEER AR
T—=F+-_A=+—H HBTEXE
#%8242,590,8407% JT Y K T B 12 B% AT
BRES ZERXTEERITRRE
FA R G R025B T (KEEXT B
TRENEEZEHTUARE) B0 A
970,363,360/% K T Bl 2 Ei@ik o

RZZT—=FN\A=-H XTEZERK
& 75 #) & ¥ 18 5 {8 /160,455,041
7T (HFE21) RZE—=F+—H=
+EHB - BffA14,509,34258 ¢ (K1 i
23(d)) R TEIERESRIE EXX2E
EpE LR - WEBAE873,211
BT (H15123(d) 2 A TFERZ - R
T—=F+=ZA=+—H HBTZXT
Bl %2 iR (& 5 A & P (152,065,478 7T
FIME - BHHE5,246,568/8 T 2 A 1A
Wz F - BERTEERESOHR
FEKZEA H£6,119,7798 TERER
RAEEMEENE - A EMBAERTE
BIRBE L EEAERAEMETOE
BRETE °
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22.

150

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(0

The convertible bond issued by CEIH (“CEIH Convertible
Bond”) bears interest at 2% per annum, is convertible into
220,322,859 ordinary shares of CEIH at HK$0.235 per
share (subject to adjustment upon the change in the capital
structure of CEIH) and will mature in three years from the
date of the issuance.

CEIH Convertible Bond is a hybrid instrument that includes
a non-derivative host contract and an embedded derivative.
The non-derivative host contract, representing the bond
component (“CEIH Bond"”), has been designated as an
available-for-sale investment. The embedded derivative,
representing the conversion option which allows the Group
to convert CEIH Convertible Bond into ordinary shares of
CEIH at an established conversion rate (i.e., HK$0.235 per
share) before the maturity date of CEIH Convertible Bond,
has been designated as a derivative financial instrument
("CEIH Derivative”).

As at 31 December 2013, the fair value of CEIH Bond was
stated at HK$47,342,072 (2012: HK$44,386,771) based
on a valuation performed by an independent professionally
qualified valuer, and a fair value gain of HK$2,955,301
(2012: HK$3,128,830) in respect of CEIH Bond was
recognised as other comprehensive income for the year.

During the year, the net gain, in aggregate, in

respect of the Group’s available-for-sale investments

recognised in other comprehensive income amounted to
HK$49,571,292 (2012: net loss of HK$121,540,836).

22.

AHHENRE (&

Hrat - (&)

(@}

FEIRIEET 2 A RRES ([RERE
ARRER D REMNE2EFE - AR
§h%0.2358 7T (% EEFR BRI E AL
2 28T LA ) $81%/5220,322,859
A& BIIR IS I AL - W08 B 39T B ARET
—FHIE

FEIREARRESF AR SIETETIL
FAEOERRARTETAZEATA -
FUTETEFAARKESD ([H
BIRIZES]) BHETATHEER
BE - MARTETLERRATAEE
AR BRI AT AR (& % 2 B HI B ATHRRE
TEEH(E (B15020.235% ) 9 ER
BARRESFERARBEIRE 2 EBR
R BEWEEATESRIA
(THRBEIREBITETA]) -

RZE—=F+=ZA=+—8 B3R
BEHZAFEREBSEEEBMG
BRD#ETT 2 (B 5B A47,342,0724 7T
(=T — % :44,386,77187C) * £ E
RRESH 2 ATFEFE2,9553018 7T
(ZZ— =4 :3,128,830/87t) ERNE
NiERREM 2 E Y o

FR REMA2EREERZAEE
AHEENREZMEFESHRA
4957128 T (ZTE—Z_F: HEZF
%8121,540,836/87T) °
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 22. O#HHEEMNERE (&)
(continued)
The fair values of certain of the unlisted available-for- EFILmAatEENEE Y AFEETY
sale investments have been estimated using valuation F A GHEEMRE RS G K Mz
techniques based on assumptions that are supported by ERELDUATERMEBRKERES
observable market price or rates. The valuation requires o ZMEAESEHEHRAXRES R
the directors to make estimates about the expected 2 BIETEHARKEE ERERRAEE
future cash flows including expected future dividends, AR EEERES Gt 2548
the risk-free rate and the credit spread of the underlying = AR EEITET B AR A B i ik
shares. The directors believe that the estimated fair MENDSEZESAFLELREMEE
values resulting from the valuation techniques, which WS BEALEEH IELS
are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial B BARRERAYSSEEE -
position, and the related changes in fair value, which are
recorded in other comprehensive income, are reasonable,
and that they were the most appropriate values at the
end of the reporting period.
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 23. $TE€mIT A
Group
REH
2013 2012
—E—-= —_EF—=
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Non-current assets: ERBEE
PMH Derivatives (note (a)) R IEZERITETA
(Byit(a)) 167,586,217 -
PMH Deferred CB (note (b)) R B2 AR IR ST AT #2 A%
& (Wit (b) 23,843,651 -
191,429,868 -
Current assets: MENEE
CEIH Derivative (note (c)) PEREITETA
(Kret(c)) 7,458,647 9,014,631
Broadlink Derivative (note (d)) Broadlink#T4& T &
(K1et(d) 27,173,630 -
34,632,277 9,014,631
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23.

152

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

The Group’s derivative financial instruments are
managed and their performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis. Any fair value gain or loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The fair values of the derivative financial instruments
have been estimated using valuation techniques based
on assumptions that are supported by observable market
prices or rates. The valuations require the directors to
make estimates, including expected cash flows and
volatility of the underlying securities. The directors
believe that the estimated fair values resulting from
the valuation technique, which are recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair value, which are recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, are reasonable,
and that they are the most appropriate values at the end
of the reporting period.

23.

fTEemMIA (&)

AEEZTEEMTANEAFEREE
B ERBNMEAFEEEFE - (£
A FENEREBERINGEEERERA
TER -

TEER T Az AFEDMAGERM
REBBZEFHR  MEZEFREEET
BREMSERIERIES - HERE
EELMEF  EERBESRENEH
EFHF KR -  EFHEERBERMNE
HmELRA M BERRRARZ AT
B AREGEERERARZIHERIF
BEEPETELE  YARSHRZHKA
EEE -
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

PMH Derivatives represent the derivatives embedded
in PMHCB as detailed in note 22(b) to the financial
statements.

As at 2 August 2013, the fair value of PMH Derivatives was
stated at HK$177,858,043 (note 21). As at 25 November
2013, PMH Derivatives revalued at HK$16,221,693 (note
(d) below) was derecognised pursuant to the borrowing
agreement set out in (d) below, and a fair value gain of
HK$1,106,584 was resulted. As at 31 December 2013,
PMH Derivatives remained was stated at the fair value of
HK$167,586,217. A fair value gain of HK$4,843,283 was
resulted. As a result, a fair value gain of HK$5,949,867 in
aggregate in respect of PMH Derivatives was recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year. All
the fair values above were determined based on valuations
performed by an independent professionally qualified
valuer.

As detailed in note 21 to the financial statements, the
Group will receive PMHCB with a principal amount of
HK$18,128,000 (subject to adjustment) (note 27) from PMH
on PMH Deferred CB which represents a derivative financial
instrument, the fair value of which is dependent upon the
amount of the PAT.

As at 2 August 2013 and 31 December 2013, the fair value
of PMH Deferred CB was stated at HK$23,460,335 (note
21) and HK$23,843,651, respectively, based on a valuation
performed by an independent professionally qualified
valuer. A fair value gain of HK$383,316 was recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.

CEIH Derivative represents the derivative embedded in
CEIH Convertible Bond as detailed in note 22(c) to the
financial statements. As at 31 December 2013, the fair
value of CEIH Derivative was stated at HK$7,458,647
(2012: HK$9,014,631) based on a valuation performed by
an independent professionally qualified valuer, and a fair
value loss of HK$1,555,984 (2012: HK$12,671,668) was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year.

31 December 2013 —ZE—=F+_-"HA=+—H

fTHEL®MIA (&)

(a)

IREA T SRR P RE22(b) P AL - R T Bl
BOTETARKRR T EZERAREES
FERAZITETA -

WZZ—=%F N \A-H KTEZEK
PTEITEMNAFETEAR177,858,043
BT (Hig21) e R—ZE—=F+—A8
—+EHB £E516,221,6938 L (T
X HTaEd) MR TEERITETAR
BTXHEMS 2 EERERKLE
R WEEAE1,106,5848 T2 AF
Bz R -_E—=%+-F=+—
B BRTZ2RAKTEEZERITETIANR
F {8167,586,217 8 LA E - EHH
4,843,283 w2 A FERE - Bt
BEXTEERITETIANAFEK
%A 5,949,867 TE R FANME S
BHEATHER - UEMBAFEERE
B BEAERGEMETOEERE

-
E o

BB IRR M 21 AT - AEEHR K
TEERECTHRRES SRR TEIE
% Yz BY AN 4 #A /218,128,000 7T (7] F
FE) (BiF21) 2 R TEZR R AT R E
Ho R TNBEIERELEATRRESRE—
BATESBMTA  EQFEBURRBRE
-k e

BEBIEEGERGHEMETH
HE RE-—=FNAZ-HB K=
E-—ZF+-_A=+—H' KTHE
TRIELE T RBES 2 A FED R
5| {& #%23,460,335% JT (A i21) R
23,843,651 7T » A F {8 48 25383,316
BILTERFRANGEBERTHER -

0 B 7 SR R M iE22( BT R - AR EIER
BOTETARKRPEREBABRES
FRAZITETRE - RZZT—=F 1
—A=Z+—8B REBIUFEALR
HEMETHGHE  FERRETET
A®RQFEFEAE7,458,6478 T (=
T — —%:9014,6318 ) AFE
/& $81,555,984% L (= T — = &
12,671,668 L) A F A ABR
KPR -
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23.

154

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d)

On 25 November 2013, the Group entered into a borrowing
agreement with Broadlink Enterprises Limited (“Broadlink”),
an independent third party and a former shareholder of
Sinbo, pursuant to which the Group lent to Broadlink
PMHCB with a principal amount of HK$22,531,160. It
was also agreed that on 31 July 2014, the maturity date,
Broadlink may elect to return to the Group either (i) PMHCB
with a principal amount of HK$22,531,160 together with
interest at 2.5% per annum in cash; or (ii) a lump sum of
HK$33,000,000 in cash.

On 25 November 2013, the PMHCB with a principal
amount of HK$22,531,160 was derecognised by the Group
at the aggregate fair value of HK$30,731,035, comprising
the fair value of PMH Bonds of HK$14,509,342 (note
22(b)) and of PMH Derivatives of HK$16,221,693 (note (a)
above). On the other hand, the consideration receivable
from Broadlink has been recorded as a derivative financial
instrument (“Broadlink Derivative”) which was stated at
HK$27,826,217 based on a valuation performed by an
independent professionally qualified valuer. A fair value
gain of HK$873,211 (note 22(b)) was released from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve due to the
derecognition of the related PMH Bonds and a net loss on
derecognition of the related PMHCB of HK$2,031,607 was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year.

As at 31 December 2013, the fair value of the Broadlink
Derivative was stated at HK$27,173,630 based on a
valuation performed by an independent professionally
qualified valuer, and a fair value loss of HK$652,587 was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year.

23.

/A

1

SR THE (&)

Hiet : (48)

(d)

R—ZZT—=F+—HA=Z+AB &
£ @ HiBroadlink Enterprises Limited
(IBroadlink] » — &L 8 =7H %
EMRARR) ST —MEERZE &
It » 7K £ @ [ABroadlinkf& tH A & %8 A&
22,531,160 7L 2 KX T BIE IR A1 4 % (&
FoBFNMETE RZT—NFLA=
+—H8 (2/#IA) - Broadlink Ali& 2 A A
SEIREN)A S R22,531,1608 T2
RTEZERAI SRR ESER AR S
REME25EFEZFE - S(NVATR
% 2 1433,000,0007 7T 2 — IR MEFKIA o

RZF—=F+—A=+HB *5%E
A £ AF(E30,731,0358 L (BEA
F1{E14,509,34258 7T (A1 at22(b)) 2 K
TEERES R ATF(E16,221,6938 T
(FXHiata) 2K TBEZBEITETA)
4R AR S % 522,531,160 T H)
ATEZERATSRES -S—FH®E &
WBroadlinkM R B AMTESRTA
([Broadlink$TAE T A )  IRIEE I HE
A EREEMEITRIGEL27,826,217
BILHE - HRERIEERR TEZERE
% - Bz AFAEKZES73,. 2118 (M
#22(b)) BRI SR EEHHET
FERR - AR EHEFRAERED 2 KT B AR AT i
% & % /9 % B 182,031,607 8 L E RN &
NEFEIBm KPR

R-_ZE—=F+-_A=+—H  RE
BUEESBRGEMETHHE
BroadlinkfT £ T EM A FEHE A
27,173,630/ 7t + A 1B /&5 $8652,587
BILERENGRABRRPER -
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 23.

(continued)

During the year, the net fair value gain in respect of
the Group's derivative financial instruments recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
amounted to HK$4,124,612 (2012: net fair value loss of
HK$12,671,668).

fTEeMIA (&)

FHN - REEBERRBERZAEEITA
SR T A2 A FEMNBDFERL 124,612
BL(ZE—ZF: RFEBBFE
12,671,668 7T) °

INVENTORIES 24. FE
Group
£33
2013 2012
—E-=F —FE——F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Raw materials Bl 1,231,109 2,043,380
Finished goods RUEK TR 1,794,647 733,156
3,025,756 2,776,536
TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 25. EWESRIFILERE
Group
A
2013 2012
—E-=F —E-—F
HK$ HK$
B BT
Trade and bills receivables JEWE SRR R EE 15,803,837 14,734,812
Impairment A (940,963) (919,620)
14,862,874 13,815,192

155



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

HEMZETIXEREZER (F8) BRAA
Annual Report 2013
TE-ZFFR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B %R R M sT

31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-A=+—H

25.

156

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment
in advance is normally required. The credit period is
generally one month, extending up to three months
for major customers. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade and
bills receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date and net of provisions, is as follows:

25.

EWE S RARERE (&)

AEBEEXPZEERKIEZRR
REFEPRINTEF—RFBER
RIS - EEH—RAE—EA - 8RE
EXFBRZEHE=MEA - BUTFH
RAERAEERE - AEEHREKE
BZRUERERHEREE - BERE
TEHIRET B HI A R o B IA L PTIR RR
SECEREBEIEFILREDRERE
NHZEPNEE AU BEAEE
SHER - REBELEEEYWE 5
R EHF A EMERmIEBEER
& RWEZERLBEAHERNS -

RBEHR  BREZERRZHRLE
SRR EE ZREOTMT

Group

AEEH
2013 2012
—E-=F T
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Current BNER 10,599,727 11,621,215
31 to 60 days 31£260H 2,108,210 559,727
61 to 90 days 61290H 1,039,371 -
Over 90 days 90H Ik 1,115,566 1,634,250
14,862,874 13,815,192
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25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 25. FEWESEZRRERE (4£)

The movements in the provision for impairment of the FEWE SEFREE ZBEREZED
trade and bills receivables are as follows: T:
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E-= —E——HF
HKS$ HK$
ET BT
At 1 January n—HA—H 919,620 -
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) T HERRIERIE (f:16) 3,770 919,620
Exchange realignment M 5, B 17,573 -
At 31 December R+-_A=+—H 940,963 919,620
Included in the above provision for impairment of trade STA LM ERE SR REE 2R E R
and bills receivables was a provision for individually EeRERERREZEKE ZERLE
impaired trade and bills receivables of HK$940,963 ¥ 2 B B940,9638 L (Z & — —F ¢
(2012: HK$919,620) with the same carrying amount 919,620/ jT) - B & Al 2 Bx E B M8
before provision. The individually impaired trade and [ - ERREEKE SERNEES
bills receivables relate to customers that were in financial LEEMERBESBEARNESNH 2R
difficulties or were in default in principal payment and P BYEERESRD 2 % FEUER AT P Uk
only a portion of the receivables was expected to be @ o
recovered.
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25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 25. FEWESEZRRERE (4£)

The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that AR AEEE RN BB HE T EKE
are not individually nor collectively considered to be SESREE VEBRSTMOT ¢

impaired is as follows:

Group
AEE
2013 2012
—EB-=F —E——4F
HK$ HK$
Er BT
Neither past due nor impaired R H R ARORE 12,707,937 12,180,942
Less than 1 month past due B ER AR —1{E A 1,039,371 -
1 to 3 months past due B —E==1EA 1,115,566 1,634,250
14,862,874 13,815,192
Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired relate REATPRBEZEBBER P RBE S
to a large number of diversified customers for whom TERP  ZEREPESCIENESL -
there is no recent history of default.
Receivables that are past due but not impaired relate to EEEMERRAECEBBRER YRR
a number of independent customers that have a good HASEERERTBEICHIBILE
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, P RIBEBRELR  ARAIEERR
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no EAMZEHSRIED ERE R -
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these EEESHNEERNEHRERBINER

balances as there has not been a significant change in AR 2 ERYE -
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.
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LOANS TO RELATED COMPANIES

The loans to related companies represent loans to Peace

26.

Map, an associate of the joint venture of the Group, and its
subsidiary, tRBMERHEEREERF] (JERERME"),
which are unsecured, bear interest at 6.15% (2012: 6%)
per annum and are not repayable within one year (2012:

repayable within one year).

Particulars of the amounts due from related companies

disclosed pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance are as follows:

31 December 2013 —ZE—=F+—-A=+—H

[ R A AR ER
AABARRENEFTEAARERZ
REZBERR R NEREMB AR
REBAEREAREEAR ([dEREEM
g ) Rtz B REERREEM -
REFE6I5E (ZT—=F : 6[F) 3T
ERBAR-—FREER (ZT——%F:
BR—FRERE) -

RIBBERAEDIFE161BIRIE Z B
BB R PSR ISESIMT

Group KEE
Maximum
amount

31 December outstanding 1 January

2013  during the year 2013

—E-=F FARZxE —ET—=

+=-B=+—H REESHE —A—H

HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT

Peace Map AT E 19,108,280 19,108,280 18,750,000

36 B FniE 36 B R 1,019,109 1,019,109 -

20,127,389 18,750,000

Less: non-current portion  J& : IERENELD (20,127,389) -

Current portion mEnEb i - 18,750,000
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27.

160

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 27. FENFIE - EREMEWER
RECEIVABLES
Group Company
rEH VNN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —ZZT——%F —E—= —E——4F
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
B BT BT BT
Prepayments R 21,812,918 5,464,362 3,108,792 3,088,644
Deposits and other e REAMER
receivables BR R 69,117,764 26,996,973 6,883,373 10,115,855
Deposit paid for acquisition UxE&¥n % AT 2 1~
of a property 2B - 40,000,000 - -
90,930,682 72,461,335 9,992,165 13,204,499
Less: non-current portion  J& : FEREN IR - (40,000,000) = -
Current portion B EBH 90,930,682 32,461,335 9,992,165 13,204,499
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. L EEMETMEESONE - FTAL

The financial assets included in the above balances
related to receivables for which there is no recent history
of default.

Included in deposits and other receivables at the end of
the reporting period was a receivable of HK$20,150,000
(2012: HK$20,150,000) which is secured by a 100%
equity interest in Alliance Elegant Limited, wholly-owned
by the borrower, an independent third party, who is also
one of the Vendors of the Disposal as detailed in note
21 to the financial statements.

In the prior year, included in the above assets was a
deposit paid for acquisition of a property located in
Zhejiang, the PRC, of RMB32,000,000, equivalent to
approximately HK$40,000,000. During the year, the
acquisition was cancelled. The deposit of HK$6,878,981
remained outstanding at the end of the reporting period
and was included in other receivables.

MEHR A BEES R BRIIENESL
H) I BR AR

RWERR ReREMERERE
E 18 W BR 3820,150,0008 T (Z & — =
£ 120,150,000 7T) - % 2 FE WBR 5K
TIAEBH (—RBYE=F BRET2S
R MERMF21AF 2 B EEIE
ZEHR—EEF) 2 EH%E Alliance
Elegant LimitedZ 100% % 7 # &5 1E 3K
o

BEFE LR EEBBREMLR
FEFI —EWEMIN RS
32,000,000t A B % - M F R 8
40,000,000 T FR - ZBEKERS
BE MRABEHERDAREECRS
6,878,981/ T T B & 1& H fh & YL BR 51
A o
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EQUITY INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE 28. BAEETAERZEZRAKRE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—=—= —ET—ZfF
HK$ HK$
BT Vo
Listed equity investment in Hong Kong, &/#& FHRAKRE -
at market value LA 8,381,000 -

The above equity investment at 31 December 2013
was classified as held for trading and was, upon initial
recognition, designated by the Group as a financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss.

—E-—=F+ - A=+—H2Z LK
BREDDBERAFIEREE  URYVIBRER
BEASEEERAEZATHETABED
IS EE -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 29. RERASEEURCIEITFTER
PLEDGED TIME DEPOSITS XN
Group Company
rEE RAF
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F —EB-=F —E——fF
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Time deposits EHER 901,689,601 517,007,219 = -
Less: Pledged short term time  J& : BhiG HAER 1712
deposits for short term BT IR
banking facilities ZEHERE
(note 33(a(iii) A (Hi5t33(a)
(i) (382,166)  (6,625,000) = -
901,307,435 510,382,219 - -
Cash and bank balances We MRITER 177,701,049 514,407,337 10,306,510 385,734,911
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREERE 1,079,008,484 1,024,789,556 10,306,510 385,734,911
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29.

30.

162

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED TIME DEPOSITS (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and
bank balances and the time deposits of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounted to
HK$737,566,208 (2012: HK$639,951,712). The RMB s
not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and one
year depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY

The balance is unsecured, non-interest-bearing and has
no fixed terms of repayment.

29.

30.

RBeRASEEURCERER
X (&)

RB|EPR REEUARE (AR
B stEzReREBTEFTREHT
N /B737,566,208%8 70 (=T — = F ¢
639,951,712 7L) - ARBE T B RE
BREEMEYR - AWMBEPBEAMZ I
EEREOIRERE  SERMNESER
EASESRAERERRING KR
¥BZRITBARE LR SHMER -

RATHIRE B RTE R R H 8T
BFEHS BT AEENNERSE
o BENF—AE—EEFFBIN
TR LREHEEEEER
FlEE 8 - BITEFREBEHEER
RIS B R RS B EAEE > $77T o

BN —RME AR ZFZERRR

ZHBEAEER 2 REREENA
5 o
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31. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 31. ENEZ2EITRERE
An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the RBEHIKR  BNEZEZNE e iRE
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, ERHCESSTOT
is as follows:
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—EB-=F —E——4F
HKS$ HK$
B BT
Current BN ER 2,676,733 37,159,244
31 to 60 days 31260H 341,096 1,356,601
61 to 90 days 61290H 839,023 918,980
Over 90 days 90B M E 2,714,906 4,389,129
6,571,758 43,823,954
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are EENE BER TR B R —&1%90
normally settled on 90-day terms. HEIPRE & o
32. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 32. HENRERENER
Group Company
REE NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—g—= T ZZEBE-=fF —E—_4F
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Other payables Hfth e~ 5RIE 3,642,801 12,605,960 1,304,412 1,335,993
Accruals fEFtE R 7,452,404 5,060,479 7,452,404 5,060,479

11,095,205 17,666,439 8,756,816 6,396,472

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an HEMREBE R BN FEHER A=
average term of three months. Ao
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33.

164

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

33. EHBRITER

Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E-Z=f —E-——F

Effective Effective

interest interest

rate (%) Maturity HK$  rate (%)  Maturity HK$

BRFR BHA %

(%) HA BT (%) 3158 BT
Bank loans - secured RITER - BER 6.3-7.2 2014 40,382,165 6.83-38.1 2013 14,625,000
Notes: 5T
(a) As at 31 December 2013, the Group's banking facilities (a) RZE—Z=F+ZA=+—H x&H
were secured by: ZHBITEBEU TS BERER -

(i) pledges of certain of the Group's land and buildings (i) EHRAEBEEEDFELEL
with an aggregate net book value of approximately 3,879,000 T (=T — — 4 :
HK$3,879,000 (2012: HK$4,111,671) (note 13); 4111,6718T) 2ET LR

EF (Hit13)

(i) pledges of the Group's leasehold land with a net (i) ERAEEER®TDFED
book value of approximately HK$3,140,054 (2012: 3,140,054 7T (ZE— Z 4 :
HK$3,178,592) (note 14); 3,178,592 L) 2 & L iy

(Kizt14) :

(iii) pledges of certain of the Group's short term time (iii) IR AN & B & #49382,166/8
deposits amounting to approximately HK$382,166 T (ZZT— % 16,625,000/
(2012: HK$6,625,000) (note 29); and TU) ZETRETERER (Mt

29) &

(iv) pledges of certain properties owned by a director (iv) B —FMERARzESE A
of a subsidiary, his spouse, his spouse's family BifE - ARG 2REKERA
member and his acquaintance. ANFEAZETME -

As at 31 December 2013, a director of a subsidiary, the RZE—=F+=ZA=+—8  —HW

spouse of the director, the spouse's acquaintances and the BRARIZEERZES MG - &G

companies controlled by the acquaintances have guaranteed ZAANRBZERANES 2 AR AE

repayment of certain of the Group's bank borrowings B 5 %30,573,2488 L (=T — =4 :
amounting to HK$30,573,248 (2012: HK$5,000,000). 5,000,000 7T) 2 & FRITER 2 EE
RAEIELR -
(b) All bank borrowings are denominated in RMB. (b) FARITEEHUARBEE -
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DEFERRED TAX

The movements in the Group's deferred tax liabilities

during the year are as follows:

31 December 2013 —ZE—=F+_-"HA=+—H

34. EEHIE

AEBRCHERBERFAZEHMN
T~

Deferred tax liabilities

EEBHEE

Group
A EE

Revaluation of
property, plant

and equipment Revaluation of

and prepaid an available-
land lease for-sale
payment investment Total
BEEWE -
BMEMNRER B At
EALEAER HERE &5t
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2012 R-E——F—HF—H 1,226,591 127,334,069 128,560,660
Deferred tax credited FRFTABRRK
to the statement of ZIRFERLIA (H1aE10)
profit or loss during
the year (note 10) (122,851) - (122,851)
Deferred tax credited to FARFFAEMET
other comprehensive Wzt 2 EEF A
income during the year (H15£22(a)
(note 22(a)) - (93,155,136) (93,155,136)
At 31 December 2012 R-ZETE—=
and 1 January 2013 +-A=+—HK
—ET—=%—H—H 1,103,740 34,178,933 35,282,673
Deferred tax credited to FARFFABREE
the statement of profit ZIRERIE (ffat10)
or loss during the year
(note 10) (122,851) - (122,851)
Deferred tax credited to FRFFAEMEE
other comprehensive Wz 2 BT
income during the year (B1at22(a))
(note 22(a)) - (34,178,933) (34,178,933)
At 31 December 2013 R-_E—=F+_-FA
=+—H 980,889 - 980,889
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34,

166

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

At 31 December 2013, the Group had aggregate
tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$15,456,000 (2012: HK$15,456,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these losses as they have arisen in the companies
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement has
become effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rates range
from 5% to 10%. The Group was therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2013, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings of the Group's subsidiaries,
joint venture and associates established in Mainland
China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries, joint venture and associates
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.
The aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, joint
venture and associates in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately HK$623,671,827 at 31 December 2013
(2012: HK$286,791,559).

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

34.

EERIE (&)

RZE—=F+=_A=+—H8 ' &
EEEEAREECEBBEEBEED
#$15,456,000/ T (= & — = F:
15,456,000/ 7T) + A EE[R EA A /RS I
WEBEERRAZRRERTEN o BRZ
ZEEERERFELRBE AT M
B AR AR 6B BRI m ) LA L &) A
TRIAETE @ S W EREREERIREE -

RBHFECEMRFHE  EREKIZ
SNELEMINEREETIRZ BB AR
WI10%TEHIM - ZMER =TT N\F—
A—RBER  BAR_ZTLEF+-
A=+t—B®&RzWa - WhEEIMEEER
BEZAVEERFIBRKGE - AR
AREzBINHRE - BAKEMS @ &
ARERS%E10% - AEBERMAR
ERERZHBRARSE —TTNF
—A—HBEL 2 W&ok Z IR E&
FEIEHM -

WZZE—=F+_-"A=+—H L&
AEEEPEAMKL ZHBAA -
B E QA R E QR 2R E DS
REEMB - EFERE ZEWEA
Al AERAIRBERARTEHEANR
BRSRZSERF - R —=ZF+
ZRA=+—B MARRPEAHZ
MEBAR A2 AR RBERRZERE
BRAZELHEBEAG 2 HRIEEAH
49 £623,671,8278 L (Z T — ZF :
286,791,559/87T) °

A B [ BRI B B B 3 4 Y RS A AR A
BHER -
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SHARE CAPITAL 35. B
Shares %)
2013 2012
—E—-= —FT—=
HKS$ HK$
Er BT
Authorised: JETE ¢
10,000,000,000 ordinary 10,000,000,0000% &A%
of HK$0.10 each H{E0. 0BT 2 Tk 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRET
4,619,591,000 4,619,591,0000%
ordinary shares of FREE0. 10T 2 BB
HK$0.10 each (ZZE——1F :4,661,397,0008%
(2012: 4,661,397,000 ERAEE10B T LB
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 £4510,616,0000% E1FAL1D)
each, including 10,616,000
treasury shares) 461,959,100 466,139,700

During the year, the movements in share capital were as
follows:

(a) In the prior year, the Company repurchased
a total of 30,070,000 shares of the Company
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) at prices ranging
from HK$0.227 to HK$0.255 per share for
an aggregate consideration with the relevant
expenses totalling HK$7,288,499. The share
certificates in respect of 19,454,000 repurchased
shares had been duly cancelled as at 31 December
2012. Accordingly, the issued share capital of
the Company was reduced by the nominal value
of the 19,454,000 shares of HK$1,945,400
and the premium paid of HK$2,712,434
on the repurchase was charged against the
share premium account. The amount paid of
HK$2,630,665 for the remaining 10,616,000
shares was debited to the treasury shares reserve.

R BARBOT

(@ WNEFE ARFENTER
0.2278 L E0.2558B L 2 BEHE R
EABMER AR LA ([H
R Fr)) B[ & $£30,070,0000%
ARAEBRG  BREEZFREEE
A& 3£ 57,288,499 7T - B 3
19,454,000/% 2 & Bl g 10~ I =
RZE—=—F+=_HA=+—HE
FAFSE - Bt - ARFBEST
% AN B 4219,454,0008% f% 15 2 ™
181,945,400/% JT #107 - M & =
B& 0 B A 2 4 82,712,434
TERKRMDEERME -T2
10,616,0008% & 7 2 B X 7 508
2,630,665/ L2 RE AETF AR 0 7
f& o
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35. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 35.

During the year, the movements in share capital were as

Bx (&)
ER - RAZBWT : (&)

follows: (continued)

(b) During the year, the share certificates in respect (b)
of the 10,616,000 shares of the Company
repurchased in the prior year were duly cancelled.
Accordingly, the issued share capital of the
Company was reduced by the nominal value
of HK$1,061,600 and the premium paid of
HK$1,569,065 on the repurchase was charged
against the share premium account. The treasury
shares reserve of HK$2,630,665 was released.

FR - BHALFEEEDZ
10,616,000/ 2~ A &) f% 19 B #
ERFEE - At - ARE BT
i% AN B 1% ® 181,061,600 7T 1
R T B B A% D B S 2 (B
1,569,065 7L B R AR 7 )5 (B BR 1
B o EEAER 1D FE152,630,6655 7T
B AERR o

(c) During the year, the Company repurchased a ()
total of 31,190,000 shares of the Company BT E0.3678 7T 2 BN Y
on the Stock Exchange at prices ranging from B 0] & $£31,190,0008% AN A &) J%
HK$0.305 to HK$0.36 per share for an aggregate n o BREEREEEREEAS
consideration with the relevant expenses totalling 10,599,504 0 - HEKRER =
HK$10,599,504. The relevant share certificates E—=F+_-_A=+—HB LK
had been duly cancelled as at 31 December o Bt AARIBEITRA
2013. Accordingly, the issued share capital of B EE3,119,0008 THIR - M
the Company was reduced by the nominal value 8% [0] i 19 B S22 387,480,504
of HK$3,119,000 and the premium paid of BILERRME BRI -
HK$7,480,504 on the repurchase was charged
against the share premium account.

FA - ARQERNF &K0.305

A summary of the transactions during the year with RAIB PN ARIEEITIRARNEE -
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reference to the above movements in the Company's FERNXFHEHMT -
issued share capital is as follows:
Share Treasury
Issued premium shares
capital account reserve Total
ERTRA RIDEER BEFROHEE &5t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2012 WZZE——F
—H—H 468,085,100 176,238,216 - 644,323,316
Repurchase of shares (a) BEERM @) (1,945,400)  (2,712,434) (2,630,665)  (7,288,499)
At 31 December 2012 and NZZE——F
1 January 2013 +-A=+—8H
RZT—=%
—H—H 466,139,700 173,525,782 (2,630,665) 637,034,817
Cancellation of shares HHEN T ——F
repurchased in 2012 (b) Bz kmb) (1,061,600)  (1,569,065) 2,630,665 =
Repurchase of shares (c) B [0 B 17 (c) (3,119,000) (7,480,504) - (10,599,504)
At 31 December 2013 NZE—=4F
+-A=+—8H 461,959,100 164,476,213 - 626,435,313
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting held on 13 May 2003,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the

“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and

rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the

success of the Group's operations. Since the adoption of

the Scheme, no options have been granted thereunder.
The Scheme expired on 12 May 2013 and no new share
option scheme has been adopted by the Company

afterwards.

Major terms of the Scheme include:

1.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide
incentives to the participants.

The participants of the Scheme are individuals
being employees, officers or consultants of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries including any
executive or non-executive directors thereof.

The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme must not exceed 10% of the share
capital of the Company in issue as at the date
of approval of the Scheme. The Company may
refresh this 10% limit at any time subject to
prior approval by its shareholders in a general
meeting. The overall limit on the total number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme must not exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company at any time.
No options may be granted if this will result in
such limit being exceeded.

36.

31 December 2013 —ZE—=F+_-"HA=+—H

BRETE
E-_ZE=FAAT=ARTZREE
FREL RNARRMT —BRETE
([%H8l))  BEsBEERAAEE
EB2RMEHERZABER28E -
BN RZET BIPATR - A EAR BT 813K
HEABRE - ZAR T —=F1
A+ZRER BARBEELEERHK
L BT -

ZET & 2 T BIRREE

1. ZEFEEERZSEERHEEE -

2. REEZZ2BEERARBREL

MMEARZEE  SABERX
BRZEA  EFeRErnT
HIFITES -

3. HITEAREZ AR 2 HEK
BMmETZ R @R - TEBE
RZtEBBE B ARFEELT
PRANZ210% ° 72 =) A] BE B 58 %
%10% LR - MEABBER R BCR
RE EE=R4E - RITHEREZ
BE s ER I ENES i il
BITZBRMEBRERELER T/
BBEAREARFDETRA
230% ° fi % KB A & iR
BERLR - AINSROBEE -
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36.

170

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Major terms of the Scheme include: (continued)

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options (whether
exercised, cancelled or outstanding) granted
under the Scheme in any 12-month period
immediately preceding any proposed date of
grant of options to each participant must not
exceed 1% of the share capital of the Company
in issue as at the proposed grant date.

Options may be exercised at any time during
a period of 10 years commencing on the date
falling three to six months after the date of grant.

A grant of an option must be accepted within 28
days from the date of grant together with a non-
refundable payment of HK$1.00.

The exercise price of an option to subscribe for
shares granted pursuant to the Scheme shall be
the highest of:

(a) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet
on the date of grant, which must be a
business day;

(b) the average of the closing prices of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and

() the nominal value of the shares of the
Company.

36.

BRESE ()

ZETEZ T ERRENE - (B)

4. TE AR ZR R HE MR B B AT+
Z{E A M ETERER B AT
ZEHBERE (THRETHE - 25
HE B ARITHE) MME2EER
TRGETZRNEE - ~5H
BARNARERRL AR 228
TR AR % ©

5. BRETRELBHR=2/H
AR+ FABERTTE

6. BREANKELER Hﬁ?&stl A
M WA SR RIRE FKIE1.00
BT o

7. REBZEEARLAHRBERD
ZEBRZTEEARTIIZ&
=E

(@ BHOHERLBHER
EJEY ;?EIE"H?/\FJ?#EI
WERZWHIE

(b) BRI A A A
¥ ERBRA S ARER
ZFERTE R

(0 ARERMHEE -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Major terms of the Scheme include: (continued)

8. The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on 13 May
2003 and thereafter for as long as there are
outstanding options granted and accepted
pursuant thereto prior to the expiration of the
said 10-year period and in order to give effect to
the exercise of any such options.

Share options did not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders' meetings.

At the end of the reporting period and at the date of
approval of these financial statements, there were no
share options outstanding.

36.

31 December 2013 —ZE—=F+—-A=+—H

SRS (2

HEHBZEBEARDE ()

8. HitBM-TT=FAA+=H
EitHERAR - MR Lt +F

HAJE A 2 3% th R 2 R R TT
ERERED R AT{E

BEREYERTREAZTEREINEK
RARG LIREZHER -

RBERRR AR BRI EMEER -
48 18 R TT 8 2 R A
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37.

172

RESERVES

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior
years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 46 to 49 of this
annual report.

Pursuant to the articles of association of
certain subsidiaries operating as foreign-owned
enterprises in Mainland China and the relevant
PRC Company Law, the subsidiaries shall make
an allocation from their profit after tax at the
rate of 10% to the statutory surplus reserve
fund, until such reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital of the subsidiaries. Part of the
statutory surplus reserve may be capitalised as
the subsidiaries' registered capital, provided that
the remaining balance after the capitalisation is
not less than 25% of the registered capital of
the subsidiaries. The statutory reserve will be
reclassified to retained profits upon the disposal
of the subsidiaries.

37.

]
(a)

rEE
AEBEAFERBEFEZ2HE
BRFERBEHEN A FRFICR
EFAZEARREHRA -

BRIEETRHEREAIIELE
AREEZHBRARZAAER
LEBRERRDEN - ZEWEB
RAABEBREZENZ10%
BREAERES  EEARMGHE
EEREMNBRAREMERZ
50% ° BIAERTEEAIETR
ZEMBE AR ZEMER - 1R
EEMMBRZBTHEHTDRZ
EHBAREMERZ25% ° /&
ERBERZENE QB LER
HEFDBERFEN -
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RESERVES (continued) 37. &% (&)
Company (b) ZEAF
Share Treasury
premium shares  Contributed Retained
account reserve surplus profits Total
hiaEk EFRGRE N4 B &it
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
V-3 V-7 V-8 V-3 AT
At 1 January 2012 W-2--%-A-H 176,238,216 - 5243,300 195,897,040 377,378,556
Total comprehensive income EREENG
for the year pet] - - - (15,588,507)  (15,588,507)
Repurchase of shares (note 35) BERG (HH35) (2,712,434)  (2,630,665) - - (5,343,099
At 31 December 2012 and RZE-—F+_A
1 January 2013 “t-ARZE-=%
-A-H 173,525,782 (2,630,665) 5243,300 180,308,533 356,446,950
Total comprehensive income FREERE
for the year &% - - - (33,626,986) (33,626,986)
Cancellation of shares repurchased ~ F#5=F——EfERE
in 2012 (note 35) Bty (Hi35) (1,569,065) 2,630,665 - - 1,061,600
Repurchase of shares (note 35) ORI (17735 (7,480,504) - - - (7,480,504)
At 31 December 2013 RZZ-ZF+-A=+-H 164476213 - 5243300 146,681,547 316,401,060

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the excess of the consolidated net
asset value of Far East Aluminium (B.V.l.) Limited
on 20 November 1991, when its entire issued
share capital was acquired by the Company
pursuant to a group reorganisation, over the
nominal amount of the Company's shares issued
in consideration for such acquisition, net of
accumulated losses of the Company set off in the
prior years. Under the Companies Act of 1981 of
Bermuda, the contributed surplus of the Company
is distributable to shareholders under certain
circumstances.

The Company's share premium account of
HK$164,476,213 (2012: HK$173,525,782) as
at 31 December 2013 may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

KRB ZHANBBRAERRBRE
SEEALHER—NAN—F+—
A=+ B AFar East Aluminium
(B.V.l.) Limited® & 2 B 17 IR A
RF » Far East Aluminium (B.V.L.)
LimitedZ iz & BEFEBRAR
AERWEREMEITZRGOE
BeaE YEHNBRRBEFE
B2 ARANRREEE - BIEHE
REQNAE—NN— AQAZ
MABBKREETERTAHSIE
FTERR o

AABRW-_ZE—=F+=-_A=+
— B2 H R ER164,476,213
BT (ZF— 4 : 173,525,782
BIL) AR AR A R DK ©

173



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
FEMZETERREZER (F8) BRAA

Annual Report 2013
“E-ZFER

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B %R R M sT

31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-A=+—H

38.

174

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

38. HEMEQF

Details of the disposal are as follows: HEZFBOT :
2013 2012
—E—= —_F—=
Note HK$ HK$
i3 BT BT
Net assets/(liabilities) disposed of: B HEZEE (&E&)
FE -
Property, plant and equipment VI - B TR 13 - 50,595
Prepayments, deposits and TERRIE « e REAM
other receivables FEM FRIE - 2,963
Cash and bank balances R RIBITETT = 36,643,478
Other payables and accruals H b e R TE M EE
=43 - (38,247,365)
- (1,550,329)
Consideration KRE - 1,000,008
Gain on net assets/liabilities HEFEE, AB2
disposed of FE = 2,550,337
Release of exchange fluctuation R B T8 OB B it
reserve - 477,896
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBE AR ZFE = 3,028,233
The consideration is satisfied by: REBzZIZMAR
Cash e - 1,000,008

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash

HEMBARZRE LR FERLF

equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as BT
follows:
2013 2012
—E-=F —ET—F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cash consideration (net of RERE IR ZKA)
transaction costs) - 1,000,008

Cash and bank balances disposed of BHRE e RIBITERF = (36,643,478)
Net outflow of cash and cash HEWNBRARIZRE X
equivalents in respect of the disposal  IR&ZH(E R F5E

of subsidiaries

(35,643,470)
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OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 39.
As lessee

The Group and the Company leases its office premises
and a director's apartment under non-cancellable
operating lease arrangements with terms ranging from
one to three years.

At 31 December 2013, the Group and the Company
had total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

REMNVRH
EREBEA

AREERARBRE A HELEELD
CHERERAENEREFTLE M
HRM—=2=%F-

RZE-—Z=ZF+ZA=+—8  REN
FLATSEHBBz A RELEELD
AEBRARAFAEBRBEHKEEN
MBIy

Group Company
rEH b N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—F —E—=F —E—F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT BT
Within one year —FR 2,018,153 1,052,608 576,600 552,000
In the second to fifth years, FE-ZF RHF
inclusive (BIEEEWSE) 1,818,865 - = -
3,837,018 1,052,608 576,000 552,000
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40.

176

COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments in note
39 above, the Group had the following commitments at
the end of the reporting period:

i

B EXXHIEE39 2 i B TRA RSN - K&
BRI E HIRA AT AL

Group

rEHE
2013 2012
—EB-=F —E——4F
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Contracted, but not provided for: BRTAVEEREE

Establishment of a joint venture (note) & %N 7 (K1) 50,955,414 50,000,000
Acquisition of a property Wi 2 = 4,070,000
50,955,414 54,070,000

Note:

On 4 January 2006, Sino-Aviation Investments, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a joint venture agreement
(the "JV Agreement”) with AVIC International, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and Chengdu Aircraft Industry (Group)
Corporation Ltd. (“Chengdu Aircraft”), for the establishment
of a joint venture to engage in the research and development,
design and manufacture of parts and components for commercial
aircraft, and provision of related technical services. According to
the JV Agreement, the total registered capital of the joint venture
is RMB100 million (equivalent to approximately HK$127 million),
of which 40%, 15% and 45% respectively, will be contributed
by Sino-Aviation Investments, AVIC International and Chengdu
Aircraft. The JV Agreement is conditional upon (i) the internal
approval obtained by each of the three parties; and (ii) the approval
from the relevant PRC authorities. As at 31 December 2013, the JV
Agreement has not become effective as the conditions stated above
have not been fulfilled.

Bt

RZZEERNF—ANB  ARAIZEZEWBR
AJSino-Aviation Investmentsf2 A X 7] 2 £ &
BREFMEREEKMBRETE (£B) BRE
ERT ([RERE] sT LA EHE ([AEH
FD) UKL —REERT REMARKS
BB B EE - RETRBNE - ARIRAUBA R AR
%o RIBEAERZE  AEARZEAMERE
100,000,0007T A R # (1854 49127,000,0007%
JT) * HARSino-Aviation Investments + A i Bl B
KR ER R AS 2 BIEEA0% ~ 15% 245% © &
LA ARFATREERETSER - BE1)=
FEBRESNHBIE - R>GNVESEBEPEEE
HE -BE_T—=F+-A=1+—H BHRE
G AR - B R A B R R AR o
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At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities
not provided for in the financial statements were as
follows:

31 December 2013 —ZE—=F+—-A=+—H

PR

R|ERR > WARRPIBIHRKE L BB
ZERARABBEWT

Group Company
rEH b N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —ZFT—= —E-=F T4
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
ET BT BT BT
Guarantees given to banks FLIA T & HER
in connection with ZEEMmmRTT
facilities granted to: RHZER
Companies controlled L EINGT
by acquaintances of a ZEEZHA
director of a subsidiary Firiz il 2 2 &) - 25,000,000 = -
A subsidiary — KB AR - - 93,000,000 -

25,000,000 93,000,000 -

As at 31 December 2013, the banking facility granted to
a subsidiary subject to guarantees given to the bank by
the Company was not utilised.

As at 31 December 2012, the banking facilities granted
to the companies controlled by acquaintances of a
director of a subsidiary subject to guarantees given
to banks by the Group were utilised to the extent of
HK$15,000,000.

RNRZTE—=F+-A=+—H WEH
Al KB AR B BRNEERIEITIE
HERMESZIRTEER -

RZEBE——F+-_A=+—H B—H
WEBARZEZEZAANESZAGSE
BAEERRITELERNES 2R
ZE 2%/ 15,000,000/ 7T °
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

2. BEMEXS

(@) In addition to the transactions described (a) BB EREBSEMIMZ SN
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group REFBRFERNDLETIUNNE KRS
had the following material transactions with B 5
related parties during the year:

2013 2012
—Eg—= —E—F
Note HKS$ HK$
Kt BT BT
Interest income on loans to AR A FIEHAER
related companies ZFB U A (i) 1,132,076 1,160,803
Associates: fE N a)
Interest income on the HEE AR 2R
convertible bond issued & (&% 2 F B WA
by an associate (i) 1,035,517 849,692
Interest income on loans mEE N FIRENER
to associates Z A BYWA (iii) 1,600,364 2,277,351
Notes: Hiat
(i) Details of the loans to related companies are set (i) BB A RRENERZFHS
out in note 26 to the financial statements. R B HmEM 526 ©
(ii) The interest income represented interest income on (ii) ZF B ATy BRI AT
the convertible bond issued by CEIH. Details of the TZABRRERFZFEHRA -
convertible bond are set out in note 22(c) to the AR ES 2 FIBE N R
financial statements. RMIEE22(0) °
(iii) Details of the loans to associates are set out in note (iii) MEERRRENERZFHS
19 to the financial statements. A HRERM 19 ©
(b)  Other transaction with related party: (b)  EEBEEGT#EITZHMR S

In the prior year, the Group subscribed for
343,865,000 new shares issued by CEIH at par
of HK$0.2 per share pursuant to an open offer
at a total consideration, before expense, of
HK$68,773,000.
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RBAEFE NEBRE—
HEAMBEEEZUNEBEREAR
68,773,000/ 7T (R 1 B & A)
REREERO2ETRBERTH
IR W B 17 2.343,865,000/% #1 A%
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(0

Outstanding balances with related parties:

(i) Details of the Group's loans to associates
as at the end of the reporting period
are disclosed in note 19 to the financial
statements.

(i) Details of terms of the convertible bond
issued by an associate are disclosed in note
22(c) to the financial statements.

(iii) Details of the Group's loans to related
companies as at the end of the reporting
period are disclosed in note 26 to the
financial statements.

(iv) Details of the amount due to a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
are disclosed in note 30 to the financial
statements.

Compensation of key management personnel of

31 December 2013 —FE—=F+—-A=+—H

42. BEBAERS (&)
(0 HEEHZREEER

(i) RBEMKR AEERB
BRRRENER ZFHIS

R RERMTFE19H 55 -

(i BEQRBITZAUBRKE
FZAEFFEBRI R E
BIaE22(0) % o

(i) AEBERIRE IR R B
RERFEHERZFER
PATE SRR FE26 M FE -

vy BEN—FXWBRARZIEE
REAS R 2 s R R Rk
M EE303H EE -

d) AEEEREEABZERH:

the Group:

2013 2012
—E-= —E——4F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Short term employee benefits HHEERET 6,242,150 7,226,980
Post-employment benefits RIEERER 310,971 383,959

Total compensation paid to key ZfITREHEEIEAES
management personnel ek 6,553,121 7,610,939

Further details of directors' emoluments are
included in note 8 to the financial statements.

BFREFME 2 —HFBIAR
BTSSR Y A8
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43. €T EDE
%

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of REREHI R
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting T
period are as follows:

Group
%
2013
—E—=
Financial assets
MBEE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or for-sale
loss - held Loans and financial
for trading  receivables assets Total
RATE
FHABRM
BBEE - ERR AHHEN
BEEE e BKEE &it
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
B BT BT B
Available-for-sale investments AHLENRE - - 204,523,519 204,523,519
Trade and bills receivables EUEFETREE - 14,862,874 - 14,862,874
Loans to associates MEE D ARER &R - 50,426,752 - 50,426,752
Loans to related companies MBS A RRENER - 20,127,389 - 20,127,389
Financial assets included in prepayments, S ATERFUE - & REM
deposits and other receivables BRI EE - 69,117,764 - 69,117,764
Equity investment at fair value through ~ RAFET AR
profit or loss RARE 8,381,000 - - 8,381,000
Derivative financial instruments THESRMIA 226,062,145 - - 226,062,145
Pledged time deposits BEREHER - 382,166 - 382,166
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkReEE - 1,079,008,484 - 1,079,008,484

234,443,145 1,233,925,429 204,523,519 1,672,892,093
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43, €WMIEDE (&)

(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting T (&)

period are as follows: (continued)

Group (continued)

RBERR SEEMTAREEN

EM® (&)
2013 (continued)
—E-=F (&)
Financial liabilities
S =R
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R HR AT R
ki S =R
HKS$
BT
Due to a non-controlling shareholder of FER —RKIB AR 2 IEEARAL R
a subsidiary 160,833
Trade and bills payables BB SERRER 6,571,758
Other payables and accruals Hi B R ERTE A 11,095,205
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ATERITER 40,382,165
58,209,961

181



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

FEMZETIXREREZER (58) BRAF
Annual Report 2013
“E-ZFER

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt 78 3R 3% i 5

31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-A=+—H

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43, €WMIEDE (&)

(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RMEHR SHEem T AEEED
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting T : (&)
period are as follows: (continued)
Group (continued)
rEE (&)
2012
—E-—F
Financial assets
HBEE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or for-sale
loss-held Loans and financia
for trading receivables assets Total
HATHE
FTABRH
HBEE - BERR AHEL
HEEE IR MKEE At
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Available-for-sale investments A HENRE - - 193,975,451 193,975,451
Trade and bills receivables EWESRTIREE - 13,815,192 - 13,815,192
Loan to an associate RIS N AR ER - 12,250,000 - 12,250,000
Loan to a related company REBEAAIRENER - 18,750,000 - 18,750,000
Financial assets included in prepayments, st ATERFUE - 24 REM
deposits and other receivables RN EEE - 26,996,973 - 26,996,973
Derivative financial instrument fTEeRIA 9,014,631 - - 9,014,631
Pledged time deposits BEATHER - 6,625,000 - 6,625,000
Cash and cash equivalents BekReEE - 1,024,789,556 - 1,024,789,556

9,014,631 1,103,226,721 193,975,451 1,306,216,803
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43, €WMIEDE (&)

(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting T (&)

period are as follows: (continued)

Group (continued)
EM® (&)
2012 (continued)

—E-—F (&)
Financial liabilities
i 3=Ri

RBERR SEEMTAREEN

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

RN B

HE A&
HK$
BT

Due to a non-controlling shareholder of BN — KW E AR 2 FEIE AR AR B
a subsidiary 320,317
Trade and bills payables BB SERRER 43,823,954
Other payables and accruals H b ET SR IE R FERTE A 17,666,439
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ATERITER 14,625,000
76,435,710
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43, €WMIEDE (&)

(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RMEHR SHEem T AEEED
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting T : (&)
period are as follows: (continued)
Company
AN
MBEE
Financial assets
2013 2012
—E-Zf “F--F
Available- Available-
for-sale for-sale
Loans and financial Loans and financial
receivables asset Total  receivables asset Total
ERR  WHHEN ERRk  AHHES
JEl S BhEE At RUER ihEE At
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
AT BT BT AT AT AT
Available-for-sale investment A#HENRE - 2,680,300 2,680,300 - 2680300 2,680,300
Financial assets included in TAERRE B2 R
prepayments, deposits and Eft RT3
other receivables BE 6,883,373 - 6,883,373 10,115,855 - 10,115,855
Due from a subsidiary EUMBLRNE 6,474,000 - 6,474,000 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEE 10,306,510 - 10,306,510 385,734,911 - 385,734,911

23,663,883 2,680,300 26,344,183 395,850,766 2,680,300 398,531,066

Financial liabilities

M aE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
BREBHAATRNBKAE
2013 2012
—E-=F —ET—F
HKS$ HKS$
BT BT
Other payables and accruals E At T R IE R FERH B A 8,756,816 6,396,472
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 44. 4R TEZAFERAFAEZH

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS $IE

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's and REBEKAAGEMIEZERBELA
the Company's financial instruments, other than those FTE(EEAEEATFEAEMEEER
with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to HN) EHFI T -

fair values, are as follows:

Group
rEH
Carrying amounts Fair values
HREE NFE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F —EB-=F —E——fF
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B BT
Financial assets BMBEE
Loans to associates, B2 A RIR Y
non-current portion B3 (GERBEH) 38,324,841 - 38,049,172 -
Loans to related companies,  [AFAES A BIIR LA
non-current portion ER GEREENR) 20,127,389 - 20,127,389 -
Available-for-sale investments  a] {1 & ) #% & 204,523,519 193,975,451 204,523,519 193,975,451
Equity investment at fair WRTERA
value through profit BB
or loss ®E 8,381,000 - 8,381,000 -
Derivative financial fTHESRTA
instruments 226,062,145 9,014,631 226,062,145 9,014,631
497,418,894 202,990,082 497,143,225 202,990,082
Company
LN
Carrying amounts Fair values
HREE DNEE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F - —E-=F —E-—F
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial asset MEEE
Available-for-sale investment AJ{HERIRE 2,680,300 2,680,300 2,680,300 2,680,300
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44,

186

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of
trade and bills receivables, loans to associates, current
portion, loans to related companies, current portion,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, pledged time deposits, cash and
cash equivalents, the amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary, trade and bills payables,
other payables and accruals and interest-bearing bank
borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The Group's finance team headed by the deputy chief
financial officer is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement
of financial instruments. The finance team reports
directly to the chief financial officer. At each reporting
date, the finance team analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed
and approved by the chief financial officer and then
reported to the chief executive officer. The valuation
process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial
reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included in the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

44,
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of loans to
associates and loans to related companies have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments with
similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based
on quoted market prices. The fair values of the unlisted
available-for-sale investments and derivative financial
instruments have been estimated using a valuation
technique based on assumptions that are supported
by observable market prices or rates. The directors
believe that the estimated fair values resulting from
the valuation technique, which are recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair values, which are recorded in
other comprehensive income, are reasonable, and that
they were the most appropriate values at the end of the
reporting period.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments
with various counterparties. Derivative financial
instruments, including PMH Deferred CB and Broadlink
Derivative, are measured using valuation models which
incorporate various market observable inputs including
the credit quality of counterparties and interest rate
curves. The carrying amounts of PMH Deferred CB
and Broadlink Derivative are the same as their fair
values. As at 31 December 2013, the marked to market
value of the above derivative asset position is net of a
credit valuation adjustment attributable to derivative
counterparty default risk.

44,
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 44. 4R TEZAFERATFAEZH

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) HIE (&)
The following tables illustrate the fair value TRIIRAEBEAAFT SR TAEZ N
measurement hierarchy of the Group's and the FHEAEER

Company's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:
UAFEFEZEE :
Group
rER
Fair value measurement using
ERANTRBETAFETE
Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
WERT S BEATEE EBEATUEER
H]E WABE BWARE

(B—%) (B=H) (F=8) B
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
As at 31 December 2013 R-B—=F
+=-A=
Available-for-sale investments: AJ{tHEHEZE -
Debt investments RIEIRE 5,115,969 199,407,550 - 204,523,519
Equity investment at fair BRATERA
value through profit or loss B RRIEE 8,381,000 - - 8,381,000
Derivative financial instruments #7444 T A - 226,062,145 - 226,062,145
13,496,969 425,469,695 - 438,966,664
As at 31 December 2012 N-_TE——F
+=ZHA=+—H
Available-for-sale investments; At HEHHE
Equity investments N = 144,518,380 - - 144,518,380
Debt investments BEBHE 5,070,300 44,386,771 - 49,457,071
Derivative financial instrument {7448 T & - 9,014,631 - 9,014,631
149,588,680 53,401,402 - 202,990,082
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 44, €RTIBEZ2AFERAFEESH
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) HE (&)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)
UATENBZEE (&)
Company
AT
Fair value measurement using
ERAUTREETOVEFE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
WiERTI5 EATEE EBEATTEER
HRE WABE WABE

(E—%R) (B=#) (B=R) |t
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
T BT BT BT
As at 31 December 2013 R-BE—=F
+=-A=+—H
Available-for-sale investment: A[{tHEHKRE :

Debt investment BHIEE 2,680,300 - - 2,680,300
As at 31 December 2012 R-EB——F

+=-A=+—H
Available-for-sale investment: At HERIKE -

Debt investment BIRE 2,680,300 - - 2,680,300
The Group and the Company did not have any financial MNZBE-—=FR-ZFT——F+A=+
liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December 2013 — B AEBRAQBWELMIERF
and 2012. Exf22HBaE-

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FR UBEERMBEABRZE—HK
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no F_HMzEHEEGERRATETE  NE
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets BASENE-"R (ZF—ZF : ) -

and financial liabilities (2012: Nil).
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44,

190

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Assets for which fair values are disclosed:

BERBEAVEZEE:
Group
REE

HE (&)

Fair value measurement using

ERUTEEETAVENE

44, EWMIEZAFERAFEER

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
REBTS EXBE EBEAXTTHE
HRE BAZE WAHE
(B—&) (=) (B=&) &&t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
As at 31 December 2013 R-B-=F
+=ZH=+—H
Loans to associates, BECEYNEIE
non-current portion ME (FERD
#n) - 38,049,172 - 38,049,172
Loans to related companies,  [A1 BB A AR
non-current portion MEZR GERD
2B5) - 20,127,389 - 20,127,389
- 58,176,561 - 58,176,561
As at 31 December 2012 R-B——F
+=A=t-~H
Loans to associates, B D AR
non-current portion MEZR GERD
1) - - - -

Loans to related companies,

non-current portion

[F) B e 8 A
HER GERE
#1n)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments, other
than derivatives, comprise bank loans and cash and
short term deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities, such as trade and bills receivables and
trade and bills payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and equity price risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group's foreign currency exposures primarily arise
from certain sales or purchases by operating units in
currencies other than the units' functional currencies.
In view of the fact that the Group tries to match its
assets and liabilities with the same currency, the Group's
exposure to foreign currency risk is minimal.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

45.

31 December 2013 —ZE—=F+_-"HA=+—H
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45.

192

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, pledged time
deposits, available-for-sale investments, certain derivative
financial instruments, deposits and other receivables, and
loans to associates and related companies, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments. The
Group and the Company is also exposed to credit risk
through the granting of financial guarantees, further
details of which are disclosed in note 41 to the financial
statements.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry sector. There are no significant concentrations
of credit risk within the Group as the customer bases
of the Group's trade and bills receivables are widely
dispersed in different sectors and industries.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and bills
receivables are disclosed in note 25 to the financial
statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., trade and bills receivables) and projected
cash flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use
of bank loans. The Group's policy is to minimise
borrowings.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

45.

The maturity profile of the Group's and the Company's

financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as

BHEREEERERBE (&)

REERER (F)

RBEHR > NEBERDFTHERRS
BNRzHBREI IR T

follows:
Group
rEH
2013
—E-=F
3 to less
Less than than
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
=@EA
LR UERD
RERK =@R R+={EA a5t
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT B B B
Due to a non-controlling B —RHTEB AR
shareholder of a subsidiary 7 IEIEAR AR R 160,833 - - 160,833
Trade and bills payables FENESERRER - 3,856,852 2,714,906 6,571,758
Other payables and accruals — Efth < 5018 & fE 5t
EH - 11,095,205 - 11,095,205
Interest-bearing bank STEIRITER
borrowings - 4,655,096 37,244,459 41,899,555
160,833 19,607,153 39,959,365 59,727,351
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45,
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

BEEREEEERBE (&)

REERER (F)

RBEHR > NEBERDFTHERERS
BNRZMBaENRERWT - (&)

The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as
follows: (continued)

Group (continued)

rEE (&)

194

2012
—E--F
3 to less
Less than than
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
=fEA
N UERD
RERK =f@A R+=EA At
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Due to a non-controlling ER—KMEAT
shareholder of a subsidiary ZIRRRR 320,317 - - 320,317
Trade and bills payables ENESRFREE - 39,434,825 4,389,129 43,823,954
Other payables and accruals HibENRBERESER - 17,666,439 - 17,666,439
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHEBRITER - 4,159,338 11,185,375 15,344,713
Guarantees given to banks for RBTET—RHB
banking facilities granted to REZEZZHAA
companies controlled by gl ARl
acquaintances of a director RiTEE (B8
of a subsidiary which were #13) mrERITIES
utilised Z R 15,000,000 - - 15,000,000
15,320,317 61,260,602 15,574,504 92,155,423
Company
¥N/NE|
2013 2012
—E—-=F T
On demand On demand
RERE INEESES
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Other payables and accruals HAi e RIE R EETE A 8,756,816 6,396,472
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of
financial instruments decrease as a result of changes in
the levels of equity indices and the value of individual
securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk
arising from a listed equity investment classified as
trading equity investment (note 28) and available-for-
sale investments (note 22) as at 31 December 2013. The
Group's listed equity investments are listed on the Hong
Kong and Shenzhen stock exchanges and are valued at
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period.

The market equity indices for the following stock
exchanges, at the close of business of the nearest

45.

31 December 2013 —ZE—=F+_-"HA=+—H

BHEREEERERBE (&)

R E =R

fi% (3 2, Bex B B i = 46 8K K (B 51 7% 75
BESHMNELHMITANTERENE
% e MZE—=F+H=+—H &K
EEEAZDEREERAIRE (Hi728)
R HENRE (fit22) 2 LA
WEMEA 2 RERR - REE EMAR
TEETRBEABIFRRESFRXS
Fr L - WiRREHRARMEMRE -

FARAKEORERRRZZ B WTHE T
EEXGAMERERBEIERFRZ

trading day in the year to the end of the reporting 2 REEEmT
period, and their respective highest and lowest points
during the year were as follows:
31 December High/low 31 December High/low
2013 B/ 2012 5/ &
—E-=f “E-——F
t=A 2013 +=A 2012
=t-H —Z2-=F =+—H —E-CF
HKS$ HKS HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index B - BEEH 23,306 24,038/19,813 22,657 22,660/18,186
Shenzhen - A share Index Y — ARRIEER 1,103 1,121/920 920 1,057/757
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31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-A=+—H

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45,
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

MEEREERRRBER (&)

RERR (&)

TR - EHA R A R EE RS T
# BT BAYEORIET - ERBE
Hk IR AL A R AT S BT A2 A

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
every 1% change in the fair values of the listed equity
investments and the underlying equity investments

of the derivative financial instruments, with all other

variables held constant and before any impact on tax,

based on their carrying amounts at the end of the

reporting period.

BRAKEZEREEE  HAFESHE
1% HERE °

Carrying Increase/
amount decrease Increase/
of financial in profit decrease
instruments before tax in equity*
$WMIAEZ BADSA  REZREmMm
BREIE M md A *
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
2013 —E-Z=F
Investment listed in Hong Kong MW&EB FHzKRE
— Held-for-trading —BEEE 8,381,000 83,810 -
PMH Derivatives RTEEBRITET A 167,586,217 2,184,327 -
PMH Deferred CB KT B2 IR AE A #2 %
BEH 23,843,651 163,228 =
CEIH Derivative FEIRIEITAET A 7,458,647 237,734 -
Broadlink Derivative BroadlinkfTA& L&A 27,173,630 88,437 -
2012 —E-—F
Investment listed in Shenzhen PRI Rz RE
— Available-for-sale —AftEE 144,518,380 - 1,083,888
CEIH Derivative REIRIITAET A 9,014,631 202,056 -
* Excluding retained profits * TEEBERN
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31 December 2013 —ZE—=F+_-"HA=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45. BIREABMETEEERKE (£)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management BEARER

The primary objectives of the Group's capital AEEBEAEENEEZEIE  BERA
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to EEEEHEREMNE N BHEEE
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy BN E Y EEEREE - FH
capital ratios in order to support its business and SAMREEE -

maximise shareholders' value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes REBERBLQEBINES  TBEE
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic REBWIELFEE - BERFAABRER
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, ERE S RNEB A e PR A IR R B
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to PR E - IR EREERLBEITHR o A
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue EFTSZH RN EMIINSBEINZ BAE
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally keiz—_E—=F+—_HAF=+—80K
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made —E——F+-_A=+—HIFER "
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing BAREIE Y BIE « BUESI2 I i o

capital during the years ended 31 December 2013 and
31 December 2012.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which REBUEXREBEL X RITEZHBIA
is bank borrowings divided by equity attributable to BARAEREMER) EEEANE
owners of the parent. Management considers a gearing o BB E AT ABBA0% L Il & AN
ratio of not more than 40% as reasonable. The gearing BELERBEAE - REH KR ERBE
ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as =T -
follows:
Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$ HK$
B BT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ATERITER 40,382,165 14,625,000
Equity attributable to owners of BRRIMBEEGER
the parent 2,225,229,912 1,952,616,979
Gearing ratio BRBELX 2% 1%

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 46. Bz z#tE

The financial statements were approved and authorised PBmEERZE—HWF=A+N\BLK
for issue by the board of directors on 18 March 2014. ExgEREERE -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LEMBHE

A summary of the results and the assets, liabilities and non- AEFEBEAEMKEENEELREE  BF
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial  Fi3fiEfpgsEzsifitan T - s B B P BKH
years, as extracted from the published audited financial B Hx WEIEEEEY EEHHE - It
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set S EI IELBZIEIREDIG ©

out below. This summary is not part of the audited financial

statements.
Year ended 31 December
BE+-B=t+-HLEE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=f —Z-—-fF ZEZ——% =ZIZ-LF ZIZITNF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FAET FEr FET FEr FET
RESULTS #i5
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BELEER
Revenue Wz 47,979 87,328 - 654 1,718
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B i BT A 477,687 422,613 432,014 25,730 27,634
Income tax expense RS (81,012) (61,618)  (111,191) (370) (8,313)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM BEREEE I RE
CONTINUING OPERATIONS S 396,675 360,995 320,823 25,360 19,321

DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRILEEEHK

Profit for the year from a BRIEEE B RE

discontinued operation eyl - - 152,766 18,320 5,385
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AERF 396,675 360,995 473,589 43,680 24,706
Attributable to: TH AL :

Owners of the parent BRRMEE 397,242 359,651 467,519 36,062 23,772

Non-controlling interests FERES (567) 1,344 6,070 7,618 934

396,675 360,995 473,589 43,680 24,706

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND BE  BBERFER

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS %%
Total assets BERE 2,348,352 2,086,453 2,551,850 4,071,565 1,198,611
Total liabilities BEBE (118,040)  (128,254)  (396,770)  (637,841)  (177,728)
Non-controlling interests IR (5,082) (5,582) (4,173) (71,646) (65,428)

2,225,230 1,952,617 2,150,907 3,362,078 955,455
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REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Unit B, 15th Floor, United Centre
95 Queensway, Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRARS
Principal registrar
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26 Burnaby Street
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Hong Kong registrar
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183 Queen's Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
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